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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
a total revenue of approximately RMB1,941.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 431.9% compared
with the nine months ended 31 December 2018. It was mainly
due to the increase of revenue in the property sales. The profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately RMB482.2
million as compared with a loss of approximately RMB114.6
million for the nine months ended 31 December 2018. Basic
earnings per share was RMB9.70 cents (nine months ended
31 December 2018: basic loss per share of RMB2.57 cents).
The contracted property sales of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 was achieved approximately RMB3,173.4
million with contracted gross floor area (“GFA") of
approximately 317,137 square meters (“sq.m"), representing
an increase of 53.6% in contracted sales and 38.0% in
contracted GFA as compared with the nine months ended 31
December 2018.

REVIEW OF THE PERIOD

Following a very substantial acquisition completed in January
2019, the Group had successfully expanded its property
development and property investment business into new
regional markets in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Group believes that with the qualification of Class 1 Real
Estate Development Enterprise attained by Fuzhou Gaojia,
this acquisition can enhance the scope of the property
development projects in which the Group is allowed to
participate in the future. The Board is also of the view that
this acquisition provides a solid foundation for the Group to
diversify its property development and property investment
business into different regions in the PRC and strengthen the
earnings and financial position of the Group.
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the outbreak of the COVID-19 in 2020
brought uncertainties and challenges to the global economy.
The Group is cautiously optimistic about the economy and
property market in the PRC in the long run. The management
will actively continue to look for investment opportunities in
relation to the real estate business in the PRC and maintain
a policy of selectively and continuously replenishing our land
bank, so as to enhance our overall competitiveness and lay a
solid foundation for the Group’s long term development. The
management believes that the Group is well-poised for the
challenges ahead and is determined to strive for higher returns
to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our valued
customers, suppliers and business associates for their
invaluable contributions and support. | also want to express
my gratitude to our management team and all staff of the
Group for their hard work during the year under review. Last
but not least, | am most grateful to our shareholders for their
continuous support and confidence.

Guo Jiadi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 April 2020

Chairman’s Statement

ETRBES

a2z

==

REXRRK T _TFJZEMHCOVID-195
IR B R HETE M R PR B o AN E ¥k
BREEEREMGIFEELEBLEE -
EIEEBBEGEEFRS AT EEMEXK
FANEERE WRBUEREBEREE T
THEE ARABREREFHIMNELAEE
REFRETBREER -EEEMREASE
B 2 A - R R RPKE - RO AR
RERERODR-

il

&)

AABRREFERIATF HEBALEE
BRHNEERER A TRHAKE
EEEKNMMEEL TAFERENTE
THEe&& AAB D BRABROTES
ISR

e
2B hn3@
BE —FT-FTFHNATER

E =R ARA R

201958 5




6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
a total revenue of approximately RMB1,941.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,576.6 million
compared with the nine months ended 31 December 2018.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB482.2 million as compared with a loss of approximately
RMB114.6 million for the nine months ended 31 December
2018. Basic earnings per share was RMB9.70 cents (nine
months ended 31 December 2018: basic loss per share of
RMB2.57 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development, and
holding of property for investment and rental purpose.

Property development

Following the completion of a very substantial acquisition in
January 2019 and several acquisitions during the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group has added multiple quality
property development projects to its portfolio and successfully
expanded its business into new regional markets in the PRC.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 12 property projects
under development which are situated in different cities in
the PRC, key cities included Shanghai, Fuzhou, and Xian. The
Group primarily focuses on the development of residential
properties, as well as residential and commercial complex
properties, product types including apartments, offices, retail
shops and villas, etc.

Contracted property sales

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group achieved
contracted sales of approximately RMB3,173.4 million with
contracted GFA of approximately 317,137 sg.m, representing
an increase of 53.6% in contracted sales and 38.0% in
contracted GFA as compared with the nine months ended 31
December 2018. Such increase is mainly contributed from the
new projects launched for pre-sales during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥ oEE e

Contracted property sales (continued) BRYEHEE (8)

The table below illustrates the contracted sales (stated before TRIWREKEREHE T — j1$-|— ﬂ
the deduction of applicable taxes) achieved by the Group for =t BIEFEZEHHER (1K

the year ended 31 December 2019: THIERT) ¢

Contracted Sales for the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NE+-AZ+-HLFERNHE

Percentage
Contracted of total
Contracted Contracted average contracted Group
sales GFA  selling price sales interest
ANHE S-1.
AHHESE ANBREER AHTYERE ag Ei
Property projects Type RMB’000 (sq.m.) RMB/sg.m % %
NxER L<Fid AR%TR (FHK) AR%/FHK ARt BAk
Shaanxi Province
REE
Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian  Residential/Commercial 1,054,385 69,453 14,375 332 100
Sandi i/ m%
FZ =i o fT AR
Sandi Century New City Residential/Commercial 889,073 140,882 6,175 28.0 100
SRt fte/m%
ijian Province
BRE
WL%Bhan Sandi New Times Square  Residential 469,186 42,060 11,155 14.8 60
L = RS =z
Xicheng Fengdan Residential/Commercial 397,916 33,637 11,514 125 51
P8 A ffz/H%
Shanghai
L
Sandi Manhattan Commercial 186,754 3,768 49,563 59 100
SHERE [EES
Others R\esidenLiaI/Commercial 176,062 27,337 6,440 5.6
Eth ffz/m%
Total 3,173,376 317,137 9,736 100.0
e
Attributable to the Group 2,739,334 274,711
AEEEE
Notes: BfaE -
() Contracted sales and the calculation of contracted average () AHEELELAYTFHEBRERAN
selling price are based on the sales revenue before the MR R/igﬁf/ﬁl&ﬁf@MﬂJDfRIEZ%%
deduction of business/value-added tax and other surcharges/ WAMEZETE -

taxes.

(i) Contracted sales and GFA attributable to the car parking spaces (il BWENFEMNALNEESERBRERE
are excluded in the contracted GFA and contracted average FEEEA N EREERERANTHER
selling price calculation. a a

e
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E - IEl-CNE )
Property under development BREPYE
The table below summaries the major property development TEBHRERR _ZE—NLE+=A
projects of the Group as at 31 December 2019: —t—BZEFEWEBRIER:
Completed
BRI
Expected Planned GFA
completion Saleable GFA GFA available GFA under for future Group's
dates Site area  delivered/pre-sold for sale development development interest
BXH/
it RETHE e BRY BREHE r5E
TIFH THER BEEE BEER BEER BEER i
Property projects sg.m. sqm sq.m sq.m sq.m. %
NxER Eh*k FiK FhR Fhk SN ERrs
Shaanxi Province
KEE
Sandi Century New City 2021 235,080 834,419 - 319,090 221,481 100
= htt 3
Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan ¢ Xian Sandi 2022 124,304 129,022 18,346 283,370 42,269 100
BR=d e IR
Yunding Fengdan 2022 52,867 - - 124,753 28,181 100
ZEED
Fujian Province
BEE
Wauyishan Sandi New Times Square 2022 168,669 - - 180,986 - 60
RRW=EHERES
Xicheng Fengdan 2020 66,707 - - 120,739 - 51
AR
Jiangshan Waterfront 2021 310,176 - - 94,949 91,090 100
LIk
Xishanyuan 2022 177,010 - - - 96,449 100
Rk
Yungu Fengdan 2022 57,813 - - 149,942 - 100
EREM
Fuzhou Fengdan Yazhu 2021 58,169 - - 160,700 - 100
B ARE
Nanping Fengdan Yazhou 2022 57,813 - - - 150,000 51
R ERaY 2
Shanghai
Lt
Sandi Manhattan 2020 104,251 88,672 4,640 181,592 - 100
ZHERE
Jilin Province
EE
Shouchuang International Plaza 2021 30,313 970 - 139,599 - 51
BEIERES
Total 1,443,172 1,053,083 22,986 1,755,720 629,470
@
Attributable to the Group 1,299,836 1,052,607 22,986 1,555,760 555,970
REEER

Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property under development (continued)

Notes:

(i)  The table above includes properties for which the Group has
obtained the relevant land use rights certificate(s) but has not
obtained the requisite construction permits or the Group has
received the confirmation letter on bidding of granting land use
rights but in progress to obtain the land use right certificate(s).
The figures for “GFA available for sale”, “GFA under
development” and “Planned GFA for future development”
are based on figures provided in the relevant governmental
documents, such as the property ownership certificates, the
construction work planning permits, the pre-sale permits,
the construction land planning permits or the land use rights
certificate. The categories of information are based on our
internal records.

(i)  The figures of “Saleable GFA pre-sold” and “GFA available
for sale” include saleable GFA of car parks lot; the figures
of “GFA under development” and “Planned GFA for future
development” also include non-saleable GFA such as ancillary
area.

(iii)  “GFA available for sale” and “GFA under development” and
“Planned GFA for future development” are derived from the
Group’s internal records and estimates.

The following sections provide further details of the
development progress of major ongoing projects of the Group.

1) Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi

Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan Xian Sandi is a residential
project located in Qujiang New District in Xian City,
which is a new urban development zone designated
for promoting the cultural and tourism industry. The
project occupies a site area of approximately 124,304
sg.m in total and divided into 3 phases in development,
each phase mainly comprised high-rise apartments with
ancillary facilities.

EEENWR DM

¥ IO (2)

BREFYER ()
Bt et

() LEREF/EAEECBUSHEBRLMERES
18 14 RERIS 24 2 Ve TRF A 8 2 P A
SECWBERE T L ERENRIRE
R BIEERUS Db BRERE - [FIftH
EREZENE]  [BRPEZEREI R
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AT Bk PR - B RHERIEERN
H IR A ERRC 8% -

(iy [MEREEEBERE RIAHEER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property under development (continued)

1)

1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Qujiang Xiangsong Fengdan e Xian Sandi (continued)

Phase 1 consists of two zones. Zone A consists of 3
blocks of residential buildings with certain retail units
and was completed in 2017. They are mostly delivered
to the buyers since then. Zone B consists of 2 blocks
of residential buildings and a kindergarten and was
completed in 2019. Pre-sales for Phase 1 had commenced
since 2015 and the contracted sales amount of
approximately RMB60.2 million was recorded during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Phase 2 and Phase 3 are currently under construction and
scheduled to complete in 2021 and 2022, respectively.
Pre-sales for Phase 2 had commenced since 2017 and
Phase 3 had launched for pre-sales in September 2018
after pre-sales permits were granted for 2 blocks of
residential buildings. During the year ended 31 December
2019, Phase 2 and Phase 3 achieved the contracted sales
amount of approximately RMB39.9 million and RMB954.3
million, respectively.

¥ OE s
BERYE(F)
1) PARR=id e g ;TGS (&)

F1HBPEMERS  ARBRE=ERE
EEFRETEEEM R —+t
FRI - RZHEMNTERXRNTTE
ReBEBIEMEEEEF K —EL
FER R NFREI-F—HH
BEEEE T —AFEHK BEE—
T-NAF+_A=+—HIFEHK
BHAEHHEERTELH ARE60,200,000
5% 0

F2HAFIE3HE AT EEERF - WAt
AR B —FN_T - —F5%
T-F2HMBEEE T —tFH#
- MESHNEFREETEEF N
BE-_E—NFLAESBEEHFIE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (KO (#)

Property under development (continued) BREBYE (B)

2)  Sandi Century New City 2) ZHtAIETH
Sandi Century New City is located in Jintai district, SRR RAREETE A
Baoji City, Shannxi Province, involving a site area of [& - {5 E & 4235,080F 75 K K #E 52
235,080 sq.m planned for residential and commercial EEMEFEERE - HHR834,419F K
development of which 834,419 sq.m GFA was completed MBS R T 540,571 F HKE
and 540,571 sq.m GFA is under construction which SEBEEE BHER-_ZE-—F3%
is expected to be completed in 2021. During the year IT-HEZ-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2019, the contracted sales amount HFEE CERANBEEENARE
of approximately RMB889.1 million was achieved. 889,100,0007T °

ME=EERARAT  2019F#H 1 1




Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENB®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property under development (continued)

3)

1 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Wuyishan Sandi New Times Square

The project situated at 4 kilometres west of Da Hong
Pao Scenic Area (a PRC National 4A-level scenic spot),
Wuyishan City, Fujian Province, with a total site area of
168,669 sg.m, and is planned to develop into low-density
residential properties with a commercial complex.

Construction work commenced in July 2018 and the
project is expected to be completed in 2022. The first and
second phases of residential properties were launched for
pre-sales following its sales permit granted in November
2018 and contracted sales amount of approximately
RMB469.2 million were recorded during the year ended
31 December 2019.

¥ OE s
BERYE(F)

3)

REL = #HFEHERES

ZEBMNREEZRERELTALES
B (FEERIAG S E) AN AR
B A5 FE168,669F J7 K - W Et
LHBERARZEETEWE  VEREED

3 = A EE
HEZAE-

BEEIRER_ZE—N\ELAER"
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= +—HIEFESBEHNHEEEOHA
R #469,200,0007T




Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENR®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥ oEE e

Property under development (continued) BREBYE (B)

4)  Sandi Manhattan 4) ZHESRE
Sandi Manhattan is situated in the prime location of SHEREMR BN IEES M
Shanghai Songiang District, involving a site area of EX - (R EIFE104,251F 73K - i —
104,251 sq.m planned for a mixed-use development BireBERBEER—EHQAKLES
complex and an office and shopping complex of which RATEER  EFRO3312F A KEEE
93,312 sq.m GFA was completed. 181,592 sq.m GFA is BETI181,592F FKELME
under construction which is expected to be completed FERFZFR FHER T _ZTF5%
in 2020. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the IT-BEZ_Z-—AF+_A=+—H
contracted sales amount of approximately RMB186.8 LFEE BEERGHHEEBFOARE
million was achieved. 186,800,0007T °

ME=EERARAT  2019F#H 1 3




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property under development (continued)

5)  Jiangshan Waterfront

Jiangshan Waterfront is located in Yong Tai Country of
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, sitting alongside Dazhang
Brook with a total site area of approximately 310,176
sg.m. It is planned to be developed into a various
terrace houses and low-rise apartment buildings which
is scheduled to be completed by 2021. The project had
been launched for pre-sales by phrases since 2018 and
contracted sales amount of approximately RMB48.2
million were recorded during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Land bank replenishment

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a land bank portfolio
sufficient to support the Group’s own development pipeline for
the next few years. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a
quality land bank amounting to a total GFA of approximately
2,408,000 sg.m, of which approximately 2,135,000 sgq.m were
attributable to the owners of the Company.

1 4 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

¥ OE s
BERYE(F)

5) JLKE
THKFARERERB/MMKRE -
BB AR - 4B FE495310,176
FHAK HEBERAZS R HERIZE
FEEBAE B8R _ZT-—F%
T-ZEBEB-_ZE—N\FROKE
EE YREE-_Z—NAFE+_-A
Zt+—HIEFESHBAHNHEEEHA
R #48,200,0007T °

T AT

REE R R AR B AR AR EE KRR
BEBRR I HHEFEEAG - R _FT—NF
T-A=1T—H AEEHEHEEERR
#)2,408,000°F 7 KV EE L b - H P
#)2,135,000°F T KR ER AR RIZEB A ©




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (KO &)
Land bank replenishment (continued) TR ERT (&)
The table below summaries the landbank by location as at 31 TRBMA-—ZE—AF+_A=+—H8HH
December 2019: R0 [ & 5 B - R
Attributable
Total GFA GFA
MEEEE REBLHEAeEREER
(‘000 sq.m.) (000 sq.m.)
Landbank by location R @ E DK LA (FEHK) (FEFHK)
Shannxi Province =y 1,037 1,037
Fujian Province w|EE 1,045 841
Shanghai apis! 186 186
Jilin Province B 140 71
Total @ 2,408 2,135

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group has acquired the land use rights of two land parcels
located in Fuzhou City, Fujian Province and Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC through public auction at a total
consideration of approximately RMB839.5 million for a total
site area of approximately 66,030 sq.m.

Hotel Operation

Revenue from hotel operation amounted to approximately
RMB28.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (nine
months ended 31 December 2018: approximately RMB19.1
million), which was derived from hotel accommodation and
catering service provided by three hotels operated in Baoji,
namely Ramada Baoji Jintai (B =#ZEXEFH/E), Pesht
Boutique Hotel Baoji (B # =@M AT @AE/E) and Jinjiang
Inn, Baoji Administration Center (88T 228 ZTHF/L\E)
(collectively, the “Baoji Hotels").

In order to secure a stable stream of income, in December
2019, the Group had leased the Baoji Hotels to an

independent hotel management company who also acts as
the exclusive operator to direct and manage the operation of
the Baoji Hotels effective from January 2020. After this lease
arrangement, the Group is entitled to receive hotel rental
income for a term of 10 years. Accordingly, the Group has
ceased to carry on hotel operations and stay focus on the
property development businesses.

REBEZ-_E—NF+_A=1+—BLFE
% AEBEERARAAEWRERIELZR
FEBEESBINT AT A INT B 2
B EFEX) 566,030 oK Z i #8 2 £+ b {F
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%’&E@ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁn}@)ﬁ&ﬁ}IZE%%’E??BZ
ROE (FE [EEEE]) ) REQBEE
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised rental income and property management and
related fee income of approximately RMB125.3 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2018: approximately RMB107.9
million), which is mainly generated by two furniture malls
situated in Fuzhou and Baoji. The Group’s investment
properties also include hotels, kindergarten, commercial and
office premise, which are all located in the PRC and provided a
stable income stream to the Group.

Following the lease arrangement of Baoji Hotels in December
2019, the Group’'s investment properties now included 6
hotels properties with GFA of approximately 111,800 sq.m
in aggregate, which comprise international brand hotels and
domestic brand chain hotels. Apart from the Baoji Hotels
aforesaid, the Group currently had two leased hotel properties
in Fuzhou which are managed by the hotel’s lessee, namely,
Ramada Plaza Fuzhou (f@IN=#ZEXZEREHH/E) and
DoubleTree by Hilton Fuzhou South (& & = i %5 &R 18 3= 4K
JBJE) , and a hotel under development in Shanghai namely,
Hyatt Regency Songjiang, Shanghai ( E/@TEEE),
which is expected to be completed in 2020.

EKERE e

MERE
HE-_ZT—NWF+-_A=+—HLEFE"
REBRERESWRAULDEESIE LB
BRIKALARK125,300,0007T (B ZE =
T-NF+ZA=+—HIEAEA LA
K #107,900,0007T) r E*EEA BN @
MEBEHAMRREE S AEEREY
¥NBEMATBEOBE - HRE - HER
MAE  WAAREEREZRTEWAR-

BEER_E-NET_ABHEENAE
ZHE - AEBNREYMERBRERAEY
¥ O BEEEBELA111,800F FK  He
B 15 B R an 8B 5 K B A o b 538 SR JE o
Br Eall B #H 5 SN ANEE B RIER N
EMRBEEBEYE (RBEARALS)
(BlfEM =R BEREMNE =
BEBERMWEE) ARMLR EEHN—FK
EE R (B BT ESE) @ Fast
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Investment (continued)

Sets out below were the major investment properties held by
the Group as at 31 December 2019:

¥OE s
MRRE (4)
TEHNAEBR -_E—AE+-A

ST HRAZEEREYE:

Existing/ Approximate Group's
Location Intended use GFA interest
BE/
vE RERR BRREER KEEA R
(sq.m) (%)
(FAK) (%)
Completed investment properties
ERIRENE
Sandi Furniture Plaza, No.173 Gongye Road, Yizhou Street, Taijiang District, Shopping Mall 113,252 100%
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC
hERRERMT A IERMNEEIER 3R axERES BWEs
Various blocks, Sandi Kaixuan Fengdan, No.202 Minjiang Avenue, Cangshan Commercial/ 13,308 100%
District, Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC Hotel
hEREERMMER T A LI KE2025% Sl el /5 TiE
mE/BE
Red Star Macalline, Block 196 No. 8 Bao Guo Road Jin Tai District, Baoji City, ~ Shopping Mall 63,643 100%
Shaanxi Pro!ince, the PRC
PEREEEEN S R E RS 196E AL 2 K55 BWa5
Sandi Plaza, Block 186 No. 8 Bao Guo Road Jin Tai District, Baoji City, Shaanxi  Shopping Mall 63,125 100%
Province, the PRC
TEREEEET AR ERESK T 1860E = AE S BWEs
Ramada Hotel Block No. 184 No. 8 Bao Guo Road Jintai District, Baoji City, Hotel 15,181 100%
Shaanxi Province, the PRC
hEREAEEET A RERESRITISMBERERE BE
Pesht Boutique, Block No. 25 No. 8 Bao Guo Road Jintai District, Baoji City, Hotel 13,520 100%
Shaanxi Province, the PRC
PEREEEED S 0 R E R F25E WA mEE BE
Jinjiang Inn, Block No. 18 No. 8 Bao Guo Road lintai District, Baoji City, Hotel 7,094 100%
Shaanxi Proyinge, the PRC
TEREAEET S A RE TSR 18RI 2EE BIE
Investment properties under construction
ERRENZE
Fuzhou Sandi Chuangfu Square Zone B, Fuxia Road, Cangshan District, Commercial/ 49,237 100%
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, the PRC Hotel
hEREERMTAILRBUGER AN K E A =#EE B5BE mE/EE
Lot N5, No.11 Zhongshan Street Neighourhood, Congjiang District, Commercial/ 59,293 100%
Shanghgai, the PRC Hotel
FEEETINTRAIUEBNES NS 2 R R mE/BE

E =R ARA R
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Other investments

Our other investments include investing surplus cash from
operations in listed equity securities in Hong Kong. We have
invested in listed high yield stocks with growth potentials. The
objectives of these investments are to strike a balance between
risk and return in order to maximise return to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”).

The equity securities acquired are principally for short term
investment purpose. The Group would closely monitor
performances of the mentioned investments and will seek
for disposal opportunities for profit if any. Our principal
business is still engaged in property development, property
investment and hotel operation business and thus we will
continue to proactively take up opportunities in real estate
market. Therefore, the Group would consider disposing or
downsizing the existing listed-equities investment portfolio
when the Group has funding needs for expanding the property
development business in the future.

Significant events during the year

(i) Very substantial acquisition and connected
transaction — Acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of All Excel Industries Limited (“All
Excel”) involving issue of consideration shares
and convertible bonds under specific mandate

On 21 September 2018, Grand Supreme Limited
("Grand Supreme”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as purchaser), Primary Partner International
Limited (“Primary Partner”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability which is
wholly held by Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), a Director and
a controlling Shareholder (as vendor) and Mr. Guo (as
guarantor) (the “Guarantor”) entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which Grand Supreme has conditionally
agreed to acquire, and Primary Partner has conditionally
agreed to sell the entire issued share capital in All Excel
at the consideration of HK$1,500 million, which shall
be satisfied as to HK$200 million by way of cash, as to
HK$600 million by way of the issue of promissory note,
as to HK$200 million by the issue of 485,436,893 shares
of the Company and as to HK$500 million by the issue of
convertible bonds, and the Guarantor has conditionally
agreed to guarantee the performance by Primary Partner
of its obligations thereunder.

¥ OE s

Hinizg

KN EMEERENLEY B RAKE
ARBHBZ FTRAES  RFARED L
THEERRAREENNRE - ZER
BB IS 2 RGN E 3R S T
BARATIRE (TRE])ERBERR -

WERAZEFTZEFEHRERE KK
BRENER PR EZRE WS K
HERS RN (NF) - BANTEXRR
MRMERR MERESBELEX
R PR A B BRI EFHETS - Bt -
EAEBRRBRVEZREGLRES
FE ASEREELEXBARE LT
BRALERA

rXEEEXRSER

(i) EBEAKBEARBEXRSZ-K
BEEEXBERIA ([2E]) 22
BMERITRA FRREFFRE
RITREKROR TRKES

RZE-—NFhLAZ-+—8B &R
Az 2 &M B8 A F)Grand Supreme
Limited ([ Grand Supreme | ({E&E
77) ) ~Primary Partner International
Limited ([Primary Partner ] - & —
REBRZHEESIMKIZBERA
A HRESRERR R I ML E
(I BEENZ2EHEB) (EREH)
REREAE (TERERA) (THERAD)
1S W% Bt Grand SupremeE B
1§14 [B) B U B8 K Primary Partner2 &
BHEREHEE2ER 2 E2HMEEHITR
A {8 /1,500,000,0007 7T E
200,000,000/ 7T # @ @R & <
600,000,000/ TT # @B BT E HL T
& 2+ 200,000,000 T 5 i i@ 2
17485,436,893/% A& 1 Al i 15 > 1+ I
500,000,0005% 7T 1 i i@ 2% 17 0] #2 A%
EBEHEIZM URERARBEREERE
PE{RPrimary Partner/B 1T H R %18
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Significant events during the year (continued)

(i)

(i)

Very substantial acquisition and connected
transaction — Acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of All Excel Industries Limited
(“All Excel”) involving issue of consideration
shares and convertible bonds under specific
mandate (continued)

The acquisition was approved at the Company’s special
general meeting held on 16 January 2019. Upon the
completion of the acquisition, All Excel has become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
acquisition was completed on 30 January 2019 and the
financial results of All Excel and its subsidiaries were
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 21 September 2018, 16 January 2019
and 30 January 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated 26 December 2018, respectively.

Share transaction and connected transaction -
Acquisition of 49% equity interest in Wuyishan
Gaojia Real Estate Development Company Limited
(“Wuyishan Gaojia”)

On 28 June 2019, Fuzhou Gaojia Real Property
Development Company Limited (“Fuzhou Gaojia”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser)
and Nanping Huiteng Trade Co., Ltd (“Nanping Huiteng”,
as vendor) entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Fuzhou Gaojia conditionally agreed
to purchase, and Nanping Huiterng conditionally
agreed to sell, the 49% equity interest in Wuyishan
Gaojia and the shareholder loan at the consideration of
RMB55 million, which shall be satisfied by the issue of
135,869,565 shares of the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) to the vendor at an issue price of HK$0.46 per
Consideration Share. The Consideration Shares were
issued on 25 July 2019 and the Acquisition was then
completed on the same day. Upon the completion,
Wuyishan Gaojia had become an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 28 June 2019, 10 July 2019 and 25 July
2019, respectively.

EEENWR DM

¥OE s
KEEEAEER (&)

(i)

(i)

HFEEAWBEERBAEXRXS - K
BEREXERIA ([2E]) 22
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E - IEl-CNE )
Significant events during the year (continued) REEEKREE (&)

(iii) Discloseable and connected transaction - (i) AFHEERBEX S NE

20 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Power Success Development Incorporated
(“Power Success”)

On 26 July 2019, Grand Supreme, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) and Top
Trendy Holdings Limited (“Top Trendy”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability which is wholly held by Mr. Guo, a Director
and controlling Shareholder (as vendor) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Grand Supreme conditionally agreed to acquire, and
Top Trendy conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital in Power Success at a cash consideration of
RMB243,670,000.

The acquisition was completed on 28 November 2019
after it was approved at the Company’s special general
meeting held on the same day.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 26 July 2019, 28 November 2019 and
the circular of the Company dated 8 November 2019,
respectively.

Power Success Development
Incorporated ([ Power
Success |) 22 HERTRA
RZFE—-NFLtAZ+ B XA
Az 2= &M B8 A F)Grand Supreme
(fEAE 7 ) HETop Trendy Holdings
Limited ([Top Trendy ) (— %
REBEZBESIMALZAR KA
EERERREDEEZEESR)
(ERERFTVEEHZ Kt
Grand SupremeZ {64+ [ U8 K Top
Trendy B 14 {4 [F] & H & Power Success
ZEMEBITRA ReRER/AR
#243,670,0007T °

WEEHER -_F-HL&FE+—A
“TNBEK ERAREREE R
TTZBEREFRIANE L4t -

E—THBORERARR YA
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BEEENR®R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) (KO &)
Significant events during the year (continued) REEEKREE (&)

(iv) Discloseable transaction - Disposal of 37% equity (iv) BEFHEXG HEALZERE

interest in Xian Zhichengda Real Estate Company
Limited (“Xian Zhichengda”)

On 4 October 2019, Fujian Sinco Industrial Co., Ltd
("Fujian Sinco”) and Grand International Development
Company Limited (“Grand International”), both being
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company (as vendors),
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Xian
Chongfeng Real Estate Company Limited (“Chongfeng
Real Estate”, as purchaser), pursuant to which Fujian
Sinco and Grand International conditionally agreed to
sell, and Chongfeng Real Estate conditionally agreed to
purchase the aggregate equity interest of 37% in Xian
Zhichengda at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB362,328,000. The transaction was completed in
November 2019 and the Group had ceased to have any
interest in Xi'an Zhichengda since then.

Further details are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 4 October 2019 and 9 October 2019,
respectively.

EXERAA([BELERE])Z
37%RE

R-ZZE—NAF+ANB w®ELRE
¥ARAA([BELAR]) REKE
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OUTLOOK

At the beginning of the year 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak
is likely to cloud the global economic sentiment. However,
the Group is confident to the future development of the
PRC economy arising from China’s further opening-up and
reforms over the long term. The Group is also positive in the
PRC government’s stabilisation policy which is important to
accelerate the development of the domestic economic system
of China. Moreover, the reduction of loan prime rate (“LPR")
has played a key role in stabilising economic development, as
well as the real estate industry. It will play a positive role in
stabilising the market confidence in the real estate market.

As the capital city of Shaanxi province in the PRC, Xi'an
is one of the three international metropolises and the 9th
Regional Central City of China designated by the PRC Central
Government. Besides, Xi‘an is a transport hub and open
frontier. It is an important fulcrum city on the “One Belt One
Road” initiative, and the central city in the west of the China
section of the New Eurasian Continental Bridge. Baoji, one
of the cities in Shannxi province, is aimed to accelerate in
promoting as an internationalized city for living in terms of city
infrastructure, historical and cultural, technical and innovation,
etc., according to the 2018 “One Belt One Road” Construction
Action Plan of Baoji. Fujian is not only the main starting point
of the ancient maritime Silk Road, but also is a core area of
the “21st Century Maritime Silk Road” on the “One Belt One
Road” initiative. Shanghai is aimed to maximize the impact of
existing policies to better serve demands from countries and
regions involved in the “One Belt One Road” initiative in the
aspects including trade and financing, cultural exchanges. This
should support and provide the new business opportunities
and we anticipate the economy in both Xian, Baoji, Fujian
and Shanghai will continue to generate sustained growth. The
Group will continue to deepen its development projects in
Shaanxi province, Fujian province and Shanghai city, and we
will strategically expand our geographical coverage, enhance
our regional and provincial penetrations in the PRC real estate
market.

In a view of creating the maximum value for customers,
Shareholders, employees and society, the Group will continue
to drive the diversified channels for the land acquisition and
proactively look into various opportunities in the property
investment sector to expand its operating scale for continuous
development and accomplishing sustainable growth in the
years ahead.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from property sales,
which contributed approximately 92.1% of the revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The table below sets forth the
breakdown of the Group’s revenue by operating segment as
indicated:

For the year ended 31
December 2019

EEENWR DM

CEXRERMBOE

A
AEBZBAETZRERMDEREEWA 15
BE_T-NF+_A=+t—"HLEHFEZ
WA#IN2.1% - FERBIIZEZ D& D
NS N ONEE

For the nine months ended
31 December 2018

BE-Z-1¥F BE—_T-N\%
+tZA=+—-BLEE +TZA=+t—BILAEA
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARMF T % AREFT %
Property sales MEIHE 1,787,352 92.1 238,008 65.2
Property investment MK E 125,269 6.4 107,929 29.6
Hotel operation B JE & E 28,944 1.5 19,111 5.2
1,941,565 100.0 365,048 100.0
Revenue from property sales PIEEHEIWA

The Group’s revenue from property sales increased to
approximately RMB1,787.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB238.0 million).

BHE-_ET—-NE+-_A=+—BHILEE-
AEBYEHEWRARNEYDARE
1,787,400,0007C (Bi=2 = — N\F+=AH
=+—HIEAMEA : ¥ AR%238,000,000
JL) °

E =R ARA R
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL EEXENPKEOE &)
REVIEW (continued)
Revenue from property sales (continued) MEHERA (&)
The table below summarises the revenue from property sales TERBMEE—"FT-NAF+-_A=+—H
for the year ended 31 December 2019: IEFEZMEHEERA
Average Percentage
Sales selling of total
revenue GFA price amount
hLEEH
HEWA BEEE FHEE ZBEDH
Property projects Type RMB’000 (sg.m) RMB/sq.m %
AR/
YxER E<Eid) ARBFT (FFHXK) F 5K %
Shaanxi Province
REHE
Sandi Century New City Residential 1,175,868 220,099 5,225 65.8
=t R =
Quijiang Xiangsong Fengdan Residential
e Xian Sandi 578,376 55,388 9,889 32.4
Fa % = it e il )T & 1818 T F=x
Fujian Province
B
Sandi Kaixuan Fengdan Residential 23,867 1,308 18,254 1.3
= sl et T F=x
Others Residential/Commercial 9,241 1,017 8,142 0.5
A FE /%
Total st 1,787,352 277,812 6,230 100.0
Notes: Bt et -
Sales revenue amount and the calculation of average price are i MEIM A SER EHEBHEEERDEH
based on the sales revenue after the deduction of business/ MRS IS ER R E MM N E 7 s E
value-added tax and other surcharges/taxes. WA 4EXEETE o
ii. GFA and sales revenue attributable to the car parking spaces i EEMNMEEM AR ENREmBENLY
and the compensation areas are excluded in the GFA sold and EWATBEECEEEMELTFHERE
the average selling price calculation. HERo
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Revenue from property investment

Revenue from property investment including rental income
and property management and related fee income amounted
to approximately RMB125.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB107.9 million), which was derived from the
Group's investment properties situated in the PRC, including
shopping malls, commercial buildings and kindergartens.

Revenue from hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operation for the year ended 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately RMB28.9 million (nine
months ended 31 December 2018: approximately RMB19.1
million), which was derived from hotel accommodation and
catering service provided by the Group’s hotels operated in
Baoji, the PRC.

Cost of properties sales

The Group's cost of properties sales increased to approximately
RMB1,284.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
(nine months ended 31 December 2018: approximately
RMB198.4 million). The increase was primarily attributable to
the increase in the total GFA of properties delivered during
the year ended 31 December 2019 compared with the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, which led to the increase in
the cost of properties sales.

EEENWR DM
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Change in fair value on investment properties and
upon transfer to investment properties

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognised
a net fair value gain of approximately RMB19.7 million on its
investment properties (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
net fair value gain of approximately RMB63.7 million).

In addition, following a change of purpose of certain
properties during the year, the Group had reclassified certain
investment properties which previously classified as property,
plant and equipment, properties under development and
inventories of properties. As a result, an increase in fair value
of approximately RMB382.1 million was recognised to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and an increase in fair
value of approximately RMB943.4 million was recognised to
properties revaluation reserve during the year (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: Nil).

Change in fair value of derivative components of
convertible bonds

During the year, the Group recognised a fair value loss of
approximately RMB9.3 million on the derivative components
of the convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$500
million, issued to Mr. Guo on 30 January 2019 as the
consideration for acquisition of All Excel. For further
details about the acquisition, please refer to note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section of
“Management and Discussion Analysis” in this report. The
derivative components of the convertible bonds represented
the conversion option to convert into shares of the Company
and early redemption option before its maturity date on 30
January 2024, which are classified as derivative financial
instrument and measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

EEXENUKLOE®)

REVERBZERENEZAZLATFESE
B
HE_ZT—NF+-A=+—HLFE"
AEBRREREDNEN A FEKT FE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Gain on disposal of an associate and share of result of
an associate

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised a gain on disposal of an associate of approximately
RMB151.4 million which was resulted from the disposal of
Xian Zhichengda, which was owned as to 37% by the Group,
completed in November 2019. Such gain represents the
difference between the sales proceed and the carrying amount
of the equity interest in Xian Zhichengda.

Share of loss of Xian Zhichengda for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately RMB11.6 million
before its disposal (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
loss of approximately RMBO.6 million).

Other gains and losses

The Group recognised a net other gains of approximately
RMB125.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
(nine months ended 31 December 2018: net other losses of
approximately RMB45.5 million), which is mainly attributed to
the gain on disposal of an associate as mentioned above.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately RMB23.5 million from approximately RMB81.0
million for the nine months ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB104.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, which was mainly due to the increase in sales
commission recognised during the year.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB41.1 million from approximately RMB102.4
million for the nine months ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB143.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019. The increase was primarily attributable to the
overall increase in staff cost and depreciation of right-of-use
assets after the adoption of new lease standard.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest expenses on bank and other
borrowings, bonds payable, convertible bonds, promissory
note, contract liabilities and lease liabilities. The finance costs
amounted to approximately RMB139.4 million (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: approximately RMB37.3 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in finance
cost was attributable to the convertible bonds and promissory
note issued in January 2019.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense mainly comprises the PRC enterprise
income tax and land appreciation tax amounted to
approximately RMB255.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 (nine months ended 31 December 2018:
approximately RMB44.0 million). The substantial increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales of properties
recognised during the year.

Investments in securities

As at 31 December 2019, the investment portfolio
comprises 2 equity securities (2018: 4 equity securities) with
carrying amount of approximately RMB24.9 million (2018:
approximately RMB60.6 million) listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The carrying amount of these investments is equal
to its fair values, which are determined by reference to the
quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
unrealised fair value losses of approximately RMB30.4 million
(nine months ended 31 December 2018: approximately
RMB49.2 million) on these investments and a net realised
gain of approximately RMBO0.2 million (nine months ended
31 December 2018: Nil). The composition of the Group’s
investments portfolio as at 31 December 2019 is illustrated as
follow:
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

BEXENMKLOE®)

Investments in securities (continued) BEREE)
Percentage of  Realised fair
shareholdings value gain/  Unrealised fair ~ Fair value at
at 31 December  (loss) for the  value loss for 31 December
2019 year the year 2019
R=B-1#%
tZh R=Z-n%
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Atk WE/(B8) AYEER ZDTE
Company name/(stock code) Notes % RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
LAER/ (RARRK) i3 % AEEFT ARETTL ARETIL
Kingston Financial Group Limited ~ £F|EREBERAR (1031) ()
(1031) 0.23% - (29,870) 22,885
EverChina Int'l Holdings Company B EIEZIRE B A (202) (i
Limited (202) 0.14% - (494) 2,004
Far East Holdings International EREREEAERAT (36) (iii)
Limited (36) - (1,728) - -
Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) (iv)
(444) Limited (444) - 1,967 - -
239 (30,364) 24,889
Notes Bt

SHLSBERERARN (LS

Kingston Financial Group Limited (“Kingston Financial”) is

principally engaged in the provision of a wide range of financial
services which include securities brokerage, underwriting
and placements, margin and initial public offering financing,
corporate finance advisory services, futures brokerage and asset
management services. Kingston Financial also provides gaming
and hospitality services in Macau.

Dividend income received from shares of Kingston Financial
was approximately RMBO0.4 million during the year ended 31
December 2019.

EverChina International Holdings Company Limited and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property investment
operation, hotel operation, financing and securities investment
operation and agricultural operation.
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
REVIEW (continued)

Investments in securities (continued)

Notes (continued)

iii.  Far East Holdings International Limited (“Far East Holdings") is
principally engaged in manufacturing and export of garment
products, property investment and investment in securities in
Hong Kong and PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group fully
disposed of 10,845,000 shares in Far East Holdings which led to
a realised loss of approximately RMB1.7 million.

iv.  Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sincere Watch”) is
principally engaged in distribution of branded luxury watcher,
timepieces and accessories in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and
the PRC, dining business and property investments.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group fully
disposed of 29,000,000 shares in Sincere Watch which led to a
realised gain of approximately RMB2.0 million.

V. None of these investments represented more than 1% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB4,229.9 million
denominated in RMB (2018: approximately RMB4,067.5
million denominated in RMB) and other debts comprising
convertible bonds, promissory note and bonds payable in total
amount to approximately RMB1,063.2 million denominate
in HK$ (2018: approximately RMB9.4 million denominated
in HK$). As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all bank and
other borrowings were secured with fixed interest rate.
The bank and other borrowings with maturities falling due
within one year, in the second year, in the third to the fifth
year, over five years amounted to approximately RMB619.5
million, RMB813.4 million, RMB1,938.0 million and RMB859.0
million, respectively (2018: approximately RMB2,675.7 million,
RMB727.9 million, RMB473.5 million and RMB190.4 million,
respectively). Further details of the bank and other borrowings,
convertible bonds, promissory note and bonds paybale are set
out in note 30, 34, 35 and 33 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements in this report.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB707.3 million (2018:
approximately RMB409.5 million) which were mainly
denominated in HK$ and RMB.

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio for the Group
was approximately 114.7% (2018: approximately 90.3%),
calculated based on the net debts (comprising bank and
other borrowings and other debts comprising convertible
bonds, promissory note and bonds payable less cash and
cash equivalent) of approximately RMB4,585.9 million (2018:
approximately RMB3,667.4 million) over the total equity of
approximately RMB3,999.5 million (2018: approximately
RMB4,061.0 million). The debt ratio was approximately 80.3%
(2018: approximately 77.5%), calculated as total liabilities over
total assets of the Group.

The Group’s current available liquidity resources are sufficient
to meet its capital commitments. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group’s net current assets amounted to approximately
RMB1,052.7 million (2018: net current liabilities approximately
RMB451.9million). The Group’s current ratio, being percentage
of its current assets and its current liabilities, amounted to
approximately 110.1% (2018: approximately 96.2%).

The Group continued to adopt a prudent funding and treasury
policy to manage its liquidity needs. The objective is to
maintain adequate funds for financing working capital and
capture investment opportunities as and when they become
available. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
Shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group and fund raising activities
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are summarised as
follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

3 2 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB4,229.9 million
(2018: approximately RMB4,067.5 million), of which
approximately RMB619.5 million are repayable within one
year and approximately RMB3,610.4 million are repayable
beyond one year. The Group’s bank and other borrowings
bear interest rates ranging from approximately 4.8% to
12.8% per annum. All the bank and other borrowings
were denominated in RMB.

Bonds payable

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had
a 4-year 7% coupon bonds with principal amount of
HK$11 million (the “7% Coupon Bonds”) issued to
certain independent third parties. The 7% Coupon Bonds
are denominated in HK$. Interest is payable semi-annually
and the principal had been fully repaid when the 7%
Coupon Bonds fell due on 23 July 2019. There is no early
redemption of the 7% Coupon Bonds neither by the
Company nor the 7% Coupon Bonds holders during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Promissory note

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had a 5-year
promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) with principal
amount of HK$600 million issued to Mr. Guo, a Director,
with interest of 3% per annum for the first and second
years after the date of issuance, 4.5% per annum for the
third and fourth years after the date of issuance and 6%
per annum for the fifth year after the date of issuance,
with interest payable annually in arrears and the principal
will be repaid when the Promissory Note fall due on 30
January 2024. The Promissory Note is denominated in
HK$. There was no early redemption of the Promissory
Note requested by the Company or Mr. Guo during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)
(iv) Convertible bonds

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had a 5-year
convertible bonds (the “CB”) with principal amount of
HK$500 million to Mr. Guo, a Director, with interest of
1% per annum payable annually in arrears and carrying
a conversion price of HK$0.412 per conversion share,
with conversion rights to convert into a maximum of
1,213,592,233 shares of the Company. The principal will
be repaid when the CB fall due on 30 January 2024 if
no conversion happens on or before 30 January 2024.
The CB are denominated in HK$. There was no early
redemption of the CB requested by the Company or Mr.
Guo during the year ended 31 December 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Except for investment in subsidiaries, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2019.

Save as the acquisitions of subsidiaries and disposal of an
associate disclosed in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section in this report, the Group had no other
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section in this report, there is no material subsequent event
undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE EQUITY
FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The use of the net proceeds from the equity fund raising
activities during the year are summarised as follows:

Issue of Warrant Shares

On 19 December 2017, a total of 312,500,000 shares of the
Company were allotted and issued to Beyond Steady Limited,
the warrant holder, raising gross proceeds of approximately
HK$75.0 million. The Group intends to apply the net proceeds
for general working capital, capital expenditures and future
investments.

Approximately HK$5.0 million was utilised as general working
capital, and approximately HK$70.0 million was utilised to
satisfy part of the investment costs in an associate during the
nine month ended 31 December 2018.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Detail of the pledged assets of the Group are set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had entered into agreements with certain banks to
provide guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group's properties. As at 31 December
2019, the Group provided guarantees for mortgage loans
in an amount of approximately RMB3,566.9 million (2018:
approximately RMB2,517.0 million) to banks in respect of
such agreements. Certain subsidiaries of the Group has
provided corporate guarantees amounting to approximately
RMB1,157.0 million (2018: approximately RMB1,339.3 million)
to certain financial institutions in respect of loan facilities
granted to certain companies that were indirectly wholly
owned or controlled by Mr. Guo or Ms. Shum Xi Xia, the
sister-in-law of Mr. Guo. In addition, certain subsidiaries of
the Group had also provided corporate guarantees amounting
to approximately RMB82.4 million (2018: approximately
RMB407.2 million) to certain financial institutions in respect
of loan facilities granted to certain independent third parties
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

COMMITMENTS

Detail of commitments of the Group are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements in this report.
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CHANGE OF PRESENTATION AND
FUNCTIONAL CURRENCIES

In prior financial periods, HK$ was regarded as the
presentation and functional currencies of the Company.

In the current year, the Company changed its presentation
currency for the preparation of its consolidated financial
statements from HK$ to RMB in order to allow for greater
transparency of the underlying performance of the Group as
the principal operations of the Group are conducted in the PRC
with substantially all of its businesses denominated and settled
in RMB. The Directors consider that it is more appropriate
to use RMB as the presentation currency in presenting
the operating results and financial positions of the Group.
Comparative financial information was presented in RMB
accordingly.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the functional
currency of the Company changed from HK$ to RMB upon
the completion of an acquisition of All Excel on 30 January
2019. Subsequent to the acquisition, the Company mainly
holds subsidiaries whose underlying operations are primarily in
the PRC with RMB being the currency that mainly influences
the Group’s underlying transactions, events and conditions.
The Directors are of the view that that RMB better reflects the
economic substance of the Company and its business activity
as an investment holding company primary holding subsidiaries
with primary economic environment in the PRC. Accordingly,
the functional currency of the Company was changed
prospectively from the date of acquisition.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the business operations in the PRC
and Hong Kong denominated in RMB and HK$, respectively.
The functional currency of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong as investment
holding companies or companies providing corporate services
to other group entities and its principal operating subsidiaries
in the PRC is RMB. The functional currency of certain of
the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong as
investment holding companies is HK$. As at 31 December
2019, the Group did not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of its foreign currency assets and liabilities.
The Group will closely monitor its foreign currency exposure
and will consider using hedging instruments in respect of
significant foreign currency exposure as and when appropriate.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no investment in any
financial derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or
currency swaps, hedging or other financial arrangements for
hedging purposes to reduce any currency risk nor made any
over-the-counter contingent forward transactions.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 795
employees (2018: 609 employees) of which 791 employees
(2018: 606 employees) were hired in the PRC and 4 employees
(2018: 3 employees) in Hong Kong. Total remuneration paid
to the employees for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately RMB87.8 million (nine months
ended 31 December 2018: approximately RMB53.0 million). In
addition to competitive remuneration package offered to the
employees, other benefits included contributions to mandatory
provident fund, as well as group medical and accident
insurance. On-going training sessions were also conducted to
enhance the competitiveness of the Group’s human assets.
The Company also maintains a share option scheme, pursuant
to which share options may be granted to the Directors,
executives and employees of the Company to provide them
with incentives in the growth of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuation on the Group’'s investment properties
located in the PRC as at 31 December 2019 had been carried
out by an independent qualified professional valuer, Ravia
Global Appraisal Advisory Limited. The property valuation
was used in preparing the annual results. The valuation was
based on direct capitalization approach by making reference
to comparable market information as available in the relevant
markets. For investment properties under development,
the valuation has also taken into account the construction
costs expended and to be expended to complete the
development. The Group’s investment properties were valued
at approximately RMB7,451.7 million as at 31 December 2019
(2018: approximately RMB4,693.1 million). A net fair value
gain of approximately RMB19.7 million and an increase in fair
value of approximately RMB382.1 million were recognised
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
(nine months ended 31 December 2018: net fair value gain of
approximately RMB63.7 million) and an increase in fair value of
approximately RMB943.4 million was recognised to properties
revaluation reserve during the year (nine months ended 31
December 2018: Nil).
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TEERBSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to date of this
report, the Company has complied with the code provisions
(the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviations from the Code
Provision A.2.1, A.6.7, E.1.2 and the Rule 3.28 and the Board
is committed to complying with the CG Code to the extent
that the Directors consider it to be practical and applicable to
the Company.

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasis
an effective Board, sound internal control, appropriate
independence policy, transparency and accountability to the
shareholders of the Company (“the Shareholders”). The Board
will continue to monitor and revise the Company’s corporate
governance policies in order to ensure that such policies may
meet the general rules and standards required by the Listing
Rules. The Board believes that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for sustainable growth
of the Group and for safeguarding the interests and the
Group’s assets. The Company had complied with the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 except for the
following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
should be segregated and not be exercised by the same
individual. The chairman is responsible for the corporate
strategic planning and formulation of corporate policies for
the Group, while the chief executive officer is responsible for
overseeing day-to-day management of the Group’s business.
Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”) currently serves as the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”). Up to date of this report,
no individual was appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company (the “CEO"). The day-to-day management of
the Group's business is monitored by the executive Directors
and senior management. Given the size the Group’s current
business operations and administration have been stable,
the Board is justified that the current structure is able to
effectively discharge the duties of both positions. However,
going forward, the Board will review from time to time the
need to separate the roles of the Chairman and the CEO if the
situation warrants it.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Code Provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the view of the Shareholders. Ms. Ma
Shujuan and Mr. Zheng Yurui, the independent non-executive
Directors, were unable to attend the special general meeting of
the Company held on 16 January 2019 due to other business
commitments. As an action plan to address the aforesaid
deviation, the Company will require all the independent non-
executive Directors to attend all future general meetings in
order to comply with the code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

Code Provision E.1.2

The code provision E.1.2 currently in force stipulates, among
other things, that the chairman of the issuer should attend
the annual general meeting. Mr. Guo being the Chairman,
was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM") due to
another commitment and Mr. Guo appointed Ms. Amika Lan E
Guo, an executive Director, to act as his representative at the
2019 AGM and take the chair of the said 2019 AGM and to
ensure that proceedings of the meeting would be conducted
in order. The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure the Company's corporate governance
practices are no less sufficient than those in the CG Code. This
constitutes a deviation of the code provision E.1.2.

Rule 3.28

The former company secretary of the Company, Ms. Chan Po
Yu (“Ms. Chan"”), had resigned with effect from 28 December
2018. On 1 November 2019, Mr. Chan Wai Shing has been
appointed as the company secretary to fill the vacancy in the
office of company secretary of the Company occasioned by the
resignation of Ms. Chan. Accordingly, the Company had not
complied with the requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules during the period between 28 December 2018 and 31
October 2019.

TRERBBE

TEER (@)

TR X FEA.6.715

P EERTRZFANEEA6.7IERTE -
BYRTESRAMIENTESELF
RREREWHARARNGBRELERERALET
- BYIIATESFT BRI RE R
TERARBEMNEEERMAELEARD
AR ZZE—NF— A+ BRI 2R
BIRE - tERBRA EMIREE 2 —IBITHET
B ARAEEKBBIIFHNITEE N
BARRMERRSH UNEBETFLEERST
B Z SFRBIHESCE A6 71K

FBIR SCSBE.1.21%

FAMBEXFEN 2GR RFER EFHRTE
(EhBiE) B TAZEFEREERRASF
ARG -BERE(ER) AREMEBHREE
BARBN-_ZE—NFRA=T—HET
ZHRRBEREG ([ZE—AERERFKX
@ | B EEBZEEHNITE EAmika Lan E
GuUUX T EAERREFE T —NLFBRE
BEASYETHE -_T—-NAERBEAE
REZEF UERASZEABEFE
T ARBIRBEHRINT REBEABRAE
REIZEEEARTRTBREEE AT
Frak & o bk BIE B IR B <F I X FEE.1.2

fek -

EFHRAIZE3.281%
KAARAEARMEREM Z T ([
THERZZE—N\F+ZA=-+\BHE
F-RZZE—NF+—A—H RERLE
ERTARRMEEMR L LI K
ZARDERBMEBA =G B ARF]
R-E—NE+_A-+N\BE-Z—H
F+AZ=Z+—BHHEHMYRET EHRANE
32812 F5E °

HE=EZERARAR

20195 5& 39



40 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Corporate Governance Report

TEERERE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board’s primary responsibilities include the formulation of
long-term corporate strategies, policy decisions and overseeing
the management of the Group’s operations. In addition, the
Board evaluates the performance of the Group and assesses
the achievement of targets periodically set by the Board.
In carrying out its duties and projects, the Board delegates
certain specific considerations to designated board committees
and management task forces. The daily management,
administration and operations of the Company are delegated
to the CEO, executive Directors and senior management and
divisional heads. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the abovementioned officers. All Directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information in discharging
their duties, and in appropriate circumstances are normally
granted rights to seek independent professional advices at the
Company's expense.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience for effective leadership and independence
in decision making. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises 6 Directors, whose biographical details and their
relationships are set out in the “Biographical Details of the
Directors of the Company” on pages 63 to 69 of the Report
of the Directors. There are 3 executive Directors, namely
Mr. Guo Jiadi, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Wang Chao
and 3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Zheng
Yurui. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
a sufficient number of independent non-executive Directors
and at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Company has received annual
confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
that they did not have any businesses or financial interests with
the Group and were independent in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
OF DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing its
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors;
and monitoring their succession. The Board’s established
policies include procedures for the appointment of Directors
nominated by the Company’s shareholders. The existing Bye-
laws of the Company empower the Board to appoint any
person as Director either as an additional member or to fill a
casual vacancy.

The term of office for each of the executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors is 3 years. The existing
Bye-laws of the Company provide that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if
their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retire may fill the vacated office.
In addition, all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or
as an additional Director shall retire in the next annual general
meeting but eligible for re-election.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct in respect of the securities dealing by the
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
Directors in respect of the securities dealing by the Directors
and all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Company has established 3 Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, each of which is delegated with
specific roles and responsibilities by the Board. All the Board
committees follow the same principles and procedures as
those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee on a regular basis, including their decision and
recommendations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee of the Company comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Note i)

Ms. Ma Shujuan (Note ii)

Mr. Zheng Yurui

Note i:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of the Audit
Committee on 30 September 2019.

Note ii:
Ms. Ma Shujuan has been appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 30 September 2019.

The chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors. The primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the Company’s financial information
including annual report and half-yearly report and the
appropriateness of any significant financial reporting
judgments contained therein;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures. Further information is disclosed in the section
titled “Risk Management and Internal Controls” below.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019
and interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2019
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee before the
submission to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings
had been held by the Audit Committee. Attendance of each
member at the Audit Committee meeting is set out in the
table under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.

Summary of work

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee reviewed the interim and annual results with the
external auditors and its duties in accordance with the Audit
Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
for inspection on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), the external
auditor of the Company, for the following services provided for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board
that the level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor is reasonable. There has been no major disagreement
between the external auditor and the management of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee.
The existing Nomination Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Zheng Yurui (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Note i)
Ms. Ma Shujuan (Note ii)

Note i:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and ceased to be a member of the
Nomination Committee on 30 September 2019.

Note ii:
Ms. Ma Shujuan has been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 30 September 2019.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for all matters
relating to the appointment of Directors either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every 3 years and shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying
suitable qualified candidates and making recommendations
to the Board for consideration. The process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship includes the
consideration of referrals and the engagement of external
recruitment professionals. The selection criteria is based mainly
on the assessment of their professional qualifications and
experience relevant to the Company’s businesses.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2019. Attendance of each member at the
Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table under
the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this report.
Attendance of each member at the Nomination Committee
meeting is set out in the table under the section headed
“Meeting Attendance” of this report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Summary of work

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee discussed and made recommendation to the Board
on the re-election of retiring Directors in accordance with the
Nomination Committee’s written terms of reference.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy, including
measureable objective, monitoring and review of the
Policy

The board diversity policy (the “Policy”) aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board's
composition has been disclosed in the Report of the Directors.

Monitoring and review

The Nomination Committee has monitored the implementation
of the Policy and there is no derivation from this Policy for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The Nomination Committee
will keep on review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend
any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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NOMINATION POLICY REBBE

A nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) sets out the — FERBR ([EREER]) BINZEREHNZ
selection criteria, procedures and process of appointing and ~ EEFHEUERE 127 B2 - ARFHA
reappointing a Director. The selection criteria used in assessing ~ REAZE G ENTERELRE (HhE
the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, histher — ¥&)fth /HE 2 A R MEEER  AHBET
academic background and professional qualifications, relevant ¥ 4€5 @& M (E A R fh, 2B A A
experience in the industry, character and integrity and whether ~ BIREFEE 2 Z it (HFRBE) - ZER
he/she can contribute to the diversity of the Board as detailed ~ B ZEESFNIERF MBEMALT -

in the Policy. The procedures and process of appointing and

reappointing a Director are summarised as follows:

—  nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any - HRERZESXEZSEMAXNERS
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board; DBEAEANE:

- evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all - EFEREERBRTEHIIMETE
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy; 1R AR E A TR

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate - HEEREAETEBRELS IHES
and making recommendation for the Board's erEZRMAERDES:

consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive -  WIRBRBILIFNITEE  RIIRIEHEH
Director, assessing the candidate’s independence under <FRIMES e BT iR AIRT IR E A 2 18
the relevant Code Provisions and the Listing Rules; VA

- where nominating an independent non-executive - HRREBBUIFRITEFTZ2NREAS
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Director for election at general meetings, having due
consideration of matters under Code Provision A.5.5;

in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board
and/or the shareholders for consideration in connection
with his/her re-election at general meetings; and

convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a
Director.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Note i)

Ms. Ma Shujuan (Chairman) (Note ij)
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael

Mr. Zheng Yurui

Note i:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company and ceased to be the chairman and a
member of the Remuneration Committee on 30 September 2019.

Note ii:
Ms. Ma Shujuan has been appointed as the chairman and a member
of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 30 September 2019.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendation on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Company, the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing such policy, and the review of
specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors
and senior management of the Company by reference to
corporate goals and objective resolved by the Board from time
to time. The Remuneration Committee will review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

The principal elements of the executive Directors’ remuneration
package include basic salary, benefits in kind, discretionary
bonus, retirement benefits and participation in the share
option scheme adopted by the shareholders of the Company
in 2011. The remuneration packages of the executive Directors
will be proposed by the Chairman of the Group annually for
the review by the Remuneration Committee based on the
following factors:

(@) the executive Director's responsibilities and contribution;

(b) the executive Director’s individual performance; and

() performance of the business unit(s) headed by the
executive Director.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors’ remuneration
includes Directors’ fee and participation in the share
option scheme, and subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration Committee. The term
of appointment of the independent non-executive Directors is
three years. Other detailed terms of appointment have been
disclosed in the Report of the Directors and the consolidated
financial statements. The Board's authority to fix Directors’
remuneration was granted by the Company’s shareholders at
the annual general meeting.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2019. Attendance of each member
at the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the
table under the section headed “Meeting Attendance” of this
report.

Summary of work

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the Directors and number of share options to be granted to
the Directors and management of the Group in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of
reference.

The term of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection on the Company’s website and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and as business
need arises. The Company’s memorandum of association and
the Articles provide for participation at meetings via telephone
and other electronic means. The Directors have full access to
information on the Group and independent professional advice
at all times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 4 board meetings
had been held for reviewing business performance, considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company, and other business matters. Attendance of each
member at the board meetings, board committee meetings
and general meetings of the Company, on a named basis,
during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the
table below.

TRERBBE
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Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-S-AE+t-ACt-BLEENERERNE SONEERY

Remuneration  Nomination Audit
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

¥HZEE REZEE EHZEE
Directors Ex Exeez 23 &3 23 ETN
Mr. Guo Jiadi El) s 3/4 N/A T A NA T8 N/A TNEF 213
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E GuoZ 44 NATER NARNER  NATER 33
Mr. Wang Chao THEE 3 NATER  NATER  NATER 33
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Note ) BEEET (M) 3 NATER  NATER  NATER 22
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Note ii) SACEE (M) 3/4 1 7N 2 22
Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael BTt 4/4 1/1 1/1 22 33
Ms. Ma Shujuan (Note iii) SRBELL (Htii) b NATER  NATER  NATEE Ik}
Mr. Zheng Yurui PImis 4/4 " 1 0 B

Note i: Bt ati -

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen has resigned as a non-executive Director with
effect from 30 September 2019.

Note ii:

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee on 30 September 2019.

Note iii:

Ms. Ma Shujuan, has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee with effect from 30
September 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in the terms of reference
equivalent to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the policies of the corporate
governance of the Company were reviewed by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities of the Directors and officers that may arise out
the corporate activities which has been complied with the CG
Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial period/year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or condition that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the
Board has prepared the financial statements of the Company
on a going concern basis. The Board also acknowledges its
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.

The above statements, which should be read in conjunction
with the independent auditor’s report set out from pages
95 to 102 of this annual report, are made with a view to
distinguishing for Shareholders how the responsibilities of
the Directors differ from those of the auditor in relation to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Having made
appropriate enquiries and examined major areas which could
give rise to significant financial exposures, the Directors have
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Directors considered the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in accordance
with applicable accounting standards. The interim and annual
results and reports were published within the time limits as
required under the Listing Rules after the end of the relevant
periods to provide stakeholders with transparent and timely
financial information.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefing and professional development for Directors will
be arranged at the expenses of the Company where
necessary. During the year ended 31 December 2019, each
of the Directors has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or studying materials
relevant to Director’s duties and responsibility. Their training
records have been provided to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions.

The Group has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office
functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

All divisions/departments conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact
the business of the Group and various aspects including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance
and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied
with by each division/department.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group engaged
an independent professional consultancy firm for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the internal control systems. Key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls are examined
and the independent professional consultancy firm provided its
findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year
ended 31 December 2019, and considered that such systems
are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and internal audit function and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

With reference to the Internal Audit Manual of the Group, the
Group’s internal audit function has been established to provide
risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight to the
Board through the Audit Committee. The risk management
and internal control systems are reviewed and assessed on a
continuous basis by the Audit Committee and the executive
Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least
once each year by the Board. These systems were considered
effective and adequate.

The Board has implemented procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. Since
shares of the Company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, the Company has adopted a policy
which aims to set out guidelines to the Group’s directors,
officers and all relevant employees to ensure inside information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner in accordance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that the Board procedures are followed and the
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.
He/she is also responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development of
Directors.

The former company secretary of the Company, Ms. Chan Po
Yu (“Ms. Chan"), had resigned with effect from 28 December
2018. On 1 November 2019, Mr. Chan Wai Shing (“Mr.
Chan”) has been appointed as the company secretary to fill
the vacancy in the office of company secretary of the Company
occasioned by the resignation of Ms. Chan. Accordingly,
the Company had not complied with the requirement under
Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules during the period between 28
December 2018 and 31 October 2019.

During the year, Mr. Chan has attended relevant professional
seminars to update his skills and knowledge. He met the
training requirement set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 21
March 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide return
to the shareholders of the Company.

Under the Dividend Policy, provided that the Group is
profitable and without affecting the normal operations of
the Group, the Company may consider to declare and pay
dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, among others, the Group’s actual
and expected financial performance, retained earnings and
distributable reserves, working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans, liquidity
position, Shareholders’ interests, general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group's business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group and other
factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

Declaration and payment of dividend shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject
to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and
any applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(I) How Shareholders Can Convene A Special General
Meeting And Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene a
special general meeting, and special general meetings
shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, if default, may be convened
by the requisitionists. On the requisition of members
of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, the Directors forthwith proceed duly
to convene a special general meeting of the Company.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
() Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the

Board

Enquiries of shareholders can be sent to the Company
either by email at info@chinasandi.com.hk or by post
to the Company’s Hong Kong head office at Room
3405, 34th Floor., China Merchants Tower Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.
Shareholders can also make enquiries with the Board
directly at the general meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognises the importance of the

communication with shareholders.

In order to maintain and

further enhance the investors’ relationship with the Company’s
shareholders, the Company established various channels of
communication with its shareholders:

(1)

The annual general meeting provides a platform for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
members of the Board and external auditors will attend
the meeting. The Group encourages all shareholders to
attend and raise any comment on the performance of the
Group. The Board welcomes to exchange views with its
shareholders at the meeting.

The Company has regularly met with financial analysts,
fund managers and potential investors during the year
ended 31 December 2019, in order to enhance the
understanding the Group’s operations and developments.

Information relating to the Company’s financial
information is provided through publications of annual/
interim reports, announcements, circulars and press
release.

The Company has established a corporate website
which provides regularly updated Company financial
information and other corporate information.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) herein
submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group’s by operating
segments for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the financial performance of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 103 to 296.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND COMMENTARY

Financial Results

The financial results and business review of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the annual report
and particular on the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from pages 6 to 37.

Environmental measure and performance

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for
motivating staff, and contributes to the community in which
we conduct our businesses and creating a sustainable return to
the Group.

Detail of which are disclosed in our Environmental, Social and
Governance report, which will be issued separately by the
Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material aspects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2019, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable of relevant laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to meet its
immediate and long-term goals. We enjoy good relationships
with suppliers and customers with mutual trust. Accordingly,
our management have kept good communications, promptly
exchanged ideas and shares business update with them when
appropriate. During the year ended 31 December 2019, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its suppliers and/or customers.

Employees are the valuable assets of the Group. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path
and improvement of their skills by encouraging them to take
part in external training courses, professional seminars and
examinations and support them by sponsoring. The Group put
efforts into providing staff with a harmonious, positive and
inspiring working environment. The Group always adheres
to its people-oriented concept, values and maintains their
employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

By providing employees with a good working environment
and competitive trainings, employees’ productivities and their
performances are greatly improved.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’'s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses prospects would be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group’s businesses which including business risk, policy and
market risk, operational risk and financial management risk.

Business Risk

Performance of our Group's core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions such as performance of property markets in regions,
which would not be mitigated even with careful and prudent
investment strategy and strict procedure.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC's development,
the property sector is more susceptible to the impact of macro-
economic and industrial policies. Our Group's performance
may be adversely affected by changes of the political, social
and economic conditions in the PRC if we are unable to
respond to the ever-changing market condition in a timely
manner.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risk basically rests with every function at divisional and
departmental levels. Key functions in our Group are guided
by their standard operating procedures, limit of authority and
reporting framework. Our management will identify and assess
key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Financial management risk

The main financial management risk and the Group’s financial
management measures are shown in note 39(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
mentioned above which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.
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EEEHRHE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION BRERSE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities — ZN&= @ &F A AN KEE HE M EE %
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five EREE BBENRIFERESEES (Hike
financial years/periods, as extracted from the published audited EHRCERGEAEVEHRERNLEY (&
consolidated financial statements and restated as appropriate, ) )EF|T - sz BB A MR
is set out below. The summary does not form part of the e

consolidated financial statements.

Nine

Year months

ended 31 ended 31
December  December Year ended 31 March

BE+=-R ®Et+=A
=+-HLt =1+-Hit
FE NEA BE=A=1+-HLEE
2019 2018 2018 2017 2016
“E-hE ZE-N\FE ZE-N\F ZE-tF ZE-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note iii)

(Hiiti) (Hiati) (Kiztii) (Wratii)  (Wigtii)

Revenue g 1,941,565 365,048 600,201 258,044 89,616

Profit (loss) for the year/ AAREEAEGE/HBR
period attributable to the wA/ (BR)
owners of the Company 482,165 (114,580) 132,581 (146,894) 131,526
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION B ERBE &)
(continued)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interest EE BERFERER
At 31 December At 31 March
R+ZA=+-H R=B=+-H
2019 2018 2018 2017 2016

“E-hE ZE-NF ZE-N\F ZE-tF ZE-XKF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note i) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note i)

(H1iti) (Hiiti) (Hietii) (W) (W)

Assets and liabilities BERER
Non-current assets ERBEE 8,847,037 6,762,538 3,530,255 3,863,069 3,332,166
Current assets MBEE 11,427,775 11,310,342 2,262,679 1,436,199 542,660
Total assets BEE 20,274,812 18,072,880 5,792,934 5,299,268 3,874,826
Current liabilities MEARE 10,375,071 11,762,223 1,590,771 1,033,350 238,469
Non-current liabilities ERBaE 5,900,209 2,249,663 1,451,462 1,571,529 1,029,088
Total liabilities mefE 16,275,280 14,011,886 3,042,233 2,604,879 1,267,557
Total equity BiEs 3,999,532 4,060,994 2,750,701 2,694,389 2,607,269
Attributable to: HUTETEL:
Owners of the Company NNSIE YN 3,945563 3,982,357 2,719,892 2,666,315 2,583,353
Non-controlling interests FEERER 53,969 78,637 30,808 28,074 23,915
Notes: Bt -

(i)  These financial information were extracted from the audited () ZEYBHERBHEEARMEF103229%6
consolidated financial statements as set out on page 103 to 296 Bz EEZEE VB RE-
in this report.

(i) The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2017 (i BE_Z—tFR_ZT-N\F=ZRA=+—

and 2018 were extracted from the Company’s 2017/18 annual HIEFEZMBENDHEEERARZF
report, which has been restated under merger accounting and — /= N\FEFK CRBEAHGEE
has also been adjusted for the change of presentation currency. PRGN EE LB EFHE -

(iii)  The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2016 iy BE2—ZE—XR"FZAZ+—HULEFEZH

was extracted from the Company’s 2015/16 annual report which BEMDESEB AR S —R"FFHR
has been adjusted for the change of presentation currency. EREINEEEBIERE-
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for investment purposes
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BONDS PAYABLE

Details of movements in the Company’s bonds payable during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 109 and 110 of this annual report and in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution amounted
to approximately RMB981,014,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: approximately RMB1,084,493,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, less than 10%
of the Group’s sale were attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers respectively.

In addition, the five largest suppliers of the Group together
accounted for approximately 42% of the Group’'s total
purchases during the year ended 31 December 2019, with the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 31%.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
substantial shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers during the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did
not made charitable contributions (nine months ended 31
December 2018: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guo Jiadi (Chairman)
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo
Mr. Wang Chao

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Resigned on 30 September 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Resigned on 30 September 2019)
Ms. Ma Shujuan

Mr. Zheng Yurui

In accordance with the Bye-laws 111(A) and 111(B) of the Bye-
laws of the Company, Mr. Wang Chao and Ms. Ma Shujuan
shall retire from office by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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UPDATES ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following is updated information of directors of the
Company required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of
the Listing Rules:

1. Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (“Dr. Wong”) has resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Asia Coal Limited (a
company cancelled listing on Hong Kong Stock Exchange
with effect from 18 June 2019) and Kingston Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 1031, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange) with effect from 6 June 2019
and 29 August 2019 respectively.

2. Dr. Wong has resigned as a non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 30 September 2019.

3. Mr Yu Pak Yan, Peter has resigned as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 30 September
2019.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), aged 60, is a merchant and
was appointed as the Chairman and was appointed as the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company with
effect from 12 December 2014. Mr. Guo is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, incorporated in Hong
Kong and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") respectively
engaged in investment holding and also a director and
legal representative of certain operating subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC. Mr. Guo is also an ultimate beneficial
owner of a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Guo started his business in international trading and,
in 24 vyears, diversified into businesses including footwear
manufacturing, chemical technology, mining, real estate
development and hotel investment with presence throughout
Europe, the United States, Hong Kong, Shanghai, Fujian,
Shaanxi and Jilin. Mr. Guo has over 29 years of experience in
trading business and over 19 years of experience in property
development.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Guo entered into the property market in the PRC by
establishing Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Fuzhou Gaojia”) and has since acted as its chairman.
Fuzhou Gaojia has obtained (Qualification Certificate (Class 1)
for Real Estate Development Enterprise in the PRC*) from the
Department of Housing and Urban and Rural Development
of the PRC*. Fuzhou Gaojia has completed certain real estate
projects in Fuzhou, Putian, Baoji and Shanghai.

Mr. Guo is the father of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, who is an
executive Director of the Company. Apart from the aforesaid,
Mr. Guo does not have any other relationship with any
Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Guo does not hold directorship in other public listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Ms. Amika Lan E Guo (“Ms Guo”), aged 34, has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from 9 July 2014 and is a director of certain Hong Kong
and BVI subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Guo is responsible
for the overall business development of the company. Her
current position is the Director of Business Operations and
is responsible for general operation management, corporate
development and planning matters. Ms. Guo has graduated
from Simon Fraser University in Canada with a bachelor degree
of Business Administration. She also holds a MBA degree from
The University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Guo is the daughter of Mr. Guo Jiadi, who is the Chairman
and an executive Director and the ultimate beneficial owner of
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Guo does not have any other relationship with
any Director, senior management, substantial or controlling
shareholder(s) of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
Ms. Guo does not hold directorship in other public listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wang Chao (“Mr. Wang”), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 5 February
2018. Mr. Wang hold a bachelor’s degree of Laws from the
Xiamen University*. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in
companies that specialised in property development industries
for over ten years. Mr. Wang is the general manager of Fujian
Sinco since 1 January 2018 and responsible for the overall
operation for the various subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC.

Mr. Wang does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wang does not
hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (“Dr. Wong"”), aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 September
2009. Dr. Wong has been re-designated from independent
non-executive Director to non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 15 September 2016.

Dr. Wong received a Ph.D. Degree from Harvard University,
and was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania. He has worked in financial
industries in the United States and Hong Kong for many
years, and has considerable experience in corporate finance,
investment and derivative products. He is a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.

Dr. Wong is the chairman and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited (stock code: 768) and Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36), and an independent
non-executive director of DeTai New Energy Group Limited
(stock code: 559), Kaisun Holdings Limited (stock code:
8203), GT Group Holdings Limited(stock code:263), Tech
Pro Technology Development Limited (stock code: 3823) and
Synergis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2340).

* For identification purposes only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Non-Executive Director (continued)

Dr. Wong was also an executive director of Boill Healthcare
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1246) from July 2016 to
December 2018 and an independent non-executive director
of Bauhaus International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 483)
from October 2004 to December 2016, Kingston Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 1031) from June 2005 to August
2019, Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 444)
from September 2012 to December 2017, Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) from December 2014 to
July 2017 and Asia Coal Limited (a company cancelled listing
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange with effect from 18 June
2019) from September 218 to June 2019. All the companies
mentioned above are listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Dr. Wong does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Wong does not
hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three year.

Dr. Wong has resigned as a non-executive Director on 30
September 2019.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Yee Ping, Michael (“Mr. Chan"), aged 42, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 9 July 2014. Mr. Chan was also appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member with practicing
certificate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over ten years of
working experience in the fields of accounting and audit,
corporate secretarial management and corporate governance.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

He is currently the company secretary of China Sunshine Paper
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2002), which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, as well as Northeast
Electric Development Co., Limited (stock code: 42), a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the PRC and listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange respectively.

He was also an independent non-executive director of Prosper
One International Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
1470) from September 2017 to December 2018. Mr. Chan has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director for
three companies, namely China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited
(stock code: 648) since July 2014, StarGlory Holdings Company
Limited (formerly known as “New Wisdom Holding Company
Limited”) (stock code: 8213) since November 2016, and
Champion Alliance International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1629) since November 2018.

Mr. Chan is the director of MCI CPA Limited. Mr. Chan
does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (“Mr. Yu"), aged 69, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 31 December
2010. Mr. Yu was also appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Yu has over 30 years of experience in real estate and
financial services industries. Mr. Yu holds a Master of Science
Degree in Financial Services from American College in
Pennsylvania, USA.

Mr. Yu is currently an independent non-executive director
of Hong Kong ChaoShang Group Limited (formerly known
as Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited) (stock code:
2322). He was an executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) from November 2014 to
October 2017. Mr. Yu was also an independent non-executive
director of Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1031)
from September 2008 to September 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu does not have any relationship with any Director, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yu does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Yu has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director and ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company on 30 September
2019.

Mr. Zheng Yurui (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 65, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 11 April 2012. Mr.
Zheng was also appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Zheng graduated from Party
School of Central Committee of C.P.C. with undergraduate
diploma in 1999, majoring in administration and he is a senior
economist. From 1971 to 1998, Mr. Zheng worked in several
state-owned companies and private companies including a
factory in which he acted as a deputy general manager. From
1998 to the present, Mr. Zheng founded his own footwear
manufacturing company, acting the chairman. From 2008
to the present, Mr. Zheng has served as a director of a
property development company concurrently. Mr. Zheng is the
representative of the Tenth and Eleventh People’s Congress of
Fujian Province and the representative of the Fourth, the Fifth,
and the Sixth People’s Congress of Putian City.

Mr. Zheng does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s)
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zheng does
not hold directorship in other public listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Ma Shujuan (“Ms. Ma”), aged 36, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 5 February
2018. Ms. Ma was also appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Ms. Ma graduated
from China University of Political Science and Laws* in 2007
with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She also holds a degree of
Executive Master of Business Administration in Finance from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University*. Ms. Ma is a practicing lawyer
in the PRC. She has over ten years of extensive experience in
different kinds of legal and financial works including corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, property investment, trust
and commercial litigations. She is currently a practising lawyer
of Beijing King & Capital Law Firm, (Shanghai Branch)*.

Ms. Ma does not have any relationship with any Director,
senior management, substantial or controlling shareholder(s) of
the Company. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Ma does not hold
directorship in other public listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

*  For identification purposes only
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guo Jiadi, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 12 December 2014 and
the service contract had been renewed for a further term of
three years commencing on 12 December 2017.

Each of Ms. Amika Lan E Guo and Mr. Chan Yee Ping,
Michael, being the existing executive Director and the existing
independent non-executive Director, respectively, has entered
into service contract with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing on 9 July 2014 and the service
contracts had been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing on 9 July 2017.

Mr. Wang Chao, being the existing executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing on 5 February 2018.

Dr. Wong Yun Kuen, who has resigned as a non-executive
Director with effect from 30 September 2019, has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing on 18 September 2009 and the service
contract has been renewed several times for a further term of
three years commencing on 18 September 2015.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan Peter, who has resigned as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 30 September 2019,
has entered into service contract with the Company for a term
of three years commencing on 31 December 2011 and the
service contract has been renewed several times for a further
term of three years commencing on 31 December 2017.

Mr. Zheng Yurui, being the existing independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 11 April 2012 and
the service contracts had been renewed several times for a
further term of three years commencing on 11 April 2018.

Ms. Ma Shujuan, being the existing independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing on 5 February
2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
entered into the following transactions with connected person
which constituted connected transactions under Listing Rules:

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All Excel”)
and provision of guarantees

On 21 September 2018, Grand Supreme Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) had entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Primary Partner
International Limited (“Primary Partner”, as vendor), a
company beneficially owned by Mr. Guo, to acquire the entire
equity interest in All Excel. The total consideration of the
acquisition was HK$1,500 million, which is satisfied by i) cash
of HK$200 million; ii) issue of promissory notes in principal
amount of HK$600 million; iii) issue of 485,436,893 ordinary
shares of the Company at HK$0.412 per share (equivalent to
HK$200 million); and iv) issue of convertible bond in principal
amount of HK$500 million.

All Excel and its subsidiaries (collectively the “All Excel Group”)
are principally engaged in property development, property
investment and hotel operation business in the PRC. Certain
members of the All Excel Group have also provided corporate
guarantees (the “Corporate Guarantees”) to certain entities
(the "CP Group”) that were indirectly wholly owned or
controlled by Mr. Guo or Ms. Shum Xi Xia (“Ms. Shum”), the
sister-in-law of Mr. Guo, to guarantee the payment obligations
of the bank loans (the “Guaranteed Loans”) grant to the CP
Group. The aggregated principal of these Guaranteed Loans
amounted to RMB1,410.3 million before the acquisition.

The Corporate Guarantees will become contingent liability of
the Group upon the completion of the acquisition. In order
to protect the Group from the potential liabilities arising
from the Corporate Guarantees, on 21 December 2018, the
parties entered into a supplemental deed, pursuant to which,
(i) Mr. Guo has undertaken to indemnify the Group in full
regarding any loss incurred by the Group under the Corporate
Guarantees, and (ii) the amount due by the Group to Mr. Guo
and/or CP Group, the promissory note and the convertible
bonds issue to Primary Partner were charged as first charge
in favour of the Company to safeguard the Group’s interest.
Details of term of the supplemental deed are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 December 2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All Excel”)
and provision of guarantees (continued)

As Mr. Guo is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and a controlling shareholder of the Company, Primary
Partner is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr. Guo and therefore the acquisition
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Furthermore, as Ms. Shum is a deemed
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.21(1)(a),
each of the entities of the CP Group is a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Guo
or Ms. Shum. As such, the on-going provision of Corporate
Guarantees upon the completion of the acquisition also
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The acquisition and provision of Corporate Guarantees were
approved at the Company’s special general meeting held on
16 January 2019 and the acquisition was completed on 30
January 2019. Further details are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 September 2018, 31 December
2018, 16 January 2019 and 30 January 2019, and the circular
of the Company dated 26 December 2018, respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the existing Corporate Guarantees
provided by the Group to the CP Group were set out as
follows:
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Loan Repayment

Borrowers Lenders Guarantors principal  Outstanding Interest rate date

f& &5 BRA ERAeH KEELH ME BRAH

(RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(ARETFT) (ARETT)

Fujian Sandi Real Estate Huaxia Bank Co., Fuzhou Gaojia Real Estate 690,000 660,000 5.40% 16 October 2028
Development Co., Limited Limited Development Co., Limited —Eo)N\E
("Fujian Sandi") ZERTBHBEBLA  ("Fuzhou Gaojia”) TA+7A

BR-ERHEREFRLA BNEERHERE
(=) BRAF ([RMEE])

Fujian Sandi Hang Seng Bank Fuzhou Gaojia 420,000 388,500 6.98% 16 August 2023
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Acquisition of All Excel Industries Limited (“All Excel”)
and provision of guarantees (continued)

Guarantors
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Borrowers Lenders
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Loan Repayment
principal  Outstanding Interest rate date
AEESH ME BRAH
(RMB'000)

(ARETT) (ARETT)

Guoshi (Fujian) Footwear Co.,  Bank of China Limited ~ Guoshi Investment Group 12,000 10,000 4.35% 21 March 2020
Limited RERTRAERARF  Co., Limited —Z-FE
BR(BR)EZERAR PRBRESEBR AR ZR=t+-A°
Putian Sandi Xiefu Co., Huaxia Bank Co., Baoji Sandi Real Estate 35,000 35,000 6.37% 6 December 2023
Limited Limited Development Co., Limited iy s
ERTZRERERLE  ZEFOBROERAR ZEE-RRUERE +=AK~H
BRAE
1,157,000 1,093,500

These Guaranteed Loans were also secured by the pledged of
certain properties held by the CP Group. None of these loans is
overdue.

Acquisition of Power Success Development
Incorporated (“Power Success”)

On 26 July 2019, Grand Supreme Limited (“Grand Supreme”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser)
and Top Trendy Holdings Limited (“Top Trendy”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
which is wholly held by Mr. Guo Jiadi (“Mr. Guo”), a Director
and controlling shareholder of the Company (as vendor)
entered into the Agreement, pursuant to which Grand
Supreme has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Top Trendy
has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share capital
in Power Success at the Consideration of RMB243,670,000 by
the way of cash.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Acquisition of Power Success Development
Incorporated (“Power Success”) (continued)

The total issued share capital of Top Trendy on 26 July 2019 is
held by Mr. Guo, who is an executive Director, the chairman
of the Board and a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Hence, Top Trendy is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of being an associate of Mr. Guo and the Acquisition
also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The acquisition was completed on 28 November 2019 after it
was approved at the Company’s special general meeting held
on the same day.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 26 July 2019, 28 November 2019 and the
circular of the Company dated 8 November 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has complied
with the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules for
those related party transactions which constituted non-exempt
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions.
Other related party transactions either did not constitute
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
or constituted connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions but were exempted from all disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” disclosed above and note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements headed “Related Party Transactions”, no
other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the Year.

Mr. Guo Jiadi ("Mr. Guo"”) is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Company and a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Guo carries out property development
and investment businesses and other businesses in the
PRC through companies controlled by him, including but
not limited to Fujian Sandi Property Development Limited
(the “Fujian Sandi”) and Fuzhou Gaojia. Fuzhou Gaojia had
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
since 30 January 2019.

To deal with the potential conflict of interests between Mr.
Guo and the Company, Mr. Guo; Fujian Sandi; Fuzhou Gaojia
and the Company had entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 1 January 2015 (the “2015 Deed”). Each of Mr. Guo;
Fujian Sandi and Fuzhou Gaojia; (the "Covenantor(s)”) has
given its non-compete undertakings in favour of the Company
on the terms set out below:

(@) The Covenantors will not, and will procure his/its close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, engage,
invest or be involved in any manner any business which
competes with the business of the Company from time to
time with the following exceptions:

(i) the holding of shares of a company which is
engaged in the business of acquisition of land
for development, building construction and
acquisition of real properties (including projects
with construction in progress) in the PRC for sale,
lease or other investment purposes (the “Property
Investment Business”) and whose shares are listed
on a recognised stock exchange provided that such
shares represent not more than 10% of the voting
rights at the general meetings of such company;

(i) the engagement in the Property Investment Business
through the Group;

(iii) the acquisition or holding of real property for self-
use;

(iv) the property projects that the Covenantors have
already engaged as at the date of the undertakings;
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)  (continued)

(v)  the engagement of property projects in any province
of the PRC in which the Group has not considered,
planned to or invested in the development of its
Property Investment Business;

(vi) the engagement of property projects in any province
of the PRC in which the Group has considered,
planned to or invested in the development of its
Property Investment Business subject to the right of
first refusal granted to the Group (on the terms set
out in the undertakings).

Since the date of the 2015 Deed, the scope of the
operation of the Group was expanded. Therefore, Mr.
Guo and the Company has entered into a new Non-
competition Deed on 15 March 2017 (the “2017 Deed”)
to replace the 2015 Deed. Further details was disclosed in
the announcement dated 15 March 2017. Set out below
is a summary of the principal terms of the 2017 Deed and
relevant information.

Mr. Guo (for himself and as the agent for his close
associates) irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes in
favour of the Company that:

(@) he shall and shall procure that his close associates
not to, directly or indirectly, engage in, invest in,
participate in, whether on his own account or with
each other or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person or company or otherwise holds or
owns any interest in any manner in the PRC in any
business that may compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group Business;

(b) he shall provide all the information that the
Company reasonably considers to be necessary to
enforce the undertakings given by him under the
2017 Deed and would make an annual declaration
on compliance with the 2017 Deed in the annual
report of the Company; and

() he and/or his close associates shall abstain from
voting in the Board meetings and the general
meetings of the Company in relation to any matter
in connection with 2017 Deed;
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued) EEASHN (&)
(a)  (continued) (@) (#&)

Mr. Guo further undertakes to the Company that he shall
not (and shall procure his close associates not to):

(a)

(b)

solicit or entice away any customer, contractor,
supplier, director, employee or consultant of the
Group (or any potential customer, contractor,
supplier with whom the Group has already entered
into negotiations); and/or

use, disclose to anyone or publish, or allow
the disclosure or publication of, the non-public
information in relation to the Group (trade secrets,
business strategies or otherwise) that he or his close
associates received or may receive.

If any New Business Opportunity is made available to
Mr. Guo and/or his close associates, he and/or his close
associates:

(i)

(ii)

shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company making an informed
evaluation of the New Business Opportunity; and

shall not pursue or otherwise participate in the new
business opportunity in any manner unless and until
the New Business Opportunity has been declined
by the Group, provided that Mr. Guo and/or his
close associates cannot pursue the New Business
Opportunity on terms more favourable than those
offered to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)
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(continued)

If Mr. Guo and/or any of his close associates wishes to
sell any interest in the Guo Business (same meanings as
defined in the announcement dated 15 March 2017) (in
whole or in part) to any third party (the “Opportunity
for Sale”), Mr. Guo will offer and will procure that his
close associates to offer the Opportunity for Sale to the
Company and the Company shall have a right of first
refusal in respect of such Opportunity for Sale. In this
regard, Mr. Guo and/or his close associates:

(i)  shall issue a written notice to the Board pursuant
to the terms of the 2017 Deed and provide the
information reasonably requested by the Company
to facilitate the Company to reasonably evaluate the
Opportunity for Sale; and

(i) shall be at liberty to offer the Opportunity for
Sale to third parties if the Opportunity for Sale is
declined by the Group, provided that the terms
thereof shall not be more favourable than those
provided to the Group.

The Non-competition Undertakings do not apply to the
following:

(@) the same property projects excluded from the 2015
Deed (being those property projects of Mr. Guo and/
or his close associates already in existence as at the
date of the 2015 Deed);

(b) the hotel business in connection with three existing
hotels located in Fujian Province which has been
engaged by Mr. Guo (and/or his closes associates)
prior to the Group’s proposed engagement in the
hotel sector:
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)  (continued)

(@

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

the holding of or being interested in, directly or
indirectly, by Mr. Guo and/or his close associates any
shares in any company, provided that (i) such shares
are listed on a recognized stock exchange; and (ii)
the total number of such shares held by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates does not amount to more
than 5% of the issued shares carrying voting rights;

the engagement in any business via the holding of
the equity interests through the Group;

the acquisition or holding of property by Mr. Guo
and/or his close associates for their respective self-
use;

the engagement in the Group Business in any
province in the PRC where the Group has not
considered or planned to carry out the Group
Business; or

(subject to the provisions regarding the New
Business Opportunity) the engagement in the Group
Business in any province in the PRC where the
Group has considered or planned to carry out the
Group Business.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS (continued)

(a)
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(continued)

The obligations of Mr. Guo under 2017 Deed shall be
terminated upon the earlier of:

(a) the Shares ceasing to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; and

(b)  Mr. Guo and his close associates together ceasing to
control 30% (or such percentage as may from time
to time specified in the Listing Rules to be regarded
as a controlling shareholder) or more of the voting
rights at any general meeting of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr.
Guo declares that he complied with all the terms and
conditions as set out in 2015 Deed and 2017 Deed.

Save as disclosed, during the year and up to the date
of this report, no Directors are considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than
those businesses for which the Directors were appointed
as directors to represent the interest of the Company
and/or the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SFO") which (i) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of Number of percentage

Number of  underlying share of the issued
Name of Director Capacity shares shares options held capital Notes
HERT
& 2 HERA FSERE Az
EEng EL E g 2R g8 #HHESsH e
Mr. Guo Interest of controlled  3,386,905,895 1,526,092,233 - 96.6% 1
s corporation
RIEEE R
Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.1% 2
ExBEEA
Mr. Wang Chao Beneficial owner - - 3,000,000 0.1% 3
THREE ERlEEA
Ms. Amika Lan E Guo Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.1% 4
Amika Lan E Guox + ERERA
Ms. Ma Shujuan Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.1% 5
SRBLt ERBEAA
Mr. Zheng Yurui Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.1% 6
BEhtk ERBEAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

1. The 3,386,905,895 Shares and 1,526,092,233 underlying
Shares include:

(@) 2,581,054,801 Shares held by United Century
International Limited (“United Century”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
with limited liability which is wholly owned by Mr.
Guo.

(b) The Share of 320,414,201 held by King Partner
Holdings Limited (“King Partner”), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Guo.

() The Share of 485,436,893 held by Primary Partner
International Limited (“Primary Partner”), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability which is
owned by Mr. Guo.

(d) the underlying Shares of 312,500,000 held
by United Century which constituted unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives pursuant to
an arrangement entered into with Beyond Steady
Limited (“Beyond Steady”). Beyond Steady is taken
to have the short position in the same underlying
shares. Beyond Steady is a company incorporated
in BVI with limited liability which is indirectly wholly
owned by Huarong International Financial Holdings
Limited (“Huarong”); and

(e)  the underlying Shares of 1,213,592,233 from the
conversion of convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$500 million held by Primary Partner.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEERFETHAERRKRY - 1HEHE
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN BRORBEIS2EZRAE (&)

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

(a) Long positions in the Shares and underlying (a) REQAFARGREBROGZEE
Shares of the Company (continued) (#)
Notes: (continued) ffaE: (&)

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Guo, an executive Director
and Chairman of the Company was entitled to receive
share options to subscribe for a maximum of 4,400,000
Shares upon exercise of the options in full.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Wang Chao, an executive
Director was entitled to receive share options to subscribe
for a maximum of 3,000,000 Shares upon exercise of the
options in full.

As at 31 December 2019, Ms. Amika Lan E Guo, an
executive Director was entitled to receive share options
to subscribe for a maximum of 4,400,000 Shares upon
exercise of the options in full.

As at 31 December 2019, Ms. Ma Shujuan, an
Independent non-executive Director was entitled to
receive share options to subscribe for a maximum of
4,400,000 Shares upon exercise of the options in full.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Zheng Yurui, an
Independent non-executive Director was entitled to
receive share options to subscribe for a maximum of
4,400,000 Shares upon exercise of the options in full.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of issued ordinary
shares of the Company was 5,087,207,546, which
has been used for the calculation of the approximate
percentage.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Long positions in associated corporation

EERFETHRAERKRG - HHEH
RORBEEIZEER AR (&)

(b) RHEBEZEZHFR
Registered capital

held in Approximately
Name of associated associated percentage of
Name of Director  corporation Capacity corporation registered capital
LB R HEEMmERZ
EEpE HEEEEH 54 HERER BREIL
Mr. Guo Nanping Sandi Xiangsong Interest of controlled Registered: 35%
Property Development corporation RMB50,000,000
Co., Ltd ("Nanping Sandi
Xiang Song”)
B BMY-BEERERE REEE R atfi: 35%
BRAR([EY=2 AR #50,000,0007
B8))
Notes: Bzt

1. The Company indirectly held 60% equity interests of
Nanping Sandi Xiang Song. Therefore Nanping Sandi
Xiang Song is an associated corporation of the Company
for the purposes of the SFO.

2. Fujian Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Limited (“Fujian
Sandi”) held 35% equity interests of Nanping Sandi Xiang
Song. Fujian Sandi is a company established in the PRC
and ultimate controlled by Mr. Guo.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, otherwise notified to the
Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
Nor any of the Directors and chief executive had any interest
in, or had been granted any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” above, the following persons
(not being a Director or the chief executive officer of the
Company) have an interest or a short position in Shares or
underlying Shares which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Approximate

Number of  Number of  percentage

Number of underlying share options  of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares held capital Notes
I 4 HBERG REBRE GSRIRK

BRR#ES 5t 4= #A $E ZBNEI i3

Long Position

e

Mr. Guo Interest of controlled 3,386,905,895 1,526,092,233 - 96.6% 1
’corporations

BrEAE XEZE ER
Beneficial owner - - 4,400,000 0.1% |
EmfisA

United Century Beneficial owner 2,581,054,801 312,500,000 - 56.9% 1

United Century EREEA

King Partner Beneficial owner 320,414,201 - - 6.3% 1

King Partner EmfisA

Primary Partner Beneficial owner 485,436,893 1,213,592,233 - 33.4% 1

Primary Partner ExfBA

Central Huijin Investment Ltd  Interest of controlled - 2,574,039,555 - 50.6% Y
__corporations

HRESREBREMELNA REEE #EE

Chance Talent Beneficial owner - 2,574,039,555 - 50.6% 2

Chance Talent EnEBA

Huarong Interest of controlled 312,500,000 325,000,000 - 12.5% 3ab
__corporations

ER REEE S

Beyond Steady Beneficial owner 312,500,000 325,000,000 - 12.5% 3ab

Beyond Steady
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

FERRRKRG R EERD 2

BRRE (&)

Approximate

Number of  percentage
Number of underlying of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares capital Notes
&
ERfTREAZ
RE#HH 54 RO EE HBEROGHE HHEIH i &t
Short Position
KB
Huarong Interest of controlled - 312,500,000 6.1% 3c
corporations
/o REEBE R
Beyond Steady Beneficial owner - 312,500,000 6.1% 3c

Beyond Steady

EfBAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. Please refer to notes under section headed: Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ interests and short position in shares, underlying
shares and debentures on page 81 to 84.

2. It represents security interest of 2,574,039,555 underlying
shares of the Company.

3. (a)

The 312,500,000 held by Beyond Steady, a company
incorporated in BVI with limited liability which is indirectly
wholly owned by Huarong.

Beyond Steady has security interest in 325,000,000
underlying shares of the Company.

This represented Beyond Steady’s short position in
312,500,000 underlying shares which constituted unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives pursuant to an
arrangement entered into with United Century. United
Century is taken to have the long position in the same
underlying shares.

4. As at 31 December 2019, the number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 5,087,207,546, which has been used for
the calculation of the approximate percentage.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out below:

IR Z# 815 =
BE-_Z—hWF+-A=+—HIEFEZ
PR R B E AN

(a) Share Option Scheme (a) HBRRESE

88 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which is approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 16
September 2011. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
persons to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject
to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Scheme will be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on the date on which it became effective. The directors
and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
are entitled to participate in the share option schemes
operated by the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
(i) the total number of shares to be issued under the
options of the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company then in issue.

Options may be exercise at any time not exceeding a
period 6 years from the date on which the share options
is accepted. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

ApmlRm—BERERT 8 ([ R
HE]) (RZE—FNA+BE
TZARRRRERBERS L&) -
RIZERETS AAREFEARAE
BERATROBRE UREERE
AR R AR R AR R IR - FR IE
SBEBURREER]  %atEBERELE
M2 BEIEE 2 AR - NA A
EXLRELHEMBARBEZER
NEETTH B AR &

BREA S E ERA R R REEE
HEREERAEM T EM2BERMERE
A iRE - BNE  ER S HAER BB
BRETEREEFTS2ENERRE
ERZENEBERBEHES K
2 HEE  HER REHRE
URBREMA

RERRAIPERFRAAE  (VREBH
At 8l BERTT Z B BB G
BARFDEHITRNZ10% : KR
EA—FE RS REMEAR
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N2Z1% °
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EEEHRHE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREHBIH=R &)
(a) BERELE (%)

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will be
determined by the Board at the time of grant.

46,000,000 share options (“Batch 1 Options”) under the
Share Option Scheme granted on 22 February 2016 and
the vested option will be exercisable at an exercise price
of HK$0.285 per share in accordance with the following
schedule:

25%: from 22 February 2016
25%: from 22 February 2017
25%: from 22 February 2018
25%: from 22 February 2019

On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options
("Batch 2 Options”) were granted to the directors,
consultants and employees of the Group at a cash
consideration of HK$1 per grantee which entitle the
grantees to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420 per share. The
exercise price is determined with reference to the highest
of (i) the closing price of HK$0.420 per share as quoted
in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of
approximately HK$0.412 per share as quoted in the Stock
Exchange daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of HK$0.01 per ordinary shares in the
share capital of the Company. The validity period of the
Batch 2 Options is 6 years from the date of grant (i.e. 24
April 2018 to 23 April 2024 (both days inclusive)). The
vesting period of the Batch 2 Options is as follows:

40% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2018;
30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2019;
and

30% of the Batch 2 Options shall vest on 24 April 2020

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEeNBREBRERETENE
Pz TEE FEH TR
R EE -

46,000,00017 f& Ax i ([ 28 —HLEE AR
B ERBEBERENSER_Z—X
FoA-+—BRYE mATREE
IRHE NS AT AR R T BRI RIBTTEBE
B%0.285/8 JT1Tf#

25% BT XRFE_A-+-H#
25% B _ZE—+F_A=-+=-H#
25% BT NF-_A=-+=-H#
25% B E—NF_A=Z+=H#
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) BREHNBIHSE &)

(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BBRESTE (&)
Details of movements in the number of outstanding share HE-_ZT-NF+_A=1T—L#F
options under the Share Option Scheme during the year B BIRESBIET MARITER 2EBR
ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: EEEEFHFFOT:

Number of shares options
BREHA

Cancelled/
Beginning  Granted  Exercised  Expired Exercise
ofthe duringthe duringthe duringthe Endofthe  price per Date of grant of Exercisable
year year year ear year share share option period

KEE
KEER  REER  HE/

REEA R iy B EX BROEE BRESLAE THs
Directors EZ
Mr. Guo El 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000  HK$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
0.285%TC __ ., Qifebruay2022
7%;‘7/_\ _= /\
“A-+tZR ZA-tzHZ
“E-CE
ZA=t+-R
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000  HK$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
0420%T 23 April 2024
—E-\% “E-\E
MA-tMHE MAZtMmAEZ
122
MA-t=H
Mr. Wang Chao IRkE 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 HK$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
028527 21 February 2022
:%_/—\ —F
“A-+-H
Ms. Amika Lan AmkalanE 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000  HK$0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
E Guo (Note) Guo Xt (Het) 042027 _x 1 3 Agn 204
mF=-+0A EH:+@E§
Sl
‘ \ ‘ mA-1+=H
Ms. MaShuuan  SHBLL 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000  HK$0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 1o
04203 T 23 A%rl\ 2024
—E-)\E
MAZ+MmA Eﬂ +EEE
Ei@ﬂ
Mr. Zheng Yurui RS 4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000  HK$0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
042037 23 A%rl\ 2024
—E-)\E
MAZ1+MmA M JrEEE
SIMEMA
,_I__
Sub-total NGt 20,600,000 - - - 20,600,000
Ex-Director ES 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - HK$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
0.285% 7 . 21 February 2022
S /\ _% /\
“A-t-R ZA-tzRZ
“E-CE
ZAZt-H
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued) BREHBIHE &)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) HBRESTE (&)
Number OEQ shares options
) Cancelled/
Beginning ~ Granted  Exercised  Expired Exercise
of the duringthe during the duringthe Endofthe  price per Date of grant of Exercisable
year year year ear year share share option period
KEER  KEER B/ ) ) )
AEEY it it )] EX SROGE BRERLER 8
Employees 8
Sandy Lan Sandy Lan 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HKS0420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
Hua Guo (Note) Hua Guo 04203 23 April 2024
(Hit)
ZE-N\F “E-)\E
BAZtHA EmA-TmAZ
_EopE
ME-+=H
Daisy Lan Lan Daisy Lan Lan 4,400,000 - - - 4400,000 HK$0.420 24 Mpril 2018 24 April 2018 to
Guo (Note) Guo (Hiz#) 042037 23 April 2024
ZE-N\f “E-\E
BAZtHA EmA-tmAZ
_EopE
ME-+=H
Stephen Zhen Stephen Zhen 4,400,000 - - - 4400000 HK$0.420 24 Mpril 2018 24 April 2018 to
Hang Guo (Note) Han}g\ Guo 04203 23 April 2024
(Hizt)
“E-)\F “E-N\F
MA-tEA  EA-TMAZ
—EopE
MmE-+=H
Other employees EHES 23,100,000 - (4,500,000) - 18,600,000 HKS$0.285 22 February 2016 22 February 2016 to
0.28557T 21 February 2022
“ER 2
ZAZtZH  ZAZtZRE
i St 2
ZR=+-H
31,300,000 - - (3,000,000) 28,300,000  HKS$0.420 24 April 2018 24 April 2018 to
0.420% T 23 April 2024
—E-)\F “E-)\F
MAZtEA  EA-TMAZ
—EopE
MmE-+=H
Sub-total It 67,600,000 - (4,500,000) (3,000,000 60,100,000
Total @ 90,700,000 - (7,000,000) (3,000,000) 80,700,000
Note: Mr. Guo Jiadi is the executive Director, chairman and a Bfat: I EBRANR ZHITE
substantial shareholder of the Company, and Ms. Amika Lan E B EREREZRE A RAmika

Lan E GuoZ & - Sandy Lan Hua
GuoZ £ * Daisy Lan Lan Guo%
+ X Stephen Zhen Hang Guo%t
EREBINESEEZ BB A -

Guo, Ms. Sandy Lan Hua Guo, Ms. Daisy Lan Lan Guo and Mr.
Stephen Zhen Hang Guo are associates of Mr. Guo Jiadi.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (continued)
b) Convertible Bonds

On 30 January 2019, a 5-year convertible bonds (the
“CB") with principal amount of HK$500 million was
issued to Mr. Guo at interest rate of 1% per annum
with conversion rights to convert into a maximum of
1,213,592,233 shares of the Company at conversion
price of HK$0.412 per share.

Details of the CB are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2019 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND RETIREMENT
BENEFITS SCHEME OF THE GROUP

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of
the employee’s merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees of the Group,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” above and note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other than operating the statutory mandatory provident fund
scheme for Hong Kong employees and participating in social
insurance for its employees in the PRC in accordance with
the relevant PRC regulations, the Group has not operated any
other retirement benefits schemes for the Group's employees.
Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme in operation
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BRESHBIHZE &)

b) TWERKRES
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of major events after 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices
is set out in the Corporate Governance Report accompanying
the annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
INFORMATION AND DIRECTOR’S INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors and other officers, for the time being acting in
relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or supposed
duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or
dishonesty.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year ended 31
December 2019, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers. The
level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorata basis to
the existing shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the best knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each independent
non-executive Director, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. It
also reviews the effectiveness of the audit process and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee which comprised Mr. Chan
Yee Ping, Michael, Ms. Ma Shujuan and Mr. Zheng Yurui
being independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the
accompanying financial statements prior to their publication.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by Deloitte.
Deloitte will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Guo Jiadi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA SANDI HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 103 to 296, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

HARELEE
FAREFEZFHSRERMANEXHE  RR
BGEAVBREANBERZRERNER
EULERRERMBEREREAMBERR
REESRRERE RMATSHELEE
& B B2 =

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRELER

Valuation of investment properties

REYHIEE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
the estimates associated with determining the fair
value. As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the investment properties
of the Group were shopping malls, hotels, office
units, commercial units, kindergartens and car
parking in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC") amounted to RMB7,451,740,000 as at
31 December 2019, representing 37% of the
Group's total assets. Fair value gain on investment
properties of RMB1,345,174,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2019.

BPBREMELREREEREZEE RAAK
BYEZEREBEBEEUBRERLERKR UK
BEEATEMRE GG s BRERMT19PT
BE R-T-AE+-A=+—H EBHEEZEK
BYERNPEARKMNE ([HE]) ZEYES -
BIE -WABA HEBM - HRBEREFEBEULARK
7,451,740,0007 1 EEEBEEZ3IT% HZE
—E-NFFT AT —BLEFE REMEZRT
B AR1,345,174,000 N fra Bam R A2
H R R AR -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELSNAEERRERSE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

BMERFEREVENEESEEETNEFB:

] Understanding the management’s process for
reviewing and evaluating the work of the Valuer;

o  THREREREMLTGEEMNIERANRE
=2

] Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o AIMEAERBIET gHIREEHES

J Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
about the valuation techniques, the performance
of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted in the valuations;

o MHEMTHBEBLERF WETSHKRE -
HERMARANERNRR




Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key audit matter

BEELER

Valuation of investment properties (continued)

REYWREE (&)

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated
at fair value based on valuations performed by
an independent professional qualified valuer not
connected with the Group (the “Valuer”). The fair
value of the completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were
determined by adopting the direct comparison
approach and dependent on the analysis of recent
market sales evidence of similar properties. Details
of the valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations are disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

B BESEENREVFEHEANAE S£EEHE
BENBIEESBRMGERM ([{HERD])ETaM
ERAFEIK BETKRENERERRENMEL
RN EDRBEELBE BRBEREMEZLRATIS
HEBBEONMET - (HEMBHERM N EZ2H AR
B2 A BN R e R M TE 195 5R -

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZEUMBES

ERELEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELSNAEERRERSE

Evaluating the reasonableness of the significant
unobservable inputs and the accuracy of the
source data adopted by the management of the
Group and the Valuer by comparing them, on a
sample basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly
available information of similar comparable
properties and our knowledge of the real estate
industry; and
AEBEBRATAERMASBNSELUR EF
EEIRE RGERMTERA 2 REUE 2 R - 7
ERAHER T A A B AR ERARE Al B LB E T
ZBEEHERR AHRERLEEHEMETE
2T RREITH R &

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
the management on the significant unobservable
inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their impacts
on the fair values.
HEERERER TR ABBERR 2§
EAOMUFERELRNTENTERE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BUZBMBES

Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key audit matter

BRELER

Valuation of inventories of properties

WEFEMRE

We identified the valuation of the Group’s
inventories of properties as a key audit matter
due to the significant estimates involved in the
determination of net realisable value (the “NRV")
of these properties. As disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
completed properties for sale of RMB478,038,000
and properties under development for sale of
RMB8,371,645,000 (the “inventories of properties”)
as at 31 December 2019, which are situated in the
PRC.

BMEN EXREVEFENGELSEREREE
DAREEZEMENEFE ([F2RFE])
B REARME c MNGEE MR T 23MKRE - 1
ZE-NE+ZA=1+—HB EBESEEHAULRF
BeAFERRIYWEAREA78,038,0007T K fF 6 %
EFRYEARYS,371,6450007T ([MEFE]) °

As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, management of the Group determined
the NRV of the inventories of properties by reference
to the estimated selling prices of the inventories
of properties, which takes into account a number
of factors including prevailing real estate market
conditions in the PRC, estimated selling expenses,
estimated costs to completion, and the sale-related
taxes (if any). Based on management’s estimation
of the NRV of the inventories of properties the
Group had written down inventories of properties of
RMB8,010,000 as at 31 December 2019.

Wnr e M HmAMTermikE: EEEEEERN
BEDMFEFENAS2RFER 2RZEVERFEN
et EE AP ZERZERZ  8EPBENBRTEM
EMHRR  HEtHERX T L2 Aat A REE
HERE (HE) BREEREEY EXEMERFE
WA ERFENGT RZFE-AF+_A=1t—
H BEXBEEMBYETFEAKRYS010,0007T

BREZBE (&)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMELSNAEERRERSE

Our procedures in relation to the NRV of the
inventories of properties included:

B EFENAERFENEFBRE:

e Obtaining an understanding on the
management’s process of determining of the NRV
of the inventories of properties;

s THEREETWEGEANZIFEMNBE:

J Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future cost to completion of the properties, on
a sample basis, by comparing it to the actual
development cost of similar completed properties
of the Group; and

o  HEERMENMGFAREXANEGEN HTAZ
mEEZEYERE EEEBAUETIVENE
PR AEITHE: &

o Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated
selling prices used by management with
reference to market prices achieved in the same
projects or by comparable properties, including
an evaluation of the appropriateness of the
comparable properties used by management
of the Group based on our knowledge of the
Group’s business and real estate industry in the
PRC.

e Z2EZHFAEBXMEEEBCBEHTISERT
HEREBEANGTIHEERNSEN  BET
h EEBEEREERY S£EEEBLTEE
WETENMBAEANEEDENEE M-




Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

BUZBMBRES

Hib &

BERAFEFAEAMEN -HMEHNBRE
FHRAHFER ETBRESVBEERREK
FAPI TR L B H ) AR BRED HR 5

BPIHGEEMBHREANERT MRER M
BR BPIT ISR EEMEMBEREM
A BB S o

BERMBFEEVHRROETL HMADH
REEMEEMER  FiItdiET  ZEH
ERHEE REEMBHRAIRMAEEZ
BIETFATENBAFEEAEBLEL
FHEAEERBERRAHBER - ERRFIH
THIE MREMABREBERFES
KRR RAIFTERSZEE Bt
- HAFPLA TR RS -

BERREBERAEELRENGSUBR
RAREZEME
BERRESARAERBREGHIAGHR
BT RS E REE R RERDIH
BEAERESEMBERE USHEAY
BHRERIEFLEEMAFHORER  AREE
ERRREGEE VRIS ENABE
B - A SR A B 1S R 17 B R HRF 3k
$A AR B E A B A #5 R R -

ERmEGEVHEHRRE EFAANME &
SEFEKLENR YEBERBERTH
FRSEL2EHNER UREREE
REREFER KRIFEFEER BER
BERKIFLEE KB EEMERNE
RITER-
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HE=EZERARAR

20195 5& 99



1 00 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBEBRES

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BREMRBERGEMBRRARENEL

BAMER EHRAMBEHRRERBRD
PFEERNREFFRERMEBMMNEAFER
FBGAERE UREABEAFE
FookAmE T (EAERE) HARERME
REOZEERE - Rt 2 SN Bl E
fit B #) o NAZ BB I N @ LA RE RE
EREMATBESREEAEE 1
RiEREKFHRE  ETERERR (&
BEERD) ETHNER ERX—EKRHE
ARIRIL R A RE B3R - 38 SRR F] A |
HEFsEE e MRS BFEHEMES
SERERAGEFEGAVBERRERE
RFB AR B B 15 R P 1E B R DR E - A
BRI R R AT AR EE K

IR (BBEEHER) BITERNBRE
o RPUER T SR R T BE R
BEE - BT

o HRIANREAA B HREF SEA RR T B R
BV BWMRTEE NSRRI E
2 Rt RAITEREFARYEL
B - WA R R 7T B M E R B AR
& EREME R ARG B HGE
AR REBR RE ERER ER
PR Sz BN N ERIE Gl 2 £ Bt
RAEH IR ARGF M G E AR
B LR = K BE 3R R S5 BR T 28 B
MY B A BA AR Rt 0 LB

R AR R R ERIEH] - ARG
MEZREF BENLIEY &

T
EE
SEABEFNEREERER -

o FEEFRFMRASTHRNEEER
EH &R AR AR B AR -




Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

BYZEUMBES

RBMRER GV BBRRAENEE

(%)

s HEERABELZLZSHERNR
B &R - RIBFTERNEZR
EHMIRELFERFELBRAA
B E KT HEE M e Al 28 2
H BEEENFKELERNELS
REEE - MRBMRBRFEEKRTE
EE AABEBERBEBRSPIRE
EREIEGEEVBRRPHIEH
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BRE AR RRFREKIFRAAELSE
M EEBTHREFELE-

o FESRAMBHMRMWERIIFHTA
BEBNAT BREEE URGEEH
BHREARETAERRRZXZMER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYRZBEBRES

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Kit Sum.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 April 2020

RBMRERGSVBBRRAENEE
(&)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

REREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ_-T—hNhF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZRA=+—H
LEE IENEA
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ft 5 ARMF T ARETT
(restated)
(&LE5)
Revenue =S
Goods and services & N RS 7 1,825,886 265,705
Rental of investment properties KWEMERS 7 115,679 99,343
Total revenue PN 1,941,565 365,048
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A A (1,322,124) (216,671)
Gross profit E A 619,441 148,377
Other income H A g A 9 14,709 23,844
Other gains and losses Hh ez k18 10 125,490 (45,491)
Change in fair value of investment REMEZ NFEET
properties 19,747 63,690
Change in fair value upon transfer from B EFEEREZREMER 2
inventories of properties to investment /A (& £ &)
properties 382,058 -
Change in fair value of financial assets & A F{Ezt A2
at fair value through profit or loss ([EATEABE]Z
("FVTPL") NHREERATEE (30,364) (49,157)
Change in fair value of derivative MRERZITETAL S 2
component of convertible bond NSSIEE L) (9,334) -
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDHEBX (104,508) (81,032)
Administrative expenses THRAX (143,549) (102,449)
Finance costs BEKAR 11 (139,388) (37,255)
Share of results of an associate LB S AR ER (11,643) (632)
Profit (loss) before tax BB ATEF (E518) 12 722,659 (80,105)
Income tax expense FTiEHiA% 13 (255,477) (44,002)
Profit (loss) for the year/period REE/HEEF (EE) 467,182 (124,107)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GEBRBEREMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #EZ_—F—NF+-A=1T—HILFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
T=A=t+t-8 +ZA=+—H
LEFEE ENER
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ff ARBETFTT AREFT
(restated)
(&%)
Other comprehensive (expense) Hitp2m (B%) W
income
Item that may be reclassified HEE At EF 7 EE B 2 HA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BEINBEBELZERER
translation of foreign operations (1,524) 11,546
Items that will not be reclassified REETeEHEERm2ER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Increase in fair value of property, M- BEREE CRAEEE
plant and equipment, right-of- RERPOFEBEERENE
use assets and properties under B2 AN A
development upon transfer to
investment properties 943,369 -
Deferred tax arising on fair value ME - BERRE FREEE
change of property, plant and RERPOEEBEZREME
equipment, right-of-use assets and B2 ATEEHES CRTEH
properties under development upon biz]
transfer to investment properties (235,842) -
Total comprehensive income (expense) AN fE /Hif 2 U
for the year/period (FAX) s 1,173,185 (112,561)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

REREBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ_-T—hNhF+_-_A=+—HIFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H8 +-A=+—H
ILEE LESE A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fraE AR¥TFTT AR FT
(restated)
(L&)
Profit (loss) for the year/period AT AT EIEARERE ST
attributable to: (E18) -
— Owners of the Company S YNEIE V=N 482,165 (114,580)
— Non-controlling interests — R (14,983) (9,527)
467,182 (124,107)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AT ALTEEZERA (BXZ)4E
attributable to: 2
- Owners of the Company A YNEIE V=N 1,188,168 (103,034)
- Non-controlling interests —JEIRfRRE S (14,983) (9,527)
1,173,185 (112,561)
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE BRAER (BE)
Basic (RMB cents) AEX(ARED) 16 9.70 (2.57)
Diluted (RMB cents) #H(ARBD) 16 8.89 (2.57)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R

As at 31 December 2019 WR-_Z—hF+_-_A=4+—H

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 April
2019 2018 2018
RZZE-HE RKRZIZ-NE RZIZ-N\F
+ZA=+-B t-A=1+—H MA—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ff i AREFR AREFL AREFT
(restated) (restated)
(E5) (mE5|)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE- BEREE 17 42,261 94,385 91,682
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 1,011,054 - -
Investment properties HEME 19 7,451,740 4,693,149 4,623,040
Properties under development BERPYE 20 279,860 351,253 219,993
Prepaid lease payments BAMEERE 18 - 1,150,516 1,198,239
Interest in an associate R E DR 2w 21 - 256,406 -
Deposits paid for properties under ~ FEETWEEMEE
development - 50,000 63,224
Loan receivables JEWER 24 - 127,790 17,790
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE 22 62,122 39,039 22,222
8,847,037 6,762,538 6,236,190
Current assets RBEE
Inventories of properties MEGFE 23 8,849,683 7,677,875 4,893,832
Contract costs BHKA 29 111,150 77,429 12,907
Trade receivables, other receivables [ BE 3t H 4 JE W 008 R B
and prepayments oA 25 1,039,976 1,758,983 2,867,401
Prepaid lease payments - due within T8 {78 & 38 — —F /9 2| #
one year - 27,271 27,271
Loan receivables JEWE R 24 - - 127,218
Prepaid income tax BTG 119,582 124,749 78,437
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFAABE HBEE 26 24,889 60,611 100,701
Amounts due from related companies  JE Ut # & A 71 FUE 46(a) 491,784 1,083,582 753,048
Amounts due from non-controlling  JEfTHI B2 B 3E 1% IR 155 78
shareholders of subsidiaries 46(a) 20,595 - -
Restricted bank deposits SRR 27 62,840 90,344 31,767
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRE 27 707,276 409,498 245,856
11,427,775 11,310,342 9,138,438
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019 R—-Z—NWF+_-_A=+—H

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 April
2019 2018 2018
RZZE-RE RZZE-NF RZIZ-NF
+=ZA=+-B +tZA=1+—8H mA—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
fifi AREFR AREFL AREFT
(restated) (restated)
(se5E51) (se551)
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables and accruals & {5 B 2% b & E 4t FE 15 5008 |2
st EA 28 2,303,680 2,082,545 2,673,158
Lease liabilities HEAE 36 2,500 - -
Contract liabilities aREE 29 6,553,298 4,721,726 2,229,658
Income tax payable TR G T 153,547 128,187 187,952
Amounts due to related companies  JEf#E A B FUE 46(a) 642,927 1,480,448 549,752
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT BB 2 R JE 1 AR AR 3R 5008
shareholders of subsidiaries 46(a) - 278,372 167,690
Amount due to a director [EN—%EEHE 46(a) 99,626 385,826 286,200
Bank and other borrowings - BITREMEE-——FRZIH
due within one year 30 619,493 2,675,715 1,351,249
Bonds payable — due within one year B {EH——FREH 33 - 9,404 -
10,375,071 11,762,223 7,445,659
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (8E)FE 1,052,704 (451,881) 1,692,779
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBRABERE 9,899,741 6,310,657 7,928,969
Capital and reserves EXRA#E
Share capital BB 31 42,881 37,468 37,468
Reserves f#E 3,902,682 3,944,889 3,516,011
Equity attributable to owners of the A7 1% A AEIE %
Company 3,945,563 3,982,357 3,553,479
Non-controlling interests RS 53,969 78,637 58,364
Total equity MR 3,999,532 4,060,994 3,611,843

E =R ARA R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R

As at 31 December 2019 WR-_Z—hF+_-_A=4+—H

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 April
2019 2018 2018

R-ZB-hE RZT-NE RZZT-NF
+=ZA=+-H +tZRA=1+-—H MmA—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ff i AREFR AREFL AREFT
(restated) (restated)

(&E7) (& E7)

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 36 607 - -
Debt component of convertible bond  AJ# % &% v B 25 34 322,972 - -
Derivative component of convertible  A[# & &% 2 {14 TAHH
bond 34 293,981 - -
Promissory note HOLR R 35 446,249 - -
Bonds payable FEfTEH 33 - - 8,280
Deferred tax liabilities EIERBARE 22 1,225,965 857,881 821,795
Bank borrowings - due after one year $R17fE & —— 414 5| 30 3,610,435 1,391,782 3,487,051
5,900,209 2,249,663 4,317,126
9,899,741 6,310,657 7,928,969
The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 296 FI103E296E 2 ir M BHRENR-ZE=_F
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of FUA++HEESS I &N RERET
Directors on 17 April 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: WHETINEERREZTGEE
Guo Jiadi Wang Chao
2003 T
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREE X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE=-F—NF+-_A=+—HILFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAREARGES
Share-based Property Non-
Share Share  compensation Capita Merger ~ Statutory  Translation Other  revaluation ~ Retained controlling
capital premium Teserve Teserve reserve - reserve reserve reserve Teserve profits  Sub-total interests Total
B ARfAEE & &% EE B i DEEH RE ¥

% R CERER i i fifi i i ff -4l N EREE it
AUBO00  RMBUO  AWBTOD  RVBUOD  AWBTOD  AUBDOD  RBOM0 RSO RWBOMO  RMBDOD RO RUBUDD  AMBTW
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETT AREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR

(ote) — (Note i) Note i)
(W) (W) i)
At 1 April 2018 (audited and
Testated) 37,468 534,288 3416 725 (107,000) - Q217 1224806 - 1,052,751 2,736,867 (M) 2736,7%
Effect of inclusion of All Excel
Group and Power Success Group. Success EB 292
(as defined in note 2) (WHmEes) - - - - (5d,111) 195414 - = - 1,167,309 816,612 58435 875,047
At 1 Aprl 2018 (restated) WZE-N\EmA-R
) 37468 534,288 3416 125 (647,111) 195414 2117 124806 - 2,220,060 3553479 58364 3611843
Loss for the period TEEEE - - - - - - - - - (114,580) (114,580) (9527) (124:107)
Other comprehensive income for - AERE (62 Bl
the period - - - - - - 11,546 - - - 11,546 - 11,546
Totdl comprehenshe income ~ AEE2 Bl A (F3) 48
(expense) for the period - - - - - - 11,546 - - (114580) (103,034 (9,527) (112,561)
Recognition of equitysetted
Share-based payments (note 32) - - 7291 - - - - - - - 7291 - 791
Capital inection by non-controling 3
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 29,800 29,800
Acquiston of entiies under B RREHIEE
common control - - - - 524621 - - - - - 524,621 - 524,621
At31 December 2018 (restated)  1=E-N\E+2F
“t-B(#8]) 37468 534,288 10,707 725 (122490) 195,414 (10571) 124806 - 2105480 3982357 78637 4060994
Profit oss) orthe year REREH (B8 - - - - - - - - SRS e (1498 4611
Other comprehensive expense for REZER2ERR
the year - - — = — - (1,524) = - - (1,520) - (1,524)
Increase in fair value of property, 4
plant and equipment, right-of-
Use assets and properties under
development upon transfer to
investment properties - - - - - - - - 943,369 - 943,369 - 943,369
Deferred tax arising on fair value i
change of property, plant, &
and equipment, rightofwe ~ EWEH 2 AFERYE
assetsand poperties under - 7 ERERE
development upon transfer to
investment properties - - - - - - - - (235,842) - (235,842) - (235.840)
Total comprehensive (expense)  FEE2E () ABLE
income for the year - - - - - - (1,524) - 107527 482,165 1,188,168 (14983 117318
Acquisition of additional interests £ 3512
in a subsidiary from non-
controlling interests (note 31() 1,195 64548 - - - - - (17.470) - - 81 (9,685) 38588
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 32) #3) - - 2640 - - - - - - - 2640 - 2640
Acquistions of entties under ~ WEZFIEHINEE
common control (note 31(j) 1) 4158 8181 — - (151378 - - = - - (1216752 - (127675
Evercise of shares options TERRE 60 1647 830) - - - - - - - 877 - 877
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NEt+-R
=t-A Qg BRSNS () 1AM (09 0% TOST 2565 3855 B9 35
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERB X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_H=+—HILFE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

1 1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Capital reserve represents deemed contribution from equity
owner regarding to the waiver of loan for funding the
construction of an investment property in 2012.

Merger reserve represents the difference between the share
capital of the combining entities against cash consideration
paid and other considerations issued by the Company upon
completion of business combination under common control.

The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, represents the difference arising from the share
premium reduction which was being effective and approved by
the Bermuda Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016. Under
the share premium reduction, entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company as at 29
February 2016 in the sum of approximately RMB3,049,440,000
be reduced, with part of the credit arising therefrom being
applied to offset the accumulated losses of the Company in
the sum of approximately RMB1,824,634,000 in full and the
remaining balance of the credit in the sum of approximately
RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the other reserve of the
Company.

In addition, RMB17,470,000 recognised as credited to other
reserve of the Company represents the difference between
the amount of consideration shares issued and the carrying
amount of non-controlling interest acquired plus the waiver of
amount due to non-controlling shareholder of RMB38,588,000
as detailed in note 31(ii). The waiver of amount due to non-
controlling shareholder is a non-cash transaction of the Group.

Pt it

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BEARREERERERBAZRIETE JI6H
REBR_F-—_FRER—RREME
BEMER-

EHEEREAFERBIRARARRNR
HRAZEFIZEZBEH TR ZEEHTREN
EREMEEIRELHZIER

HihfdE (BRI EHABE)ER
MuERIEENERE NZT—X Fh
A+—H&EBRREQAGEMEERL EE
o AR AR B AR 15 % B - BIR AR A "R S
BEENR-ZE—NF_A-TtHLBEZE
HEBREE4Y3,049,440,00058 7T - AILEA 2
HIRFRIEI D ANBEEEA QR 2 BT
E18491,824,634,000/8 7T« #4 T #EBR F0IE
#91,224,806,0007% JT 5T AR 2 &) H b {7
=R

AN ERBFAEMEEBEZARE

17,470,000CiEE B ITRER D &5 &
B U5 B JE 4% % 4 25 BR B AN BT 5E31GH)FT
SRl B AT FEIE R R A A R
38,588,0007T 2 Z B8 © FA 0 JE 1 FEIE AR AR
BREDNAEEERERH -




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREREX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ=—F—NF+=ZA=1+—HIFZE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
+ZB=+—-8B +-—A=+—H
HEE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETFTT ARETFT
(restated)
(&LE5)
Operating activities REED
Profit (loss) for the year/period AEE/HEEH (EE) 722,659 (80,105)
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs EF{®N 139,388 37,255
Bank interest income RITHE WA (3,046) (3,494)
Interest income from loan receivables U E 3k 2 F B A (8,657) (17,376)
Dividend income from financial assets ~ Z A FEF AR 2 HKEE
at FVTPL BN (436) (546)
Share of results of an associate B ENRIER 11,643 632
Depreciation of property, plant ME BERREITE
and equipment 13,910 9,247
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELERE 29,338 -
Release of prepaid lease payments R TENEERIE - 20,453
Reversal on impairment loss on H{th fE UK IE 2 R (B B 1R [
other receivables - (320)
Write-down of inventories of properties HMUR ¥ %FE - 605
Share-based payments expenses PARRD RE % 2 F X 2,640 7,291
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWME BEREREZ (W
plant and equipment =) BB (41) 2
Loss on disposal of an HEREMEZER
investment property 235 -
Gain on disposal of interest in HER—FBERRNER
an associate Wz (151,380) -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERATEFABR T
at FVTPL BEZ W= (239) -
Change in fair value of BREMEZATEED
investment properties (19,747) (63,690)
Change in fair value upon transfer BEVEGEERTREMER
from inventories of properties to ZRNTEE
investment properties (382,058) -
Change in fair value of financial assets & A FEFABR U BEE
at FVTPL N EE 30,364 49,157
Change in fair value of derivative AMREEZITETES D2
component of convertible bond NEEEE 9,334 -

E =R ARA R
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_H=+—HILFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
+ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
LEE IENEAR
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ftaE ARMF T ARE T
(restated)
(&)
Operating cash flows before movements 4B & & S8R 2 KLHE T E
in working capital 393,907 (40,889)
Increase in inventories of properties MEFEE (1,757,997) (2,504,705)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables, JEUZ R 2K « H b fE Uy 278 K FE 14 3%
other receivables and prepayments 18 ($n) m (295,432) 1,253,901
Increase (decrease) in trade and other  JEFBR A R E b JE N TR IB &2
payables and accruals FEF BRI CRL) 702,571 (653,017)
Increase in contract costs & Ak AN (33,721) (64,522)
Increase in contract liabilities AHBELEM 1,831,572 2,491,802
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 840,900 482,570
Income taxes paid FrERe R (115,791) (130,810)
Net cash from operating activities & EZBHFTEREEHE 725,109 351,760
Investing activities REED
Bank interest received RITEWH B 3,046 3,494
Interest received from loan receivables  EUE 2~ B UL F| & 8,657 17,376
Dividend received from financial assets 12 A FEFABRZHBEEZ
at FVTPL B E 436 546
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERANFEFABEZ
assets at FVTPL MBEEMERE 6,192 -
Repayment from loan receivables BEERWER 127,790 17,218
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEWE MENEREZ
and equipment FTi8 58 101 -
Proceeds on disposal of HEREME 2 ASHIA
investment properties 1,120 -
Acquisition of interest in an associate Ut BEEE 4 A F) 2 21 - (207,200)
Proceeds on disposal of interest in HEN—HBEATNER Y
an associate FTi8 58 21 346,782 -
Advance to related companies ARl R CNGIE /S (442,802) (291,692)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

%Aiﬁﬁﬁ%%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE=FT—NF+-A=1+—HIFE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
+ZB=+—-8B +-—A=+—H
EEE IENEA
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ft ARMF T ARETT
(restated)
(&&E5)
Repayments from related companies BN REEIE 312,860 726,873
Advance to non-controlling shareholders &1 Fff B A & JE 15 AR AR 38 24 50
of subsidiaries (20,595) -
Placement of restricted bank deposits 7B R R 5|17 FER (49,816) (75,778)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 17 & %R %l $8 1777 X 77,320 17,201
Purchase of property, plant BEME BERHRE
and equipment (13,930) (11,911)
Payments to construction of properties Z:REETDYE 2 MR
under development (234,396) (131,261)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WE—FENBARZERAER
a subsidiary HEE 37 (44,056) -
Refund of deposits paid for properties REFREETYEDN 2K S
under development 50,000 13,224
Payments for right-for-use assets/ THEREEE AE LK
leasehold lands (92) -
Net cash from investing activities REZFEH2HELTFHE 128,617 78,090
Financing activities MEED
Interest paid for bank RITREMEEZERFE
and other borrowings (404,246) (287,884)
Interest paid for bonds payable B EHZEMNFIR (379) (495)
Interest paid for lease liabilities MERBZENFA (179) -
Repayment of bank and other BEFTREMEEZENHFE
borrowings (4,039,501) (1,370,803)
New bank and other borrowings raised #¥7igRT R EMEE 4,201,932 600,000
Repayments of bonds payable BERMNES (9,698) -
Repayments of lease liabilities BEMERR (1,830) -
Capital contribution from REFERERZTE
non-controlling interests - 29,800
Payments for acquisition of entities WEE L EIEH B 2 3K
under common control (219,745) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17 {84 I& 1 2 BT 15 518 1,707 -
Advance from non-controlling BB A A FE AR AR R B K
shareholders of subsidiaries - 110,682
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTMRNER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z_—F—NF+_H=+—HILFE

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\E
t=A=+-HB TZA=+—H
LEE LESUE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
(restated)
(&=E7)
Repayments to non-controlling BEME QA ERRERRIE
shareholders of subsidiaries (239,784) -
Advance to a director M—ZEEFLN (286,200) -
Advance from a director —ZEFLHN - 99,626
Advance to related companies Bl EENGIEREN (1,039,853) (1,228,381)
Repayments from related companies iE AR ERNIE 1,482,928 1,783,752
Net cash used in financing activities BEZEFARESFE (554,848) (263,703)
Net increase in cash ReRBESEEMFHE
and cash equivalents 298,878 166,147
Cash and cash equivalents at the FY,/HOzHeRBEEE
beginning of year/period 409,498 245,856
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes M [E R & 8) v §/ £ (1,100) (2,505)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FR /KRR ERASEE
end of year/period 707,276 409,498
Analysis of the balance of cash RERBEZEERDIN
and cash equivalents
Bank balance and cash RITEREIRS 707,276 409,498
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

GENERAL

China Sandi Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in the Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”). Its parent and
ultimate parent is United Century International Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Guo lJiadi. The address
of registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and Room 3405, 34th
Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its associate and principal
subsidiaries are set out in notes 21 and 47 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.

Change of presentation currency

The presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements in prior financial periods was Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"). In current year, the Group has
changed its presentation currency for the preparation
of its consolidated financial statements from HK$
to RMB in order to allow for greater transparency
of the underlying performance of the Group as the
principal operations of the Group are now conducted
in the PRC with substantially all of its transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. The directors of the
Company consider that it is more appropriate to use
RMB as the presentation currency in presenting the
operating results and financial positions of the Group.
Comparative financial information was represented in
RMB accordingly.

—REHR

PR =R AR AR ([ARA])
ERBREAMRZIZ2AAER
NAEROREABAERSMAE
RAR ([BRZF]) Em-HEEFRQ
A & & #£ 5 A B AUnited Century
International Limited (A % & & %
HE([RBREXES)FMKILZ
UNEIDIES =-S5 DW= -1 1B el o
ARalzaMEERTEL XN
2f 2 #h ik 5 B A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda& & /& T 7 & 1 168-2005%
=P OB B KRE34183405% ©

KRB B —EREZER AT - HEEE
N REBENB AR Z EEEE DR
B Y AMTFE21 K247 ©

ZEGAMBRENARE (AR
K12 RARBZNEEER -

BEZIEH

RAEVBHREANBEVRABNZS
ERRET - RAFE AEBEEH
RHESREVBRRNZ7EEHE
TTEER/ARE USAEEZIEH
RABTAFRAE REARAEERE
ZEBEBRTERE EBKHD
RBHPUAREFTER LB E
BEERARBZ2IREE - AR
AESRAR E2INAREZEE:
BRIBIRRE  LAREIERZS
ERERAE - L BRY B ER AL LA
AREZ7-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE
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GENERAL (continued)
Change of functional currency

During the current year, the functional currency of the
Company was changed from HK$ to RMB upon the
completion of an acquisition of All Excel Industries
Limited (“All Excel”) as detailed in note 2. Subsequent to
the acquisition, the Company mainly holds subsidiaries
whose underlying operations are primarily in the PRC
with RMB being the currency that mainly influences the
Group’s underlying transactions, events and conditions.
The directors of the Company have determined that RMB
better reflects the economic substance of the Company
and its business activity as an investment holding
company primarily holding interest in subsidiaries with
primary economic environment in the PRC. Accordingly,
the functional currency of the Company was changed
prospectively from the date of acquisition.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The Group accounts for all its business combinations
involving entities under common control using the
principles of merger accounting in accordance with
Accounting Guideline 5 "Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations" (“AG 5") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA").

—RER @)

BE LGN

RAFEE RUBL2BEEERD A
([2REE|)TRE  ARAHINEE
EMRBETEEAARYE FEHR
52 BB IS ANTEBHAH
WEBEBEEEMRPENEBEAR
ARBATEYEAEEARRS -
EHRERNEE - ARAIEECHE
AR E AR AR T EEE Y
REEABREERATNRTHATERE
EBEH NI B A TS A S LR
EB B AATMIEEEE ALK
B AR T -

PRE-ZEFHEBNERS
B prEsHE

AEBUERESRF—1ZFEE
MEBEH IRIEAFTESEA
gRhz (&5HiE3)) 5% [F—&
HTaMNasEFIE] ([ (&5
$E3l) S KRB A HFEHEANIR
Alle




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

Acquisition of All Excel

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“S&P
Agreement 1) with Primary Partner International Limited
(the “Vendor”) dated 21 September 2018, the Group,
through a subsidiary namely Grand Supreme Limited
("Grand Supreme”), acquired 100% equity interest in All
Excel (together with its subsidiaries collectively referred
to as "All Excel Group”), from the Vendor, a company
beneficially owned by Mr. Guo Jiadi. Pursuant to the S&P
Agreement 1, the total consideration of the acquisition
was HK$1,500,000,000, which is satisfied by i) cash of
HK$200,000,000; ii) issue of interest bearing promissory
notes with principal amount of HK$600,000,000; iii)
issue of 485,436,893 ordinary shares of the Company
(“Consideration Shares”) to the Vendor at HK$0.412 per
Consideration Share (equivalent to HK$200,000,000);
and iv) issue of convertible bond in the principal amount
of HK$500,000,000 and is convertible into shares of
the Company at conversion price of HK$0.412 per
conversion share. The maturity date of the convertible
bond is 5 years from the date of issue. All Excel was
established in the BVI and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in property development, property investment
and hotel operation business in the PRC. The acquisition
was completed on 30 January 2019 (the “Acquisition
Completion Date 1”). The cash consideration of
HK$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB174,976,000) has
been paid during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Key terms of the consideration are set out in notes 31(i),
34 and 35 respectively.

2.

PRE—EZEHEBNEKS
HFHEstEstE e

Wi 28

R 4% E2Primary Partner International
Limited ([EH])RZZ—N\F AN
AZ+—BiIUWMmESEH=%([E
B — ) AEEEAWNB A
A]Grand Supreme Limited ([ Grand
Supreme | ) BE AW E 2R GERE
MBARGEAIZREE]) (36
MMEEEREAR 2 AF) 100%%
B-BEBEEEWZ - WESER
R {8 A1,500,000,000/ 7T » JAi) I8
4200,000,000/8 70 ii) BT A2
%8 /600,000,00058 7T 89 51 B & 3,
ZR DA BEAANSRRERD
0.4127 JT % 17485,436,893% A&
AEBR(TRERSG]) (BER
200,000,000/ 7T) : Kiv) EHT A S
%8 /500,000,000 jT 89 A £ % (&
FoUiHREBETRERRR%H0.412
BTEBAERNRRIRGDEE AR
BREHFNINEE BB EITHHERS
Fo2BRNABREZHEESKL HHK
BRATZ2aETBREMELEE-
MERERBEEEER - WEEE
R-ZE—AF—A=1+H([kESE
HEKBH—|) XK -HBHE_T—N
F+-_AZ=Z+—BLEFE BHaR
200,000,000/ 7t (HHE R AR
174,976,000 2 F 2 1 °

REZEZRAD B R K E
31()~ 34235 ©

HE=EZERARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE
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MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

Acquisition of Power Success Development
Incorporated

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“S&P
Agreement 2") with Top Trendy Holdings Limited (“Top
Trendy”), the Group, through Grand Supreme acquire
100% equity interests in Power Success Development
Incorporated (“Power Success”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as "Power Success Group”),
from Top Trendy, a company beneficially owned by
Mr. Guo Jiadi. Pursuant to the S&P Agreement 2, the
consideration is RMB243,670,000 which is satisfied
by cash. Power Success was established in the BVI
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development business in the PRC. The acquisition was
completed on 28 November 2019. The cash consideration
of RMB44,769,000 has been paid during the year ended
31 December 2019.

In applying AG 5 to the acquisition of All Excel Group
and Power Success Group, the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at 1 April 2018
and 31 December 2018 have been restated to include
the assets and liabilities of All Excel Group and Power
Success Group as if they were within the Group on these
respective dates (see below for the financial impact).
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the nine months ended
31 December 2018 have also been restated to include the
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows
of All Excel Group and Power Success Group as if they
were within the Group throughout the period (also see
below for financial impact).

2.

PRE—EZEHEBNEKS
HFHEstEE 2

g Power Success Development
Incorporated

BB Top Trendy Holdings Limited
([Top Trendy ]) &I 8 B & 1 &
(E&EWm@E_]) AEEFEBGrand
SupremeBE Top Trendyld & Power
Success Development Incorporated
([Power Success |) & EH [ & A &)
(%78 & [Power Success®&=ME |) (30
mak+EBERER 2 AR)100%K
E-REEEWME - REAAR
#243,670,0007C - BBR & X T
Power SuccessiA 2 & E X B S A 3L -
EMBARETEEHFENEMEER
¥ -WEEER-_ZT—NF+—A
“tNHEK -B#E=ZT—hF+=
A=+—HBLFE RERBEARK
44,769,0007C 2 F 32+ °

70 Uk B 2 B% & B & Power Success
SEHEA (FEHE3l) B A&
BER—F-N\FHA—HEZZ—N
F+ A=+ —HHOGEPBERIRK
BEEES UBREEEEE KPower
SuccessE EMEERBE MAZE
NRANZEHBEHBRE AAEEE
T (MBFERTX) - HEZZT—N
F+-A=+—HILLEAMEGEEIE
mERAEMEZERER GKEESE
PrREGERERERAKEHEE
I+ LA B HE & 5% 5 [ &2 Power Success
SENMBERE EREPRFESN
E UWRAZEATNEBEHREANE A
AEEET (MBEERETX) -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

The effects of acquisition of All Excel Group and
Power Success Group using merger accounting on
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the nine months ended 31
December 2018 are as follows:

2. SRE—EZEHEBNEKS
HFHEstEstE e

BE-_ZT-/N\Ft-_HA=1—HL
NER ERAHEEHREIER
REMEZEREREEZESER

JBIT

Power Successs B HY 52

Business
Audited combination of Audited and
and entities under restated after
restated common control adjustment
WRE-—
RERR EHERN AEREAKER
FERT E e REET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBEF T ARBF T
Revenue U 5
Goods and services 721 an N AR 7% 47,502 218,203 265,705
Rental of investment properties & W¥Ef & 80,377 18,966 99,343
Total revenue FENON 127,879 237,169 365,048
Cost of sales and services HE N RS KA (28,348) (188,323) (216,671)
Gross profit ESv 99,531 48,846 148,377
Other income E bl A 19,828 4,016 23,844
Other gains and losses Hth s K B 18 (22,470) (23,021) (45,491)
Change in fair value of LEMEZ N NTER
investment properties (900) 64,590 63,690
Change in fair value of BANFEFABRZZ
financial assets at FVTPL MEEERAFEED (49,157) - (49,157)
Selling and distribution expenses $H& K 7§55 X (32,062) (48,970) (81,032)
Administrative expenses TR = (36,082) (66,367) (102,449)
Finance costs & B AN (29,550) (7,705) (37,255)
Share of results of an associate  JE{L B N B LE (632) - (632)
Loss before tax BB ATE 1B (51,494) (28,611) (80,105)
Income tax expense P15 X (21,002) (23,000) (44,002)
Loss for the period rHEEE (72,496) (51,611) (124,107)

E =R ARA R

2019 3} 1 1 9




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

2.

China Sandi Holdings Limited

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

2. SRE—EZEHEBNEKS
HFHEstEE 2

Business
Audited combination of Audited and
and entities under restated after

restated common control adjustment
W RE—

REGK RHERYN AELEER

RET EBas REES

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT ARET T

Other comprehensive income H 1t 2 & i 3

Item that may be reclassified ~ HEAJEEX P EEBm 2
subsequently to profit or loss BH :
Exchange differences arising on M E IR EKES 7&K

translation of foreign |
operations 11,546 - 11,546
Total comprehensive expense A E2ERA B
for the period (60,950) (51,611) (112,561)
Loss for the period attributable to LA T~ A+ G HIREIE :
- Owners of the Company —KABERA (69,102) (45,478) (114,580)
- Non-controlling interests — IR E S (3,394) (6,133) (9,527)
(72,496) (51,611) (124,107)
Total comprehensive expense LA~ A £ fE{E R HifE 2 H BI
for the period attributable to: X 48%3 :
- Owners of the Company —RNAREE A (57,556) (45,478) (103,034)
- Non-controlling interests —JE IR R R 2 (3,394) (6,133) (9,527)
(60,950) (51,611) (112,561)
LOSS PER SHARE BRE#E
— Basic (RMB cents) —ER(ARES) (1.55) (1.02) (2.57)
- Diluted (RMB cents) —#E(AR%D) (1.55) (1.02) (2.57)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS 2. SRE-ZHEBNEKS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES Bt astastE @)
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)
The effects of the adoption of merger accounting on HE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—RAK=
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 T-N\FUA—B HKBEEHGE
December 2018 and 1 April 2018 are as follows: HEEWBRARROTZENT
31.12.2018 Business 31.12.2018 1.4.2018 Business 1.4.2018
Audited  combination  Audited and Audited  combination  Audited and
and of entities under  restated after and of entities under  restated after
restated common control adjustment restated common control adjustment
RZ2-NE RZB-NE
RZB-N% tZAZt-H “E-N\F BmA-A
tZB=1-A BRE- (HER mA-A BRE- (HER
(BEHR BHERN BERR (BEHR BHERN BEGRR
&) ES o &) &) £Hek HEY))
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Note) (Note)
(W) (W)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 0% BEREE 7720 86,665 94,385 4,265 87,417 91,682
Investment properties REN% 3,163,600 1,529,549 4,693,149 3,164,500 1,458,540 4,623,040
Properties under development REhni 172,099 179,154 351,253 144322 75,671 219,993
Prepaid lease payments BRSNS 142,420 1,008,096 1,150,516 142,420 1,055,819 1,198,239
Interest in an associate R-BEERE ER 256,406 - 256,406 - - -
Deposits paid for properties HERTWEZEMES
under development 50,000 - 50,000 63,224 - 63,224
Loan receivables EHER 110,000 17,790 127,190 - 17,790 17,790
Deferred tax assets EXHBEE 11,503 27,536 39,039 11,814 10,408 2,222
3913748 2,848,790 6,762,538 3,530,545 2,705,645 6,236,190
Current assets TBEE
Inventories of properties ELER 2,387,869 5,290,006 7,677,815 1,007,086 3,886,746 4,893,832
Contract costs ARRA 38,797 38,632 77429 11,009 1,898 12,907
Trade receivables, other receivables EUERT EfERFAR
and prepayments jEDE 242,565 1,516,418 1,758,983 880,811 1,986,590 2,867,401
Prepaid lease payments - due within B HEHE-—ERI/H
one year - 27211 27211 - 27271 27271
Loan receivables EYRER - - - 127,18 - 127,218
Prepaid income tax JEEiE 14,647 110,102 124,149 8,300 70137 78437
Financial assets at FVTPL RATET ARG BB EE 60,611 - 60,611 100,701 - 100,701
Amounts due from related companies  EWEE N EZUE 13 1,083,569 1,083,582 m 752,937 753,048
Restricted bank deposits RRHBTER 505 89,839 90,344 504 31,263 31,767
Bank balances and cash RiTEHBRRS 130,923 278575 409,498 161,423 84,433 245,856
2,875,930 8434412 11,310,342 2,297,163 6,841,275 9,138,438

E =R ARA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

2.

China Sandi Holdings Limited

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS 2. SRE-ZHEBNEKS
COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES e ftEsHE (2
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)
31.12.2018 Business 31.12.2018 1.4.2018 Business 1.4.2018
Audited  combination  Audited and Audited  combination  Audited and
and of entities under  restated after and of entities under  restated after
restated  common control adjustment restated  common control adjustment
RZE-NE R-E-NE
R-E-NE tZB=t+-H ZE-N\E mA-A
TZB=t-H PRE- (F2g mA-B BRE- (HER
(BEUR BHERN GEuR (BEUR BHERN fER
HEL) EHAH BE3) HEL)! E3 o FEL)
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AREFT AREFT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
(Note) (Note)
(i) (i)
Current liabilities Tag%
Trade and other payables and accruals BN BEFUIREMEREUER
E:rER 363,175 1,719,370 2,082,545 188,778 2,484,380 2,673,158
Contract liabilties ERELH 2127229 2,504,497 4721726 1,091,646 1,138,012 2,229,658
Income tax payable ERAER 37,107 91,080 128187 45,990 141,962 187,952
Amounts due to related companies ENBENTTE 19,889 1,460,559 1,480,448 39,294 510,458 549,752
Amounts due to non-controlling ERMBARFERERNE
shareholders of subsidiaries 198,990 79,382 278,372 123,190 44,500 167,690
Amount due to a director EN-REZHE - 385,826 385,826 - 286,200 286,200
Bank and other borrowings - due FIRABEE-—ERIE
within one year 119,750 2,555,965 2,675,715 147,797 1,203,452 1,351,249
Bonds payable - due within one year  EfEH——FRE|H 9,404 - 9,404 - - -
2,875,544 8,886,679 11,762,223 1,636,695 5,808,964 7,445,659
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (BF)FE 386 (452,267) (451,881) 660,468 1,032,311 1,692,779
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 3,914,134 2,396,523 6,310,657 4191013 3,737,956 7,928,969
Capital and reserves BARGE
Share capital A 37,468 - 37,468 37,468 - 37,468
Reserves Gl 2,674,885 1,270,004 3,944,889 2,699,399 816,612 3,516,011
Equity attributable to owners ARAEBAELER
of the Company 2,112,353 1,270,004 3,982,357 2,736,867 816,012 3,553,479
Non-controlling interests EBRER 49,935 28,702 78,637 (71) 58435 58,364
Total equity #ER 2,762,288 1,298,706 4,060,994 2,736,796 875,047 3,611,843
Non-current liabilities FRB5E
Bonds payable Eft % - - - 8,280 - 8,280
Deferred tax liabilities EEREER 624,626 233,255 857,881 609,024 212,111 821,795
Bank and other borrowings - due after  HTREMEE-—F4/H
one year 527,220 864,562 1,391,782 836,913 2,650,138 3,487,051
1,151,846 1,097,817 2,249,663 1454217 2,862,909 4,317,126
3914134 2,3%,523 6,310,657 4,191,013 3,737,956 7,928,969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS 2. SRE—EFEENEKS

COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES Bt EBrEsE ()

UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)

Note: These adjustments are to include the assets and liabilities fiet: ZEABRBER=Z—NFE+=A
of All Excel Group and Power Success Group as at 31 =t+t—BE-_Z—\FWA—H
December 2018 and 1 April 2018 into the Group's 2B EE B Kk Power Success®E [E /Y
consolidated financial statements. BEEMBEMAREENLGS

BHE -

The effects of acquisition of All Excel Group and HE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—H1Ah

Power Success Group using merger accounting on the BR ERAEHGHEHEEZESE

condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the B & Power Success B A Bk ¥ A5 AR 47

nine months ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: GRENERNTENAT

Business

Audited combination of Audited and
and entities under restated after

restated common control adjustment

RER HEEHERZ RER
REES EBAH RBES|
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT AEETT ARETT

Net cash from RETBHMBRSFE

operating activities 444,895 (93,135) 351,760
Investing activities REED
Bank interest received BUH 8 1,516 1,978 3,494
Interest received from FEM E T2 B W FI B

loan receivables 17,376 - 17,376
Dividend received from financial & A FEEE ABZZ

assets at FVTPL HHEEZEMKRE 546 - 546
Repayment from loan receivables {& i fE 4 & 5 17,218 - 17,218
Acquisition of interest in W E AR 2w

an associate (207,200) - (207,200)
Placement of restricted FEXBHIRITER

bank deposits - (75,778) (75,778)
Withdrawal of restricted REZRBIRITER

bank deposits - 17,201 17,201
Advance to related companies  J& < B3 2 7] 518 - (291,692) (291,692)
Repayments from MENRIEENIE

related companies 111 726,762 726,873
Purchase of property, plant BEWE BELSE

and equipment (4,908) (7,003) (11,911)
Refund of deposits paid for RERERFVEENZ

properties under development & & 13,224 - 13,224
Payments to construction of BERERPYEZAR

properties under development (27,777) (103,484) (131,261)
Net cash (used in) from REZTH (A MBES

investing activities RE (189,894) 267,984 78,090
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

2. MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR A BUSINESS 2. SRE—EFHEENEKS

COMBINATION INVOLVING ENTITIES Bt EBrESE ()
UNDER COMMON CONTROL (continued)
Business
Audited combination of Audited and
and entities under restated after
restated common control adjustment
AER
RER HEZHNERZ RER
RBET ERaot REES|
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBTF T ARBTT
Financing activities MEED
Interest paid for bank RITREMBEZEMNFE
and other borrowings (37,022) (250,862) (287,884)
Interest paid for bonds payable FEfT{E% 2 24 F 2 (495) - (495)
Repayment of bank EERITREMEE
and other borrowings EFE (341,157) (1,029,646) (1,370,803)
New bank and other MR TREMEES
borrowings raised - 600,000 600,000
Capital contribution from REFERERZTE
non-controlling interests 20,000 9,800 29,800
Advance from non-controlling [ B2 A1 IFILAR IR R K
shareholders of subsidiaries 75,800 34,882 110,682
Repayment from a director —REEBEN - 99,626 99,626
Advance to related companies [ 8E A B 58 (122) (1,228,259) (1,228,381)
Repayment from MiE N A EB A
related companies - 1,783,752 1,783,752
Net cash (used in) from BEETE (A MBES
financing activities R (282,996) 19,293 (263,703)
Net (decrease) increase in cash REREELZE (FD) ¥
and cash equivalents nEEE (27,995) 194,142 166,147
Cash and cash equivalents at HHAZEEREBELEE
the beginning of period 161,423 84,433 245,856
Effect of foreign exchange GNEETE R ) v 2 &
rate changes (2,505) - (2,505)
Cash and cash equivalents at HKXzEEREEEE
the end of period 130,923 278,575 409,498
Analysis of the balance of RERAEEEERIM
cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance and cash RITEBRES 130,923 278,575 409,498
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Starting from the annual consolidated financial
statements for the nine months period ended 31
December 2018, the financial year end date of the
Company was changed from 31 March to 31 December
to align with the financial year end date of the
Company's principal operating subsidiaries established
in the PRC for which their accounts are statutorily
required to be prepared with a financial year end date
of 31 December. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the current year covers the twelve months
period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.
The corresponding comparative figures shown for the
consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
cover the nine months period from 1 April 2018 to 31
December 2018 and therefore may not be comparable
with amounts shown for the current year.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

3.

USRSV BHRR2EE

EEzEz_ZT—N\F+=-A=+—H1t
NER BRI FELRE SRR -
ARRANYBFEELEBHABA=A
=+—HERAt+ZA=+—H'§
fEE AR TR B S A £ B ERH
BRAMNVBEFEAERR S A
ZEMNBRARBIREAEERU+=A
=+ HAVBFELE D HFRERE
B-RAlt XAFENLGEMERE R
EBE T hF—HA—HEZ=-ZZ—A
F+-_A=+—HIE+-—EAHM-
GABREREMEEKEER GAE
nEYR - GEREeRERKEBN
ERZEELREFTFRER T
—NEMA—BE-_T—-N\F+_A
=+—HBIEAAEASM Atk
B ARFE RS EEA L -

FE FA#TE] & 78 B 35 3 5 22 Al
(TEEMBREEA])RE
& R/T A

AEBRAFEERERTEGHAED
RERMZ AT BB RELE
AR EAERT A o

ERUEREENS 6 HE
B (ARGKEERERE MEHREITETE
2) -2EEBE

BEMBASENSZE  AMREATZENK
(B3T%)

BRGIRAR9% (Bi4) S8BT HELRE

BRGIRAR8H (BiF) RBERARAEDTZH
REER

BRMBREEN (BIA) —F-1FE-F-tF
BHERMBREEND
Ry

BN Pt R E AR B
HEER M EERI A E AR BN AR
FBEFEZHBRARRKE R, L&
RIFAVBHRAZRBLEEATE -
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 "Leases"
("HKAS 17"), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
"Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease"
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease
in accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts
equal to the related lease liabilities by applying HKFRS
16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.

ER#HTERAMBEHREER
(TERAMBREENREHE
CHENE D)

EBPKREERZE165 - [HE ]
AEERAFEERERESYHRH
EREBIE1657 - B AP IS REERE
16 MR BEAEGFEREI17REE
([BAEERE175:]) RERBH

HEESR
AREBERAIITIEREZTTA Bk
RIEAEEEAERNE TR NER
(BB BERERELZES) 78
B4 [EERHFROBREBEE ] ER
REENANERE M HREER
F165%  MBA N LAIIL IEH R B
HEMNEH  BITRAZER - Fit
AEEYW EBFHFERERER B
AIEFENGL -

R T NF—A—BRNZKRRFIL
FETHEOME  AEBRFEA
HREBESHERRBEREMBRS
ZRIF 165 T B E AR ERE
%o

EREEA
AEBDEWERTEREREEL
F165 MAEFFERERXERER
(M —F—-NAF—A—H)®ER-

R-ZE—NhE—F—HB AEBEG
JEFR BB IEHREAERIZE16.C8(b)I0)

SERRENAEAERY ERE
BN EREAYE B2 IAEER
09 25 IR - 3 B 5 b B
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 4, FERFTERBUBEREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([BERAMBHREEL]) KA
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BRI (4#)

("HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) BEEMBRELEAE165 - [HE ]
(#&)
As a lessee (continued) ERABEA (&)
When applying the modified retrospective approach RIBEREAEBMEREELE16
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the SRIE THEIBRI B A AR AKE
following practical expedients to leases previously RERBEHEREERCRIBBEEESE
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease- HRE17TR B RKEHERREN
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective EEMEENEERAUTAITEE
lease contracts: FE:
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and . EETHEHHBEXERBERE
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends FF2EAAABRNE SRR
within 12 months of the date of initial application; AEEEMEEERE: &
and
ii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the i. REXERHB=FEREEE
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application. IRr 3 BR 11 08 B B P A o
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 4. FERAFMIERBUBREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (IEBMBHREEAN])RE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LHESED
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued) ERMBHREENE 16— [HE]
(#&)
As a lessee (continued) EBEBA (&)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously RERLEN D EAKLHESHWIHEY
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied MEaEN AEEDERRENE
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities AEAEEE TR e E%F
at the date of initial application. The weighted average RoPEEERMANERYEE
incremental borrowing rates applied by the relevant H RN\ FHE 5.13%%56.18% o
group entities range from 5.13% to 6.18% per annum.
At
1 January
2019
R_ZE—NF
—H—AH
RMB’000
(restated)
ARKF T
(#&E31)
Operating lease commitments as at RZE—NF+ZA=+—HH
31 December 2018 ST A R 1,118
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant HEBBREEERNEETHIR
incremental borrowing rates 1,060
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases ¥ : R A% — L HHAE (231)
Lease liabilities relating to operating leases RZZE—NF—RA—HAEAABYBER
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 as at &S A|F 1655 MR HELLHEELEBL
1 January 2019 HEBE 829
Analysed as RATERETHT
Current & 344
Non-current SEMB 485
829
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as
at 1 January 2019 comprises the following:

4, ERFHIIEAMBEREER
(IR BERELEA])RHE
ERTA ()

ERMBHREENE 16— [HE ]
(%)
ERERA (&)

R-Z—hE—A—BfEE RN
A ENEAEENT

Right-of-use

assets

EREEE

Note RMB’000
ft &t ARET T

Right-of-use assets relating to operating
leases recognised upon application of

& P 2 7 B 795 i o 2 B 56 1 65 B T
RNEEHERBERREEE

HKFRS 16 829
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BEMNBENZFEHHLE (a) 1,177,787
1,178,616

By class: AT 3R -
Leasehold lands AE L 1,177,787
Leased properties HEME 829
1,178,616

(@) Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC
were classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the current and non-current portion of prepaid
lease payments amounting to approximately
RMB27,271,000 and RMB1,150,516,000
respectively were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Effective from 1 January 2019, leasehold lands which
were classified as properties under development are
measured under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

(@ RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8"
EHRBEMEE L TENRIES
HAEMNEEFIE -FRAEBHY
BREERF 16571 BANEE
RERRSEIEREILD D 5
ABANEREE27,271,0007T AR
1,150,516,0007c# EE#H D B A
FREEE-

B-E-hE—A—BE 2BEA%
EHYMENEE L REFTEMBR
FEERIE 165K ILA AR RETITE
FMAEfIREREE -
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated.

(a) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as
if the existing leases are modified as at 1 January
2019. The application has had no impact on the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. However, effective 1 January
2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease
term after modification are recognised as income on
straight-line basis over the extended lease term.

(b) Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition. The
adjustment has had no material financial impact on
the consolidated financial statements for the current
year.

(c) Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has
applied HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers" (“HKFRS 15") to allocate consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease
components. The change in allocation basis has had
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current year.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

1 3 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

4., ERHIEBMEREER
(IERAMBHREER ) RE
EHENE D

ERMBHRELERE 165 - [HE ]

(&)
As a lessor (continued) EEBHBA (&)
Carrying
Carrying amounts
amounts under
as at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
R=B-I#%F
—HA—H
R-ZZE-—NF EBMERE
+=ZA=+-—H 2RI 51655
ZERHEE FAE BHTINZEREE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARSTFT ARBTFT ARKTFT
(audited and (audited and
restated) restated)
(EZ R (EZ R
KET) KEF)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Right-of-use assets EREEE - 1,178,616 1,178,616
Prepaid lease payments FERHERE 1,150,516 (1,150,516) -
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payments EFERE 27,271 (27,271) -
Current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 344 344
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE - 485 485

HE=EZERARAR
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 4, FERAFTTEBMBEHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BEBMBREREN]) RE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BRI (4#)

("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not EHEMEEHRERZHI BT BT

yet effective HEERHEBITAE

The Group has not early applied the following new and AREE L MITF &ML T 2 BME

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are REMZ BB BRELERI LA

not yet effective: CHIEE

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BEMBEREER REE A

E17%

Amendments to Definition of a Business? BEMBEREER (BH TR
HKFRS 3 F35% (BEIAR)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BEMBREER REFEAKERA
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its FIORRELGHE HAELRAZEN
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? Rl 285% (BT A) BEHEIIE

Amendments to Definition of Material* BEEGHENE IR RTEEM
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 BB G ERF8H

(3T A)

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?* ERMBRELER iR B A E
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 Fo5E FE ek
and HKFRS 7 BISE39% R & B

BREEAETR
SEHESY

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! R-EZ_—F—-H—HxZ&HH
January 2021. 2 FERREER -

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions ’ ERRNBBEMA - _FF—A
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning —HRZEFMAMNE EF R
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January RE AR ZRETHERBAHNE
2020. Wi o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date ’ REERBH 2 RFARZFELHM
to be determined. e

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ¢ RZBEZZF—A—A %R
January 2020. ZFEHRRER -

In addition to the above new and amendments to Br LR RIEET B AV BmE %

HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial AN BRI B RS RERR =

Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential T N\FEMm- -HRBEERHEM

amendments, “the Amendments to References to the B ER R E S ERMIRR S

Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards”, will be AR T _TF A —HzHE&

effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 PR H) A A Rk

January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned Bk TPt 2 #E] RARIERT BRI 1S

below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the RSN AR FE R TR AT

application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs BEMFE BT BBV ImEE
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial RIRA] B ARG & H iR G M B HRE
statements in the foreseeable future. ETBEATE-
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 "Definition
of Material"

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgments. In
particular, the amendments:

o include the concept of "obscuring" material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

J replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from "could influence" to "could reasonably be
expected to influence"; and

o include the use of the phrase "primary users"
rather than simply referring to "users" which
was considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across
all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the
Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2020.
The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

ERFIE B KREER
(IR BERELEA])RHE
ERTA ()

EHEMEHRERZHATEBHK
REZREERTA (&)
BBETIERIF1SAREBEERIE
83t (1557%) [EEZEZ%]
HZEFEBRBAELERNHE R
BMIMESI LR HEBWERETT
E5T- LERBRER]

EIREIEE2EHOMS
L BB R AR A B A B

e NMEEFREEEZUNEHEEMN
(AT EBEHFE | R (ATE
2%

e BEERFAITE®RE]
mIEEEMERE]  RRER
MR R B EMZERE - 28
AR RN ER -

ZHERTERME T BN R E £
MEE B0 UHEARER -_F—
THFE— A BB FEHESRH L
Mo FHHIERZFE TS HARH
MM AR R RBERERTE I
AREFERGEEMBERRTNZII R
WEE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “New Framework”) and the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards

The New Framework:
J reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

o introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and
an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a
measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

J states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

. discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Other than specific
standards which still refer to the previous versions of the
framework, the Group will rely on the New Framework
on its effective date in determining the accounting
policies especially for transactions, events or conditions
that are not otherwise dealt with under the accounting
standards.

ER#HTERAMBEHREER
(TERAMBREENREHE
CHEYE D)

ZE-N\FHBREBSHER ([H
BR|)RREATBYBREERE
DR

FAER -
o EHEIABENFEHEFME:
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of the reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment",
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application
of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 "Inventories" or value in use in
HKAS 36 "Impairment of Assets"”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

5.

FTEEHEE
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESFEE#)
(continued)
For financial instruments and investment properties which HRURAFEETRSURREER
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that fE DA AR IS A LR i) 8] A SR O (1B
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in HiT#ETAEMeR T AN EME
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated s EEEERMETRE  NUE
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation EERERE HERTNERERN
technique equals the transaction price. RGE -
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value AN s mEms AP EGE
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based BEATEFENE ABBRIEBRRE
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value ERATFEGFEE AR L
measurements are observable and the significance of the E’JEK'IEE“*E%%—%& CEZRRE
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which =& BT

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in s ZFEHRBABEBREERENER
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that HR ARG R EE B ER
the entity can access at the measurement date; EERT 5 2 B (REFHE)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices s ZFE_RBABEBEMEEXNEE

E&&F‘ﬂ&i’@T&ﬁmZ%JA%M@
(£ —BMABEOMERIN)

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset s ZF-HBMABEBREEXBEN
or liability. AR AR -

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out Bz EEGTHERNT

below:

Basis of consolidation N 2

The consolidated financial statements incorporate REMBHRERBEART REME %‘J

the financial statements of the Company and entities EBREMBAR 2 BHREK-

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is ZIK AIE AT ERRK E\'JZF’D\ETHX

achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

1 3 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year/period are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date of the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangement of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangement of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving

businesses under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they
had been combined from the date when the combining
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party's perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the combining businesses first
came under the common control, where this is a shorter
period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the beginning of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of a an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESFEE#)
(continued)
Investment in an associate (continued) REERA 2 HEKAK (&)
The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence REEGLED A ZEBIE RPN
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any ENA MR ] e H IR R E - I F
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the FREREEE ZRENEIEREAE
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in (BEBE ) EBRE BT %8536
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing SEAE —EEINSRE HERE
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair WHAIKE e (AERAEBERAT
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any EREERKAZyESE)HEE@E-
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, ER 2 ERREBRE TS DB EEM
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount BRI EEAEZEE BIEEE-
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is WNBE 12 2% & &y a] Y Bl & %8 18 hn - 2]
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that RREB S TR E 3650 R A O R
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently VEE S o
increases.
When the Group ceases to have significant influence EAEBRTHEMENIBEKRNY
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of O BARNELE LR WL
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain BhH7o2EbEss  MAAES Z WSk
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the EENERER - MAEEFRERN
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the At E ARER BZREBERR
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of EHAERELEREFE [T A |
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9"), the Group (BB RELERFESR])EE 2
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date BHEE AAEEeRNZBEATF
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial BitsRmREERD MZAFEEREE
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount BRERRH A TE - R IR
of the associate at the date the equity method was #ok e HERE &N B R BR BB B (A
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest REOZ R HERLSNTEE#EDSN
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest EAFEHENATE B
in the associate is included in the determination of the THRAEE TF & a2 B2 N Rl Ry Uk 25 =k &5
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the B AR N AEBBLINE
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in 2 mER AR B S N BRI A
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate SEAR REHEMZBE AR EE
on the same basis as would be required if that associate HEMRBEEESBBRTRTEHEE
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. ME - Bt Wz AR LaE R
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in Hih 2 E U AR RS EE BN
other comprehensive income by that associate would HEHBEEENRBERENDERIE
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the e B AREEeRNHESEE I »H
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain RABE N A 1B ES Sk B 18 A
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification HHEHoBEEE% (EREF S

114

OH]

¢
adjustment) upon disposal or partial disposal of the ) o
relevant associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an REENBIZIREKRANREESREY
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a WER KEEHBESEFAEZR LR
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value FIEREREHN BIreEHMte
upon such changes in ownership interests. NFE.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied. i.e. when "control"
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a good and service
(for a bundle of goods and services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

If control of distinct goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct goods or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

For sales of properties, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the control of the completed property
when the key was delivered to the buyers, the Group
has present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable. The deposit received for sale
of properties are presented as contract liabilities on the
consolidated statements of financial position.

For provision of property management and related
services, the Group agrees the fixed rate for services with
the customers upfront. As the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance, the revenue is recognised over time
when the performance obligations are satisfied. Payment
of the transaction is due immediately when performance
obligations are satisfied.

Revenue from hotel operation includes hotel room
revenue and food and beverage and other hotel revenue.
Hotel room income is recognised over the stay of guests.
The Group receives deposit from customers when the
hotel room reservation is made. The deposits received
from the contracts prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are recognised as customer deposits
under the Group's contract liabilities. Food and beverage
revenue is recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods and services is transferred to customers. Other
hotel income mainly comprises ancillary service income
which is recognised at a point in time when control of
the services is transferred to customers or over the service
period, depending on the terms of the contracts.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer
or the Group with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer. In
those circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before
the transfer of the associated goods or services in
which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for a significant financing component, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The relevant
interest expenses during the period between the
advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the
same basis as other borrowing costs.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises sales commissions as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is
subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a

performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group's performance in transferring

control of goods or services.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in

accordance with transitions in note 4)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FERTEHX (#)

(continued)

Leases (continued) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 AEBERAE A CGRIEM 4R

in accordance with transitions in note 4) ZBERBMERE BB HRELEL
F165%1% )

Short-term leases EEIHE

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition HPAMHABEME AR A2 Ak

exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months LMWETEBESEEEEENES

or less from the commencement date and do not contain AEEEAEHHEEERMA 2 RN

a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases HMEMNHEENRIZERELERHERA

are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over R RFAX -

the lease term.

Right-of-use assets EHELE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: EREEENKRAELE:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease e HEREWYLELE:
liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the ° ?ﬁsﬁﬁa\/ﬁﬁﬁszlﬁtﬂi{fﬁﬁ
commencement date, less any lease incentives BN REREWEERSE:
received,;

*  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and o AKEELNTMIBEEX

NS

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group . ?%ﬁé\ﬁﬂff?&ﬁ%@%\ﬁﬁﬁ‘
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets, Tﬁ%*ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%?iﬂ%@ﬁm
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring E"a’ﬁé?*ﬁﬁmﬂ*/ﬂ&{'ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ
the underlying asset to the condition required by TE YR 50 1 E AE B BN (i 5t

the terms and conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 4) (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-
of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet
the definition of investment property and inventory
are presented within “investment properties” and
“inventories of properties” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 4) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

J amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 4) (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) when the lease term has changed in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

J the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e  the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 4) (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 4)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the re-translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESFEE#)
(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) HNEE (42 )
The change in functional currency of the Company was ARRAeE¥ s B F g EHEH
applied prospectively from the date of change. All items REWMER -FTAEA K% AEXR
were translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate on BERANRE BEZXZNREKEFEREH
that date. The cumulative currency translation differences b BMERINEREE 2 RETE XK
which had arisen from the translation of foreign HEH HEEBAEBR - Teak
operations up to the date of the change in functional mEBENDEERE -

currency were not reclassified from equity to profit or loss
until the disposal of the relevant operations.

The change in presentation currency of the Company RRARZINEE 2 BE T B W E
was applied retrospectively, as if the new presentation A Hu—EERZFZINER-

currency had always been applied.

Borrowing costs BE KA

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, W BRI EECEAREE (RS
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are ERREMFIRERTERESLE
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time WEE)BEEREHZBEXKRTIFEA
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to REEBEIKAN BEEEERE LT
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are RERTERGEHHE -

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Effective 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing that B-ZT-NF—A— B FAHEfE
remain outstanding after the related asset is ready HAEERREREAEHEHERD
for its intended use or sale is included in the general BAREEZEMETERTA—RK
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on RE UstE—REEZER X
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the HEEBEGFINEEREECER
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending AIMIEH 2 REREMREZIRE K
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from ANTIEEEBERLZ EFRKAFN
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. B o

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss FrB HAhfE B A EE £ R NE
in the period in which they are incurred. AR

Retirement benefit costs R YR8 FI B AR

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit HEREERNERTEZNZNRE
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees ERHEREZAHRRZBRBEER
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. —IHRAX T AR
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year/period. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss
before tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properly over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administration purposes, are stated at
cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than buildings under development) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development in the consolidated
financial statements are carried at cost less any identified
impairment loss. Cost of properties under development
includes, where appropriate, relevant development
costs, the amortisation of leasehold lands presented
as "“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS
16) or “prepaid lease payments” (before application
of HKFRS 16) provided during the construction period
and borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. No depreciation is provided for
properties under development. On completion, properties
under development are transferred at the carrying value
to property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation including properties under
construction for such purposes.

Effective 1 January 2019, investment properties also
include leased properties which are being recognised as
right-of-use assets upon application of HKFRS 16 and
subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESFEE#)
(continued)
Investment properties (continued) "EWME (&)
The Group transfers an inventory of property to REERRTZERFEMEARIE
investment property when there is a change in use to ® RERNEE (MERABES
hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital BERHE )R BMEFEERER
appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course EME (BBRAG TR —ARKEM
of business, which is evidenced by the inception of an B EBRBMIMEATENRA
operating lease to another party. Any difference between HARKRARABE ANEANZERNER
the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and MR e
its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.
If a property, plant and equipment, a property under WYX BERRE ERTPYWEX
development or a leasehold land presented as “right- SESIEIERAREEE] (RERSE
of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) or BB RS ERE 165 1% ) 5k [FER
“prepaid lease payments” (before application of HKFRS HERIE] (REREEMBmEE
16) becomes an investment property because its use AIZE165%R1) cHE LA ARG E
has changed, any difference between the carrying EMARREYE AIZEERNER
amount and the fair value of that item at the date of HEHREEREA T EREAEENA
transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income EERABRERDEEHH#EER
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On FFeRHBEENMEMER HHA
the subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the BEFEREEEERE N -

relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal REMENH B E RN E DK
or when the investment property is permanently ARNAEASREREHE T EEAT
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits {a] 7R SR AS B Al 2 BF T DA B BR 1 22 © it
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising RIERZ Y EEE 2 E WSS
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the B(HERHEMERIBFEMEZE
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the EREERZ Z8) R &Y R MR
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss R BT ABa -

in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of- ME-BERZE FRAEEERS
use assets and contract costs R E

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the RBERR AEERTEYE K
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, B REE EREEERRE QKR
right-of-use assets, and contract costs to determine ZHRAE UWETZSEEERTLIR
whether there is any indication that these assets have SXBEEBEBITR -MEEERNEAE
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, B R BIfAEHEEE 2 AT B &
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated BAEEREEBECEHE (WME) -
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if

any.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In addition, corporates assets are allocated to individual
cash generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for
assets capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15,
the Group assesses and recognises any impairment
loss on other assets related to the relevant contracts in
accordance with applicable standards. Then, impairment
loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract costs is
recognised to the extent the carrying amounts exceeds
the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not been recognised as
expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs are then
included in the carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories of properties (continued)

Properties under development for sale which are
intended to be sold upon completion of development
and properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is measured
at cost model in accordance with the accounting policies
of right-of-use assets upon the application of HKFRS
16, properties under development for sale/properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FESTEX (8
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ST HE(E)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially M EERMGABV L IRA T ER
measured at fair value except for trade receivable B HEBREPENELEZE SR
arising from contracts with customers which are initially RSN S RBE B BREE
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction AIEISRETE - WK BT B EE
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or kemaf (RATESABR M
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other HREENTBEERIN BEEENZ
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are RBRARINREREF AR B
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial MBEEXMBEEBRZATE(KE
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial BEAE) WHEAFET AR
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the CHMBEERMBEEEERARS
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at AR IR R ©

FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating BRMNEFERFTE - EES
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability BRBZEHEKAREBARES
and of allocating interest income and interest expense MBEWARFEFRZ 2 7% BB F
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is ¥52%?§@ﬁfxﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ1f2?ﬁﬁﬂ
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash Al A sk (6 E ) B B
receipts and payments (including all fees paid or received BRI E “fﬁﬁﬂixfﬁi%)\&ﬁ (’7
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, REXNEBRMNEZE@KSED 2FEBED
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) e WEBR XS AREAMRE
through the expected life of the financial asset or HHTEE) Ko

financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets MBEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of MBEEEDEREENSE

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are RaATHRENTBEERRIRD #

subsequently measured at amortised cost: HEKANFHE -

e the financial asset is held within a business model o HMAKMEHNHREREM 75/\%
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; BEAANFEUNBEE:
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to o  ARKERBHNETRAMEEDN
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and REMSARBIEZNAR® KK
interest on the principal amount outstanding. BERNSFENE -
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESFEE#)

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SR TA (&)

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of AMBEEEDHRIKLESE (B)

financial assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income (i) EESEAARAEHWA
Interest income is recognised using the effective HR LB ER AT E M BEE
interest method for financial assets measured Zf'JE'W)\E@%fB%WJ‘—F}fﬁﬁ
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is B ﬂE'HSU\L/(Wﬁ“éfE
calculated by applying the effective interest rate BRERMNEFE |ﬁﬁ1§ﬁfﬁ
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, EEREZVEEERIN - HHE
except for financial assets that have subsequently BEREEREZMBEEMN
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that T FLBURA AT — & 3k 45 BREF
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest WEIZZ%E%W$T§§B§7FU$6E
income is recognised by applying the effective RoMEERESBRTAZEE
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial S E URMBEETBH
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit fzﬁu fo)ﬂﬁ A1 F 8 U A AR 3R
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument EHNEBEEEETBHREER
improves so that the financial asset is no longer BER 2R ERREERKE
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by BRI REERR o

applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (i) BN FEFABRZUEEE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for TR A REEK A SR A FER
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or AH M2 E R SIETE RIRAF
designated as FVTOC! are measured at FVTPL. Bt ARt 2 E K aFE0H

BEE R A T EF ABRET

2
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value BAVEFABSNMHEER
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair WA HROQFEE  (E[
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The NP ER S BB N B A
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes P o IR 5 P RERR Y3 W an SUE
any dividend or interest earned on the financial B BREZ VI EEMRIAE
asset and is included in the "other gains and losses" BB A B - IRt A TE AR UL
line item. mNER] —E
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
amounts due from related companies, non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, restricted bank balances,
bank balances and cash) and other items (financial
guarantees contracts), which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instruments as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and quantitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default, ii)
the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of 'investment grade' as per globally understood
definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitments is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(ii)
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Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. Evidence of credit-impairment
includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the borrower
or issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession that the lender would
not otherwise consider;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties; or

(e) the purchase of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—F

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)
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Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected
loss allowance is the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the
cash flows but only if, and to the extent that, the
risks are taken into account by adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater
for cases at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

Nature of financial instruments;

Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each separate group
continues to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the
Group recognises an impairment loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount with the exception of trade
and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

FESITHE (&)

TETH(#F)

Financial assets (continued) MBEE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets B HE SR BT 75 B

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

AEBREGEEEERTRENEL
AN ERS A BORERY B EE -

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at REUEERIZEENAAEZMBE
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's ERN ZBEEERMEED K RER
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration REZHEANEZHESNIBRTER -

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity R ERER

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either ERERRATADBREBEEHNLHECE
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with BRAREKVBAEERATAZER
the substance of the contractual arrangements and DEAMGREIRAE-

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments BRATLTA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at

FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

BATAREREREENIIREM
FRERZFNGER ZEMEH A
NAEIFEEIT 2 AR TR TYIRFA1S A
BE R EITROANTER

HHERE
PIEMBREERERBERNXANL
BANFEFABRREHERAZTRA

HE-

BRFEFABRIHOBFRE

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the EUBBERONEBMBREER
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an FEIFRERARHWE L X MERER
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 B —HOoMKREE (IFEEE
applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at (i) iE & BIE A FEF AR UK
FVTPL. BEHESEAZAFTEF AEZE-

A financial liability is held for trading if: EI@J’%?RT%f%ETﬁ?ﬁi’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁ

=

I=R=

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose . Eg?ﬁﬁ/\\ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬁ
of repurchasing it in the near term; or on initial %Efﬁ?ﬁi/\i?ﬂiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁ
recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified AEEAHEE DHRIABLT

financial instruments that the Group manages %%ﬂé—%ﬁﬁyﬁtﬁﬁﬂmiﬁgggfg
together and has a recent actual pattern of short- RHRERN IR K 5k

term profit-taking; or
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

° it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

J such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKFRS 9 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. For financial liabilities that contain embedded
derivatives, such as convertible bond, the changes in
fair value of the embedded derivatives are excluded
in determining the amount to be presented in other
comprehensive income. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised
in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred
to retained profits upon derecognition of the financial
liability.

FESITHE (&)

SRTE (&)

MBEE (&)

BN TEGFABRHBEEE

e AUTEIAR EBRUBERE
FsEEREREHFTAZITE
T EARRAN

ETNBERT BKaE(RHIEEE
ZHBBEREHBEHFFRETT 2%
ARREBRIN RIS HERF XN EIRE
BRI A FER AR

o TIETEB AR E AR
Mt B ERR B 5k

s ZUBREBK-HEYBEEX
MHaEsmEN—8n HE
B RRBHEIRBAEEFE
F B B IR S B RS IR AP {E
BT MABBOARNERTT
RZEREHAEREH 3

o HEBREA HKZEMAINIT
ETEMANN—8D  MEE
MBRELERNESRAFENE
HEMEEREBATFEAR

N2
S o
e

SAIEE AR AFEF ARG 2MER
EMs AERAREERBREDE
Rz BaERTFEZSHSENEM
PEMWR SR RIFENHE M2
BRZAEFERREHTESEY
HIBABm L -ESRA
APTETAZMBAE (WA BEE
FIMs REEHREMEHK S
2z B TEERRARITET
A2 R VFEEF REMEE KSR
RZPBaBEERBRERZ A TE
EPHRIEEHOIBEEER ML
REUHERV BB ERBERERE S
FiJ e
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESFEE#)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ST HE(E)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) MkaERERS (&)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B ARG 22 BB E
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, BB E (BEEN AR E MR
amounts due to related companies, non-controlling FIE - -ENEEAR KB ARIEE
shareholders of subsidiaries, a director, bank and other PRl —RESEHE RITREM
borrowings, promissory note, bonds payable and debt BE ERLER EBNESFRITHRR
component of convertible bond are subsequently BrzBEBAKED) HBRAER
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest BRI B ANGT = -
method.
Financial guarantee contracts HMBERE R
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires MBEREHORATEZELAZMNIETE
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the TR CUHEREABREEEBA
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails REEBIBRE T EGRA B HA R 3K
to make payments when due in accordance with the MEXZBRNEH - MBEERELD
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract NTERATFEFE - EBREATEIE
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is ZERETE:

subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in o REFEAUBKMEENFINE
accordance with HKFRS 9; and EZBERESRE &

e the amount initially recognised less, where o WHEREFR (WEA)NE
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised REAMTER 2 BT #ESHE -

over the guarantee period.

Convertible bond A 14 fig (& 25

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the REBETREMNR S EMPTHE
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial EXRETHENAEBEEAERT
asset for a fixed number of the Group's own equity BN E B E R ERERERER
instruments is a conversion option derivative. EOTET R

At the date of issue, both the debt component and RETEH BHFEKE D RITET
derivative components are recognised at fair value. BHERHE IR AT EER - LHE%
In subsequent periods, the debt component of the HAR - AT AR B S MBS A K E 5 IR
convertible bond is carried at amortised cost using the RERNE X IREHEK AR T4
effective interest method. The derivative component THEAKBHRAFEFE A TFE
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value PHREBERER -

recognised in profit or loss.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Convertible bond (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the debt and derivative
components in proportion to their relative fair values.
Transaction costs relating to the derivative component
are charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction
costs relating to the debt component are included in the
carrying amount of the debt portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bond using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

FESITHE (&)

TETH (&)

MHaERERS ()

Al R R (& % ()
HBRTABBRESFBRNRXHRAE
HEAHRAFENLH D EEESMIT
AT RMARE D - EOT4E T AR
DEBNRZRAGAEG AR -
BEHHEKI D BB SR A
ESHEMKE D R E  LRAER
M ERAE R R B S I s -

RILTERA B RIE

AEBZEBE THRE BUBRE K
&R - AEETERIEBAVBA
B BRIERMBABZ REER
ENREMNRERzZBER AR

27
e ©

MG EERMERE
EHREEAKEEARAGIARRGIH
TREHECHRSH UEERME
ENBEEFREE KAKERE
ENENBER MHEEENMKR
BT HE - OFBNERE MR
REF
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 5, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
of the Company have determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised the deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of all investment properties as the Group is subject
to enterprise income tax (“EIT”). The carrying amount of
deferred taxation on change in fair value of investment
properties at 31 December 2019 was RMB1,122,249,000
(2018: RMB785,956,000 (restated)).

6.

B 52 = 5t I B & (b 5 AR E
HEZETERR

ARREERERK ESPEAEE

VERIRERE AR TR
KRS EER B EREEELH
B - e RIRER - FhET REAR
R RRAT AR MBERZERR
DERR S REMEARSEEME
- BRERAGEHINZFHHE
=

A& BB TR R RAARBR
ReBRHARTZEBWMEFEEY
AIFREHART 2SN E MR-
WMZIAEFHE RSP EE I RIAER
HIE RIAMER LAt 28RN E Y
R A1 BRI AR

[& F3 & 5T RO #) A 4 ) i

BRF M AEEE SN AT B 82 2l A K
RAEFRERBASE ST ERRBE
TR B S5R A B IS RR AR

MERBRREETE-
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EMELNBEERENS AAAE
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties of RMB7,451,740,000 (2018:
RMB4,693,149,000 (restated)) are stated at fair value
based on the valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”). In
determining the fair value, the Valuer has based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of
market condition. The management have excised their
judgment to determine the relevant assumptions that
used in the valuation are reflective of the current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions would result
in changes in the fair values of the Group's investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Determination of net realisable value of
inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of
the cost and net realisable value. The directors of the
Company make significant judgements in determining
the net realisable value (the “"NRV") of these inventories
of properties. The NRV of inventories of properties is the
estimated selling prices less estimated selling expenses,
estimated future costs to completion and sale-related
taxes (if any), which are determined based on prevailing
real estate market conditions in the PRC.

ARSI HERATTEE
HEZFERR (&)

BT EEFMERE 2 T EZHR

UTAEBERZ EBRERAER
EEFEHTREN AR EhEE
TR RHT—EMEEE 2 AER
£ (82 EEEENEABEAEAR,
B o

REWEME

REYEANREET A51,740,0007T ( =
T—N\F: AR¥4,693,149,0007C
(BB IRBEE=FEBEREEMR
B ([fHEMDETZHEERAFE
BIR -EEFTAFER HEAMN
W RE TR TG EEE
TEET-EBECHELHHE UET
Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁf%m BRIBITTION © 3%
ERIEEEY HERAKEEE
MENQFELIREE U RBEELK
aiEmkEMEEKERAHRYES
EESBELMAEFAZE-

BEENREE2TRRFE

Tﬁﬁﬁ%qﬂfﬁ%ﬂﬁ% ZAN/N Ti%ﬁé

BEEXEMEFE 2235 F#E ([7]
FIRFE|)REEAHE -MEFE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Determination of net realisable value of
inventories of properties (continued)

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company
and the nature of the inventories of properties, the
directors of the Company determine the NRV of these
inventories of properties by reference to the estimated
market prices of properties, which takes into account a
number of factors including recent prices achieved by
similar properties in the same project or similar projects,
and the prevailing and forecasted real estate market
conditions in the PRC. The directors of the Company
estimate the future costs to completion of the inventories
of properties by reference to the actual development
costs of other similar completed projects of the Group,
adjusted by certain current market data.

If there is an increase in future costs to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the NRV will decrease and this
may result in impairment of the inventories of properties.
Such impairment requires the use of judgement and
estimates. If the expectation is different from the original
estimate, it would impact the carrying value of the
inventories of properties in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

In addition, given the volatility of the property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher
or lower than that estimated at the end of the reporting
period. Any difference between actual outcome and the
estimates would affect profit or loss in future.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
inventories of properties amounted to approximately
RMB8,849,683,000, net of write-down of RMB8,010,000
(2018: RMB7,677,875,000 (restated), net of write-down
of RMB8,010,000 (restated)) located in the PRC.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the
PRC. However, the implementation and settlement
of the tax varies amongst different tax jurisdictions in
various cities of the PRC and certain projects of the
Group have not finalised their land appreciation tax
calculations and payments with the local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant estimate is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related income tax provisions. The Group recognised
the land appreciation tax based on management's best
estimates. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the periods in which such
tax is finalised with local tax authorities.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses and temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management estimation is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. As at
31 December 2019, deferred tax assets of approximately
RMB62,122,000 (2018: RMB39,039,000 (restated)) have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statements of
financial position.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 6. FARERESTHERMLFTTEE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables,
loan receivables and amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables from sale of goods and services.
The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable, supportable
and available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

Trade receivables from operating leases, other receivables,
loan receivables, amounts due from related companies
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
assessed for ECL individually and the provision rates are
based on the historical default rates, past due status
and the financial capability of individual debtor taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable, supportable and available without undue cost
or effort.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade and other
receivables, loan receivables and amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are disclosed in notes 39, 25, 24 and 46(a) respectively.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

EmER% 2z Wz
Wz 2 R

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-E-NF+ZA=+-HLFE

7. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND SERVICES 7.
Disaggregation of revenue

Property Property Hotel
Segments kil development investment operation Total
MEBR MERE BIEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR® TR AR®FT AR®FTT
Types of goods or service & & & fR 75 28 5
Sales of properties MEHE 1,787,352 - - 1,787,352
Hotel operation income  EJE & E WA
- Hotel accommodation — —&E{ETE - - 13,122 13,122
- Catering service and —BHRTE R EAM
other hotel income B JE WA - - 15,822 15,822
Property management MEETEREBRER
and related fee income WA - 9,590 - 9,590
Revenue from contracts KRB RFP & XM A
with customers 1,787,352 9,590 28,944 1,825,886
Rental income Ha kA - 115,679 - 115,679
1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Geographical market #HEMH
Mainland China hE K BE 1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Timing of revenue I 25 R 2 B
recognition
At a point in time FAKE (B0 5 25 1,787,352 - 15,822 1,803,174
Over time P— B - 9,590 13,122 22,712
1,787,352 9,590 28,944 1,825,886
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

7. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND 7. EmKREBRBzWE &)
SERVICES (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) WD (&)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from TXHEHIKRERP &K 2 Wi s 5
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in BRHPEENSENEER:

the segment information:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NF+-A=T-RHLEE

Property Property Hotel

Segments k] development investment operation Total
MRBR NERE BEEE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFLT ARETT ARETR AR®ETxR

Revenue disclosed in 2 EERFTIHEMN
segment information W3

External customer HNER R B 1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Inter-segment pak=iiE) - - - -

1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Less: rental income A el A - (115,679) - (115,679)

Revenue from contracts RKEEFAXHWA
with customers 1,787,352 9,590 28,944 1,825,886
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

7. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND 7. EmERBRBzRE (&)
SERVICES (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (continued) WD (&)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018 (restated)

BE-_T-/\FT-_A=t—BLEAEA (KE)

Property Property Hotel
Segments 8 development investment operation Total
MEER MERE RS E st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Types of goods or service & & & fR 75 %8 5
Sales of properties MEHE 238,008 - - 238,008
Hotel operation income & J§ & & Wt A

- Hotel accommodation  —&JEETE - - 9,650 9,650
- Catering service and — BB K EHA
other hotel income S R WA - - 9,461 9,461
Property management MEBTEREBER
and related fee income WA - 8,586 - 8,586
Revenue from contracts HKERF A LW A
with customers 238,008 8,586 19,111 265,705
Rental income el A - 99,343 - 99,343
238,008 107,929 19,111 365,048
Geographical market HHETH
Mainland China B K 238,008 107,929 19,111 365,048
Timing of revenue W 328 FE SR R
recognition
At a point in time FA 3 (] B ] B 238,008 - 9,461 247,469
Over time A — B - 8,586 9,650 18,236
238,008 8,586 19,111 265,705
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REVENUE FROM GOODS AND
SERVICES (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from
contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in
the segment information:

ERERKEzWE (&)

Wik R ()
TXEFIRETF AKX 2Kt =D 5B
ERPRENSENER:

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018 (restated)

HE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HBIENEA (LEF)
Property Property Hotel
Segments o E8 development investment operation Total
MEER MEKRE B E & st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBEF T ARETF T ARBTF T
Revenue disclosed in 2R ERFIHEN
segment information (&
External customer SRR 238,008 107,929 19,111 365,048
Inter-segment pak=iiE) - - - -
238,008 107,929 19,111 365,048
Less: rental income e RA - (99,343) - (99,343)
Revenue from contracts BB FP A LW A
with customers 238,008 8,586 19,111 265,705

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are based on customer’s specifications with no
alternative use. Taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms, the management concluded that the
Group does not have an enforceable right to payment
prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from sales of properties is therefore recognised
at a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that the
customer obtains control of the completed property and
the Group's present right to payment and collection of
the consideration is probable.

MEEMERRTFEIUNELNME -
BHFEENEEDENERTFRE
ko WEEMERBR &EERBE
WG BIEER A EEEEBRYE
FREFE A A5 B W& WET A AT
SR BIENTTRER - it - SHEWEAUWA
FEEI%%%%%%ﬁ%%%%%
R R FEEBD R T MENEHER
zﬁﬁlfé&ﬁuﬁzﬂxﬁ K2 IR 2 7]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

REVENUE FROM GOODS AND
SERVICES (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group receives 30%-100% of the contract value
from customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement (the customers who use mortgage loans
provided by the banks and the remaining amount of
the total contract value will be paid to the Group from
the banks once the customers meet the requirements
of the banks) while construction work of properties is
still ongoing. These advance payment of 30%-100% of
the contract value from customers resulted in contract
liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until sales of properties is recognised.
The Group will receive full payment from the buyers
before physical delivery of the completed property.

For property management and related services to
the tenants of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group agrees the fixed rate for services with the
customers upfront. As the tenant simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance, the revenue is recognised over time when
the performance obligations are satisfied. Monthly
payment of the transaction is due immediately when
performance obligations are satisfied.

For provision of hotel accommodation services, the Group
agrees the fixed rate for services with the customers
upfront. As the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance, the revenue is recognised over time when
the performance obligations are satisfied. Payment of
the transaction is due immediately when performance
obligations are satisfied.

For provision of catering services, the revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the performance
obligations are satisfied. Payment of the transaction
is due immediately when performance obligations are
satisfied.

All rental income are based on fixed lease payments
under operating leases during the year ended 31
December 2019 and nine months ended 31 December
2018.

EREBRKEzWE (&)

Win k(&)
ERIEEMEMYENERIRZD
FETR  ASBEARFPREALOER
#I30% £100% ({F ARITIREMIZE
ERNER BERFPHFABRITHNEK
BEEHEBENBRERBRBITINT
REE) - ZEEBRFPAHNEEZ3I0%
Z100% B FCB BN B E Y F iR H
RENEEEEMEHEEEER
NEBBEREERIMESTELATAE
B A B E KB FE -

RAREEREMEHPRERHEMESR
EREEREMS AEEEEFE
EHERBHEEER AR EF R
Ry BR S X0 7 R AN SR [ JB 40 P B2 SR A
g3 Eit - AR TR BB ERBER
EHER - 8 AR SN KR EKBEOR
ER S BISZ A o

SERFBEEBEREM S  AREER
FRREHERFHEEER -AREF
[ B BUAS IE FE A AN SR B B KO P AR (1 Y
Mz Bk WAR TR B X B R BE
R R HERR © X 5N RN e BRI B
By 37 BISE A o

R ESRIRG N = - WAERETTEY
BN EEER - XS N RERTTK
[BHVE AR BIS A

HE - Z—hWF+_A=+—HItF
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IENER - FrERSRARKEEHEE
TZEEEREMNTGTHE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

7. REVENUE FROM GOODS AND
SERVICES (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

ERkREz2WE &)
W5 (F)

- n&& T—N&E+=A
“+-BSREHTROEME (i

ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂi%&)Z?&%E&ﬁémﬁﬂk
A2 FEHARS RS LA 0 T -

Sales of properties

MEHE
At At
December December
2019 2018

RZE—NF RKRIZE—N\F
+-B=+—-H8B +-A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
(restated)
(&)
— Within one year —— &R 2,996,875 1,239,407
— After one year ——F1& 3,721,782 4,263,430
6,718,657 5,502,837
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION o EHE R

Information regularly reported to the Group’s chief
executive officer (the chief operating decision maker
("CODM")) for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses on the type of goods
and services delivered or provided. During the year, the
Group commenced the business in hotel operation along
with the acquisition of All Excel Group (as detailed in
note 2) and it is considered as a new operating and
reportable segment by the CODM. Prior period segment
information has been represented to conform with
the current year’s presentation. Upon entering into the
lease contracts dated 31 December 2019, the Group
ceased the business of hotel operation as the relevant
hotel properties would be leased out and operated by
independent third parties. As at 31 December 2019, the
hotel segment assets and liabilities have been aggregated
in property investment segment, accordingly. The Group’s
reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
“Operating Segments” are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Property development - development and sale of

properties

Property investment — lease of investment properties and
provision of property management service

Hotel operation — provision of hotel accommodation and

catering service

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments:

8. #IEFR (&)

MEBREH -DERBRIHE

MEREXH - BHMERREEDE

B RS

BEEE

—RHUBEEE MERRT -

NI RREERATREDEE D Z

REB e MEE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZE-hAF+=ZA=+—HL
FE
Property Property Hotel
Segments bk development investment operation Total
MEBE MERE BB et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®EFn ARMTR AREFrR
Segment revenue Pl 6
External sales HINHE 1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - - - -
1,787,352 125,269 28,944 1,941,565
Segment profit (loss) 7 & Al (&) 415,165 449,677 (5,833) 859,009
Other income =R AN 9,692
Other gains and losses ~ E fb Ui 25} E518 (25,890)
Change in fair value of & A FEFF ABH
financial assets at FVTPL 2 i #EE QA FE
oy (30,364)
Change in fair value of ~ FI#fR (& %ZME
derivative component of T E &5 7 AFE
convertible bond b=y (9,334)
Unallocated corporate AOBRAAFAL
expenses (17,177)
Finance costs B A fi AN (63,277)
Profit before tax B 7 Al v 722,659

HE=EZERARAR
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZHEHR (&)
For the nine months ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-\&+=-A=+—HL
(restated) hEA (REZF)
Property Property Hotel
Segments 7 EB development investment operation Total
3 R MERE B JE a8 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Segment revenue Pl 6
External sales HIMEE 238,008 107,929 19,111 365,048
Inter-segment sales DEEEE - - - -
238,008 107,929 19,111 365,048

Segment (loss) profit 2 &0 (E#E) & F (106,101) 123,068 1,043 18,010
Other income H g A 18,063
Other gains and losses  E ftb Ut & K &5 18 (45,491)
Change in fair value of 1&AF(EF AR

financial assets ZHBEENTE

at FVTPL & (49,157)
Unallocated corporate A2 E A AR

expenses (20,721)
Finance costs BMEKA (809)
Loss before tax BR B A B 1B (80,105)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 &% —

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 5. Segment results represent the profit
generated or loss incurred by each segment without
allocation of part of other income, part of other gains
and losses, change in fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL, change in fair value of derivative component of
convertible bond, unallocated corporate expenses and

E- N+ A=+ —AIEE
EER (#)
A 2WMBELS LT G TRERAE

5 HEE B HBEEEEDE
B R FISURTR - R BT
T A 2B B AR AT EED

85 Ehtulleas BB - FTHAIRIER > 61

il/\u AN 2L

8 QA&

DRERSEL DB - I RETTE
5}%@5&%&%%@%@%@5%% =

part of finance costs. This is the measure reported to IREREBEMEN T &
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and T%Hﬁglﬁ?T Ez& &y EBEl
liabilities by reportable and operating segments: DREERBEST
At 31 At 31
December December
Segment assets IHWEE 2019 2018
RZZE-NF RZIZE-N\F
+tZR= + B +—A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
(restated)
(K=75)
Property development MR 12,317,840 12,965,267
Property investment MERE 7,569,139 4,743,446
Hotel operation BIEEE - 104,784
Total segment assets DEEERTE 19,886,979 17,813,497
Unallocated assets: AOLEE:
Financial asset at FVTPL BAFEFABRIUBEE 24,889 60,611
Loan receivables FEWE R - 127,790
Bank balances and cash ‘fEﬁ,ﬁ ﬁ?&iﬁﬁ 342,474 6,093
Unallocated corporate assets AOBERRIEE 20,470 64,889
Consolidated assets HRERE 20,274,812 18,072,880

E =R ARA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEMEHR (&)

At 31 At 31

December December

Segment liabilities SHEE 2019 2018

RZZE-NF RZIZE-N\F

‘|‘_ﬂ_‘|' B +-—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARE T

(restated)

(gg&E751)

Property development MEER 12,533,919 10,790,040

Property investment MERE 2,266,362 1,460,446

Hotel operation BIEEE - 26,922

Total segment liabilities DEBERTE 14,800,281 12,277,408

Unallocated liabilities: AN EaE:

Debt component of convertible bond IANEEES 322,972 -
Derivative component of AR ES 2 BB

convertible bond 293,981 -

Promissory note ABRREFZITETIAS S 446,249 -

Bonds payable A B - 9,404

Provisional consideration payable EREERE - 50,382

Amount due to a related company JFE {5t — f FA%L Gl 222,292 854,776

Unallocated corporate liabilities VAN WNEIN=E 189,505 819,916

Consolidated liabilities maaf 16,275,280 14,011,886

For the purposes monitoring segment performances and MERSIMEEL LD E R
allocating resources among segments: m=:
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all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than financial assets at FVTPL, loan
receivables, certain bank balances and cash and
unallocated corporate assets not attributable to
respective segment.

all liabilities are allocated to reportable and
operating segments other than debt component
of convertible bond, derivative component of
convertible bond, promissory note, bonds payable,
provisional consideration payable, amount due
to a related company and unallocated corporate
liabilities not attributable to respective segment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

8.

DERER (@)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-2-NE+-AZ+-BLEE

Total
Property ~ Property Hotel  reportable
development investment  operation segment Unallocated Total
IES nx BE FES:
BR RE EE N4 *2E @it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Amounts included in HESDERASFEE
the measure of segment BafEs 2%
profit or loss or segment
assets:
Additions of property, plant ~ FEWE BE k%
and equipment 8,916 - 4,712 13,628 302 13,930
Share of results of i d-UNGE S |
an associate (11,643) - - (11,643) - (11,643)
Interest income ME M A 2,11 270 6 2,447 9,256 11,703
Interest expense FlEgH (14,037) (59,690) (2,385) (76,112) (63,276)  (139,388)
Depreciation of property, nE BEREERE
plant and equipment (8,292) (189) (5,307) (13,788) (122) (13,910)
Depreciation of right- FREEENE
of-use assets (27,808) - - (27,808) (1,530) (29,338)
Gain on disposal MENE BERREZ
of property, plant W
and equipment M - - M - M
Gain on disposal of financial ~ HEZRAFEFABEZ
assets at FVTPL AR WE - - - - 239 239
Gain on disposal of interest 1 & p — B & 1 B0 12
in an associate w2l 151,380 - - 151,380 - 151,380
Change in fair value of RENEZ NTEE
investment properties - 19,747 - 19,747 - 19,747
Change in fair value of BREREVELRER
inventories of properties FEZH
upon transfer to
investment properties - 382,058 - 382,058 - 382,058

HE=EZERARAR
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—F

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

8.

—NF+ZA=1+—HILFE

DERER (@)

Hib 2 HEH (&)

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018

(restated)

BECZ-\FT_A=+-HILFRE (BEF)

Total
Property Property Hotel  reportable
development investment  operation segment  Unallocated Total
n% n% BE B
BE RE 58 HHBE RAR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFR
Amounts included in Amounts ;T E5 BER XS HEE
included in the measure Bafle8:
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Interest in an associate R-BRE AR ER 256,406 - - 256,406 - 25,406
Additions of property, plant ~ FEW%  BE k&
and equipment 8,615 - 3,296 11,911 - 11,911
Share of results of an associate [EISEE S AR £E (632) - - (632) - (632)
Write-down of inventories HANERE
of properties (605) - - (605) - (605)
Interest income MERA 2,332 1,016 4 3,352 17,518 20,870
Interest expense HEZ (7,139) (28,474) (833) (36,446) (809) (37,255)
Change in fair value of RENELATEED
investment properties - 63,690 - 63,690 - 63,690
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - BERZENE
and equipment (5,260) (170) (3,634) (9,064) (183) (9,247)
Loss on disposal of property, ~ HENE BELRREZ
plant and equipment BE 2) - - 2) - 2)
Geographical information & &R
The following tables set out information about the TREFIRHEME  REME MIRMH
Group’s revenue from external customers by cities in the AR7& FrE R Bl T 2l 5 B B AR B 5K

BIMNBE PR EHER  IERBEESR
PHREEMREIEME DT -

PRC, based on the location at which the properties are
sold, properties are invested and services are provided.
Information about its non-current assets is analysed by
geographical location of assets.

1 94 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

Revenue from external customers:

8.

DEER (&)
HEER (F)

RSB B B M3

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\EF
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZRA=+—H
EEE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
(restated)
(&LE5)
Baoji B 1,228,072 158,005
Xi‘an AR 580,516 20,771
Fuzhou &M 125,406 160,017
Jilin HM 7,333 26,255
Shanghai s} 238 -
1,941,565 365,048

Non-current assets: ERBEE -
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-NF
t=A=+t—-8 TZA=1—H
LFE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFIT
(restated)
(&)
Fuzhou &M 4,555,940 3,749,205
Shanghai B 2,653,649 1,324,171
Baoji BE 1,528,418 1,231,544
Xi'an itk 30,043 283,902
Nanping A 7,063 5,424
Jilin =T 4,360 73
Hong Kong 578 2,375 349
Others Hfth 3,067 1,041
8,784,915 6,595,709

Note: Non-current assets excluded loan receivables and deferred
tax assets.

fitet: FRBEETRIEREERLEL

MIRERE -

HE=EZERARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZDEER ()
Information about major customers FRXTEEFZEHR
There is no individual customer who contributed over HE-_ZT—NWF+_A=+—HILHF
10% of the total revenue of the Group during the year ERZZE-NF+ZA=+—HIEN
ended 31 December 2019 and nine months ended 31 @A - WEEREFHAEE LW 2

December 2018.

BEEEE10% °

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hftlr A

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-REF —E-N\E
+ZB=+—-8B +-—A=+—H
LEE IENEAR
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT ARBTF T
(restated)
(&E5)
Bank interest income |ITH EUMA 3,046 3,494
Interest income from loan receivables JEWEZ 2 M B WA 8,657 17,376

Dividend income from financial assets RAFEHFA BRI BREERE
at FVTPL WA 436 546
Others Hib 2,570 2,428
14,709 23,844
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. Htt =R E I8

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
HFE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT
(restated)
(#&E5)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, LEWME BEREREZ
plant and equipment Wz (&8) M )
Loss on disposal of an HEREMEZER
investment property (235) -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—RHgE AR W (fiF21)
(note 21) 151,380 -
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERQATFEFABRZ
at FVTPL B EE 2 WS 239 -
Exchange loss, net PE X 1R - (23,267) (22,464)
Others HAh (2,668) (23,025)
125,490 (45,491)

E =R ARA R
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. MERK
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
+=ZA=+-8B +t=ZA=+—H
EEE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBFIL
(restated)
(&E5)
Interests on bank and RITREMEEZFE
other borrowings 404,246 287,884
Interests on bonds payable e &% 2 L8 638 809
Effective interests on convertible bond AEEZ BT 25,938 -
Effective interests on promissory note EHEEZERF S 36,583 -
Interests on contract liabilities BHBEZFE 387,698 167,037
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEZHNE 179 -
Total borrowing costs BEENRAR 855,282 455,730
Less: amounts capitalised to W REREMEFERE
inventories of properties ok (633,938) (359,570)
amounts capitalised to properties RERTUEZERE
under development o (60,707) (44,824)
amounts capitalised to investment RERFIHZEYHEF
properties under construction BERbze8 (21,249) (14,081)
139,388 37,255
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year/period RE,/HINEE RS SR A TR R
arose on the bank and other borrowings pool and are TREMEFERELE WRIESE
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 8.52% BREENAXEARKEEZNFEER
(Nine months ended 31 December 2018: 7.44% K E852% (HE-_ZT—N\F+A
(restated)) per annum to expenditure on qualifying assets. =+—HIEN@A :7.44% (LEF7) )
ArE e

1 98 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

12. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX

12. BRBEADER (BHE)

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NE —FT-\#F
+=-ZA=+-R +=-A=+-—H
LEE EAEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
(restated)
(BE)
Profit (loss) before tax has been arrived BEADER (BE)SIE (5TA) -
at after charging (crediting):
Auditor's remuneration % 25 B B 2,160 1,195
Directors’ emoluments (note 14) EEMe (HaF14) 4,229 4,787
Other staff costs Hitn 8 TR A
Staff salaries and allowances EI%a Rzl 82,708 50,315
Retirement benefit contributions RCEMEEIER 5,051 2,681
Share-based payments PARR 1 A B2 2 3R 1,909 5,250
Total other staff costs Hh 8 T AE5H 89,668 58,246
Less: amounts capitalised to inventories W RAUEGEFERELzER
of properties (13,728) (7,867)
amounts capitalised to properties RERPYEZERE
under development i (1,909) (1,661)
amounts capitalised to investment RERPEEMESR
properties under construction BRbze8 (1,756) (1,697)
72,275 47,021
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAMI 2 FEKE
an expense 1,284,722 198,419
Depreciation of property, plant WE -BERRETE
and equipment 13,910 9,247
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREENE 29,338 -
Release of prepaid lease payments R bR TE N B SRR - 20,453
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEDE BERZE (WR)EHE
plant and equipment (41) 2
Loss on disposal of an HEREYE 2 BE
investment property 235 -
Write-down of inventories of properties MREMEEE (BIEHEE RRBKA)
(included in cost of sales and services) - 605
Reversal on impairment loss on H iy fE U R IB 2 R (A 5 1R [
other receivables - (320)
Gross rental income from investment BEMEESL 7 HE WAL
properties (115,679) (99,343)
Less: direct operating expenses from B F/HARBEERSKA
investment properties ZIEYE
that generated rental income ZEBREERY
during the year/period 12,594 5,670
(103,085) (93,673)

E =R ARA R
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FTBHAX
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Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\E
+=ZA=+-HB +t=ZA=+—H
LFE IENEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFIT
(restated)
(&E75)
Current tax: REAR IR -

EIT in the PRC Bl ERATER 93,787 19,349
LAT THIBRER 48,050 12,932
141,837 32,281

Under (over) provision in prior years: BEFE/HEBEEIR

(ERERRE) -

EIT in the PRC B R FTIE 4,481 (7,548)
Deferred tax (note 22): BRETRIE (KfeF22) 109,159 19,269
255,477 44,002

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for the year/period. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
income of the Group neither arises in, nor is derived from,
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2019 and nine
months ended 31 December 2018.

RZE—\F=Z=A=-+—8B &FL
EERIEB2017ERK (185]) (F75%)
BPIER ([ZIGEHIEZR]) 3 AWK
FIFSHEHE - ZIEHIERR=_Z—N
FZA-+T N \BEZBER ITRE
BHE - REMAHFEHRE A7
%5 B E 82 52,000,000/ 7T 2 3% A%
128.25% 2 Bt T BT IE + ) F) B
i82,000,0007 7T 2 2 9 #1£16.5% 2
R BT IE - T A MR HIFN SR
HEERNEERETR 2 afBEER
16.5% 2 & — B R IE

ARRREZRA BITHEHMASAT
Wh 2R PR BHRERME LA
BX 8/ FARBTBNE BRI ERT
B ME16.5%5T & - R AN B
REBEESITERA  BREE—F
—NE+ZA=T—HUEFEFEE
“E-N\F+ZA=+—HILA@EA
WAL BB EREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the
year/period.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulation. LAT has been provided at ranges of
progressive rate of the appreciation value, with certain
allowable exemptions and deductions.

The income tax expense for the year/period can be
reconciled to the profit (loss) before tax per consolidated

13. FISHRAX (&)

BIEPECEMESFE ([DEMREH
EN)RCEMBRBEERIEN AR
BB R RINE, BN 2B R E25% °

TR AN B AR BT BIARRE A5
ERFOERBRE BET - L HIBER
Tt ER DR RERRELBRE
I AT kR A TIHA -

h= A

GeaBEmkEtEERERAEH
PSR s B R A AT A (B518) 2

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive HERMAT
income as follows:
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
EEE IENEAR
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFIT
(restated)
(L&)
Profit (loss) before tax BrRELADE R (E518) 722,659 (80,105)
Tax charge at the applicable tax rate of REBHEIS%TE KA
25% (2018: 25%) (ZE—N\F:25%) 180,665 (20,026)
Tax effect of share of results of EEBERRAEE L RBTE
an associate 2,911 158
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HREBOT S AAHRAYL 2/
for tax purpose e e 30,513 36,670
Tax effect of income not taxable for HHEENmMS  BAZHEAZR
tax purpose -4 (25,169) (2,729)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MEREANBEEREZHETE 31,594 21,670
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRI ARRRIEEE
not recognised - (326)
LAT T IBER 48,050 12,932
Tax effect of LAT THEER I HETE (12,013) (3,233)
Under (over) provision in prior years BLFERETE (BEAR) 4,481 (7,548)
Effect of different tax rate REMBEERELEEH 2 HBR
of subsidiaries operating in AETABMERB T E
other jurisdictions (5,555) 6,434
Income tax expense for the year/period F/HNMEHRAY 255,477 44,002

HE=EZERARAR
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14. EE - FETHAEREEM
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION &
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the F/HANE LB ARR B E S KD
directors of the Company during the year/period are as BFIBIT:
follows:
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Share-based
Fees allowances contributions payment Total
Bk URGEE
e HeREE BRI PANEN st

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB‘000
ARBTRE ARETRT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTR

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-NF+-A=+—-HLEFE

Chairman £33

Guo Jiadi i 1,719 132 - 99 1,950
Executive director: BITES:

Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 917 16 209 1,142

Wang Chao Tid - 398 - 5 403
Non-executive director: FHITESE:

Wong Yun Kuen =R (Hfeta)

(note a) 66 - - - 66
Independent non- BYFHTES:

executive director:

Chan Yee Ping, Michael  [R84F 71 - - - 71

Yu Pak Yan, Peter FIEE (Meb)

(note b) 66 - - - 66

Zheng Yurui BEi% 53 - - 209 262

Ma Shujuan 58 60 - - 209 269

2,035 1,447 16 731 4,229
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 14. EE FETBRAERESMH
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued) & @)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Share-based
Fees allowances contributions payment Total
BRK UBRGEE
e FERERE BREFE PANE et

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT

Nine months ended 31 December 2018

(restated)
BE-Z2-N\F+=-RA=+—-HLAMEAR
(&E75)
Chairman i
Guo Jiadi B0z 1,248 128 - 282 1,658
Executive director: BITEE:
Amika Lan E Guo Amika Lan E Guo - 683 12 578 1,273
Wang Chao T - 413 - 25 438
Non-executive director: FHTESE:
Wong Yun Kuen EER 64 - - - 64
Independent non- BIYFHTES:
executive director:
Chan Yee Ping, Michael [ 84 51 - - - 51
Yu Pak Yan, Peter 2B 64 - - - 64
Zheng Yurui BEiH 38 - - 578 616
Ma Shujuan 5 E 45 - - 578 623
1,510 1,224 12 2,041 4,787
Notes: Fif & -
(@) Dr. Wong Yun Kuen resigned as a non-executive director (a) =HEBIN-_Z—NFLA=T
on 30 September 2019. HEEIFNITES
(b)  Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter resigned as an independent non- by HECEERZ—ZZE—AFAA=T
executive director on 30 September 2019. HEHT R IENITEE -
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 14. EE FETHAERESM
EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION (continued) cAC D)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were ANEFIRMITES 2 REEFERA
for their services in connection with the management of NI RAEREBBEEE S 2 RS M
the affairs of the Company and the Group. & o
The non-executive director’s and independent non- LA EFTRIEHITEE RBIUIEHITE
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for EIMERBEFERRNATRIETZR
their services as directors of the Company. BE -
Mr. Guo Jiadi is also the Chief Executive of the Company oL EMABRRRITTHRAH K
and his remuneration disclosed above includes those for MR e BERIEAITIARIE
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. 2z RS2 -
No director waive any emolument during the current RAFES E—HEAMEESNEMS
year or the prior period and none of the directors have e - BB EERESRIMATIIA
received any inducement payment for joining or upon AR ) B T U ER AT {r] 22 B ok 1 5 B B
joining the Company or as a compensation of loss of fifE -
office.
Employees’ emoluments EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments rEERESESHALTH HPmME
in the Group, two (Nine months ended 31 December (Hz2—2— )/ \F+-A=+—81th
2018: four) were directors and the Chief Executive of @A :UR) BARARIEERFEEITH
the Company whose emoluments are included in the AB - REZMeFBFE R EXHE#
disclosures in this note above. The emoluments of the B T=%HBHE=Z—/N\F+=A
remaining three (Nine months ended 31 December 2018: =t+—BIEAEA: —B) ALZBE
one) individual(s) was as follows: T
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
T=A=t+t-8 +ZA=+—H
I:3:54 ENER
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB T ARE T
(restated)
(&E5)
Salaries and allowances e M2 1,580 841
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR (K18 F & 214t 5% 276 12
Share-based payments D BEEZ K 134 -
1,990 853
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND

15.

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued)

The emoluments of each of the above non-director
highest paid individuals were fell within the following
bands:

14. EE - FTETHAEREESM

€ (&)
FREEEERSHEALHMEN TN
TEE:

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\E

+=ZA=+—-HB +tZA=+—H

HEE IEAMEA

No. of No. of

employees employees

(restated)

ES&E ES&H

(4 E3)

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 3 1
DIVIDENDS 15. R &

No dividend was paid or proposed to ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (Nine months ended
31 December 2018: Nil).

RBE-_ZT-NF+-_A=t—HL
FEVERMNIZFRNEE TAR
AR BBAR BN RS HREEE
‘EZKNEMES (BE-T—N
FT_A=1t—BIEAEA: &) -

HE=EZERARAR
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. 3R EF (FH#8E)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) KATHE ANEEBRERNLE SR
per share attributable to the owners of the Company is M (E5B) IR A TegstE -
based on the following data:
Earnings (loss) figures are calculated as follows: EF (E18) B AR e L T atE -
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
LEE IFNEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARE T
(restated)
(&E5)
Profit (loss) for the year/period AARBBARGEAFE HAE
attributable to owners of the wm A ()
Company 482,165 (114,580)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary ERBMREFBEEL AR
shares on convertible bond HEyE 60,789 -
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of AR ESREERF (BB
diluted earnings (loss) per share BF(&EE) 542,954 (114,580)
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

16. EREF (ER) (&)

Number of shares R4 EE
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-NF
+=ZA=+—-HB +=ZA=+—H
LFE IENEA
‘000 ‘000
i FhR
(restated)
(&=5)
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREARRM (BE)Z
shares for the purpose of basic TR T 2
earnings (loss) per share 4,970,348 4,458,901
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BB E L @Rk @ BT E:
Convertible bond AR E S 1,113,845 -
Share options AR 26,002 -
Weighted average number of ordinary ARG ESREERT (B1E) 2
shares for the purpose of diluted @R T
earnings (loss) per share 6,110,195 4,458,901

Share options

B

For the nine months ended 31 December 2018, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the share options because the assumed
exercise will result in decrease in loss per share.

BE-_Z—)/\+-_A=+—H81N
A srEEREEEET RERRITE
ERE - ARRITE B EREREER
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. WE -BERRE
Furnitures,
office
equipment
and
Leasehold motor
Hotel Buildings improvements vehicles Total
HENE  HA BOE
BE BF 56 RERAE a3t

Notes RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBUO0  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
W ARETT  ARETT  ARRTT  ARBTT  ARETR

COsT AR
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZE-N\§

mA—H (&5 54,308 23510 23,143 36,628 137,589
Exchange adjustments ExEE - - 164 429 593
Additions RE - - 6,617 5,294 11,911
Disposals e - - - (13) (13)
At 31 Decernber 2018 (restated) RZE-)\E

+ZRA=+-H(&E3]) 54,308 23,510 29,924 4338 150,080
Exchange adjustments EiA% - - 38 93 131
Additions RE - - 7208 6,722 13,930
Transfer from inventories of properties EHENERFE 51,140 - - - 51,140
Acquisition of a subsidiary YE-BHBAE 37 - - - 88 88
Transfer to investment properties BEZRENE 19 (105,448) (11,368) - - (116,816)
Disposals HE - - - (295) (295)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=1-H - 12,142 37,170 48946 98,258
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 2k
At 1 April 2018 (restated) R-E-N\E

MmA—A(EE5) 5,108 6,857 7,362 26,580 45,907
Exchange adjustments EiA% - - 158 394 552
Provided for the period rHEAE 1,546 1,219 3834 2,588 9,247
Fliminated on disposals HEBEH - - - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2018 (restated) RZE-)\E

+ZA=+-RA(#E3) 6,654 8,136 11,35 29,551 55,695
Exchange adjustments [ 3% - - 35 87 122
Provided for the year AEERE 2,062 581 6,945 430 13,910
Transfer to investment properties BRTRENE 19 (8,716) (4,779) - - (13,495)
Eliminated on disposals HEBEE - - - (235) (235)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=+-H - 3938 18,334 33,725 55,997
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=+-H - 8204 18,836 15,221 42,261

At 31 December 2018 (restated) R-E-N\&
+-R=+-R (&85 47,654 15,374 18,570 12,781 94,385
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
transferred property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of RMB103,321,000 to investment properties
as evidenced by the end of owner occupation. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value at the date of transfer of RMB332,600,000
amounted to RMB229,279,000 has been credited to
property revaluation reserve. The fair value at the date
of transfer was determined based on the professional
valuation carried out by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited (the “Ravia Global”).

The Group had pledged property, plant and equipment of
RMB866,000 (2018: RMB29,515,000 (restated)) as at 31
December 2019 to secure bank and other borrowings of
the Group.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Hotel 3% - 5%

Buildings 3% - 5%

Leasehold improvements Over shorter of lease
term or 5 years

19% - 32%

Furnitures, office equipment
and motor vehicles

17. E - -BERRZE (&)

HE-_Z—-—NF+=-_A=+—8H
FTFE AEEHEEEAEAARE
103,321,0007T 2 ¥ 3 - Wi = K 5% 5 85
BETBIEERCIREY S - RNERB
5y BREI1E A R ¥5332,600,0007T £2 A
F{E AR #229,279,0007T 2 FEH) = 58
B AMEEGHEE - RERABRZA
FE T IRIE 2R AR ER AR
(IMRERX))ETCEXMHEET -

RZZTAE+_A=+—H8 XEED
B - BB K& E A R866,000
T (ZZE—N\F: AR®29,515,0007T
(#&EF) ) AAAREE 2 RITRHM
BEREER

i - R MR B IR E AR A
BT FRITE:

BIE 3% -5%
BF 3% - 5%
HEWERE e T s 5

FEEPAEHRE 19% -32%
&g E
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/PREPAID LEASE 18. FREEE FANHERE

2 1 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

PAYMENTS
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HE L HEWME st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREETF T AREETF T
As at 1 January 2019 R=-ZE-NE—H—H
Carrying amount IREE 1,177,787 829 1,178,616
As at 31 December 2019 RZ=-ZT—Hh%F
+=A=+-—H
Carrying amount BRTEE 1,008,187 2,867 1,011,054
For the year ended BE-Z—h&E
31 December 2019 +TZA=1+—HLEE
Depreciation charge nEER 27,271 2,067 29,338
Expense relating to short- HHAERERAREY
term leases and other BEERE165E B
leases with lease terms B+ @A Rz
end within 12 months of HENEMHEE 2 HEH
the date of initial 53
application of HKFRS 16 268
Total cash outflow for leases FHE IR & mH 458 2,369
Additions to right-of-use FTREEERE
assets 4,127

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and nine months
ended 31 December 2018, the Group leases various
offices and dormitory for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of 12 months to 3 years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices and dormitory. As at 31 December 2019, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in this note.

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=1t—HLL#F
EMBE-_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—H
ENER  NEERSEREZRRA
EREE - Fra] L E A KR EE R
RTZEAZ=F -HIRENE%E
R FETE - BB S N EMRR S 5T -
REEEB N E AR
AEBRAANERLEBEANNA
SR BIEATTH

AREERPAE R BRI LAGHEL -
R-ZB-NF+-_A=+—HB EHA
S REHMEERN XN A THRE
ZREEHERAHEE -
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/PREPAID LEASE

PAYMENTS (continued)
Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB3,107,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of
RMB2,867,000 as at 31 December 2019. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

As at 1 January 2019, RMB1,177,787,000 of prepaid
lease payments for land use rights located in the PRC was
reclassified to right-of-use assets. During the nine months
ended 31 December 2018, the amount of release of
prepaid lease payments was RMB20,453,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
RMB142,420,000 of leasehold lands together with the
properties under development located on (as detailed
in note 20) transferred to investment properties upon
change in use as evidenced by inception of relevant rental
agreements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged
its right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid lease
payments) amounted of RMB1,003,349,000 (2018:
RMB1,177,786,000 (restated)) to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group.

The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated at
2 to 40 years on a straight-line basis.

18. ERAEEE FANHERE

(&)

HERB HRE

i RZZE—-hNF+=-_A=+—8"
FHEBEARK3,107,0007T BB H G F
REEE ANR®2,867,000THER B
FHEAFBHEEEZREES 57|\v
FE T EEINTAIER - FHEEE
TSREEBEZERR-

R—ZE—NF—HA—H AR¥
1,177,787,0007C 2 i A R B 2 b
FHREZENHERBEEENHES
FRAEEE-HE-_—\F+=A
=+—HIEN@EA - @R EMNHEERE
2 I8 A AR #20,453,0007T ©

HE-_Z—NF+ZA=+—HLF
e i AR 142,420,000 38
RATEE R (FFIFH N E20)
ERNEEEERERGRER R RE
BRERSINEYE-

Eé:%_@—hiJr:ﬂer—El AREEE

BEFEAEEE (ZF—/\F BN
fﬂ%ﬁklﬁ) AFR#1,003,349,0007T ( =
T—N\F: AR¥E1,177,786,0007T (£
B3))) - KARASER T 2 R1TE
B

FAEREEERBIREREN20E
A0FNRTIRITE
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19. REYE

The Group leases out shopping malls, hotels, office
units, commercial units, kindergartens and car parking
under operating leases with rentals payable monthly or
quarterly. The leases typically run for a fixed period of
one to twenty years. The lease payments are fixed over
the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies of
group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual

AEBHLHEHKEHERTZEYS
BoBE CMREN BEEMN Y
REZFEMC BESRAXFEX
- HERBER/EE NF—EM
F - HEBA W HEENFKEE -

74 58 L 7 5 2 7 B M LR
REAFEEEL U EEER2AH
e 5 E (B « R 40 30 O 25 R
R R/ SR A RTR B RS

value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the BaMEERE-
property at the end of lease term.
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
2 E K BREH
rE rE
S LS #et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARSTFT ARETFIT ARMTFIT
FAIR VALUE NFE
At 1 April 2018 (restated) W—ZE—N\F
MA—H (&E5) 4,623,040 - 4,623,040
Transfer from inventories ERAMERE
of properties 6,419 - 6,419
Increase in fair value REBHANERZ A
recognised in profit or loss SR AN 63,690 - 63,690
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF+=A
(restated) =+—H (&LEF75) 4,693,149 - 4,693,149
Transfer from property, plant =& 8% % = L&
and equipment (note 17) (Ha£17) 103,321 - 103,321
Transfer from right-of-use wERATRHEEE
assets (note 18) (K1a£18) 142,420 - 142,420
Transfer from properties under ¥ 5 23 E Y%
development (note 20) (Kz£20) 305,790 - 305,790
Transfer from inventories of ®EEAYEFE
properties (note 23) (K1zE23) 7,051 856,190 863,241
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REY= (#)
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
=104 BRP
rRE RE
ES LES it
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT ARETT

Increase in fair value REBEBEME BE

recognised in other REBHEEREME

comprehensive income H s ER A TFE

upon transfer g (Kat17)

from property, plant

and equipment (note 17) 229,279 - 229,279
Increase in fair value REEEERPMER

recognised in other EREEERNEA

comprehensive income FHKRGDERRTFE

upon transfer from &0 (Mfat20)

properties under
development
and right-of-use assets

(note 20) 714,090 - 714,090
Increase in fair value REBREAVMEFTER

recognised in profit or loss  RIBRFER A FE

upon transfer from = (FtaE23)

inventories of properties

(note 23) 9,248 372,810 382,058
Increase in fair value R ER A FEIG N

recognised in profit or loss 19,747 - 19,747
Disposal & (1,355) - (1,355)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF

+ZA=+—8” 6,222,740 1,229,000 7,451,740

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals AREERKEHEFAURIESH
are classified and accounted for as investment properties FrEMEED I B NAKREYE
and are measured using the fair value model. AR WARATFEEXGE-
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as RZE—NF+_A=+—BE=ZF
at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, and at —N\F+-A=+—BURAEEE
respective dates of transfers, have been arrived at on EOH - ANEBKEMENAFED
the basis of professional valuations carried out by Ravia REREE BT EBREEGEM
Global (2018: Asset Appraisal Limited), independent WMEBRIR(ZT—\F hEEET
qualified professional valuers not connected to the BEMBRAR)ETHEEMBEME
Group. JE
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ_—F

19.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group engages independent qualified professional
valuers to perform the valuation. The Group’s
management has discussions with the qualified external
valuers on the valuation assumptions, techniques, inputs
and results when the valuation is performed for annual
financial reporting.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was
change of valuation techniques for certain of the
Group's investment properties from capitalisation income
approach to direct comparison approach. The reason
of change is that the directors of the Company believe
direct comparison approach is more representative of fair
value in the current circumstance.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are determined. The valuation technique
used and the key unobservable inputs to valuation of the
investment properties categorised within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy are as follows:

—NF+ZA=1+—HILFE

19. REW % ()

AEEZRBYAEREXEMAERME
T R R R 1T
HER  AEEEREE RS BRI
B ERN ) & A AR &I 8 A BUE
KR e

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=1T—HLF
F’$%l S TREMEXZAETA
HEMOWAZBEE RERLLEL
FRZFEHA/ARAEERRER
HBUEERERKRE AN Z R FE

MEETRZEME 2 AN ER 25
ZEREMARERRAESHI AE-
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

At 31 December 2019

Investment properties

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value
hierarchy Valuation techniques

NYEER HERE

19. REWE (#)
R-—B—h&+=-A=+—8

Significant unobservable
inputs

EXTUBEGARE

Range

HE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

OELES DNt
EATPENBEE

held by the Group Fair value
REERECRENR AVE
RMB'000
ARBFT
Completed investment 6,222,740
properties, including
shopping malls,
commercial units,
office units, hotels,
kindergartens and car
parking.
ERIRENE BHE 6222740

WES EEEL B
RERCBE HRE
RESf

Level 3~ Direct comparison
method* - based on
market observable
transactions of
similar properties and
adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the
subject property.

EZR BEEHBE-RERN
NEZTZARER
HRERAE NURBE
0% IR

Adjusted market unit rate 1.
(Adjustment taking into
account for differences in
location and level)

BRETSBALE (R 1.
fiERkFEREBE)

Shopping malls and
commercial units, range
from RMB6,700 to
RMB70,500 per square
metre (“sqm");

BNASREEEUN
THEAR([FHK])
ARH6,700E AEE
70,5007 :

. Office units and hotels,

range from RMB5,900 to
RMB28,000 per sqm;

CHRAEMREENTE

THANRES 00T E
AR 28,0007 :

. Kindergarten, range from

RMB3,000 to RMB12,200
per sqm;

. BRENTFEFIRAR

B3 000TZARE
12,2007 :

. Car parking, RMB150,000

per unit.

BREMEREARE

150,0007C

E =R ARA R

Asignificant increase in the
adjusted market unit rate
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa.

FRERETEBILEX
EEMEEHATEALR
0 B2 R

201958
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2019 (continued)

19. REWE (#)
R-—ZB—h&E+=A=+—-8 (%)

Significant unobservable
inputs

EATTREGARE

Range

H6E

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

OEEES PN
EAVENBRE

Investment properties Fair value
held by the Group Fairvalue hierarchy Valuation techniques
AEERECRENE ATE DATEER HERS
RMB'000
ARBTFT
Investment properties 1,229,000 Level 3 Direct comparison
under construction, method* - based on
including hotels and market observable
office units transactions of
similar properties and
adjusted to reflect
the conditions of the
subject property.
EERANE REEE 1,229,000 F=h BERUBE-BREREU
RIFDEL NEZTEAERR
HRIEFE HURBE
BNEZMR
Total 7,451,740
At 7,451,740
I

2 1 6 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

1. Adjusted market unit rate
(Adjustment taking into
account the differences in
location and level);

2. Estimated total
construction cost
(Estimation taking
into account the cost
of construction and
installation and decoration
cost)

1 EEBTEBNLE (4
ARAERKFERE

¥):

2. (hEHERERA (R
ERRARRERELN
A

Range from RMB29,000 to
RMB50,000 per sqm;

Estimated total construction
cost to complete amount to
RMB209,736,000.

NFETHKARE29,000
TTEARE50,0007T :

L PAEIE 2 TR TN
F%209,736,0007C ¢

Assignificant increase in the
adjusted market unit rate
used would result in a
significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa

Assignificant increase in the
estimated construction
cost would result in a
significant decrease in fair
value and vice versa

FIREARMZELLER
BIRNBEHATENE
B RZ R

fEEtRER AR MBS
HRFEAERS R
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 December 2018

19. REWE (#)
R-—B—N\&+=-A=+—8

Relationship of

Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
held by the Group Fair value  hierarchy  Valuation techniques inputs Range fair value
TUEREBAYE
REERECRENR NVE ATEER HERE EXTTEERARE #E BATENER
RMB'000
AEETFT
(restated)
()
Completed investment 1,529,549 Level 3 Direct comparison Adjusted market unit rate 1. Shopping malls and A significant increase in the

properties, including
shopping malls,

method* - based on
market observable

(Adjustment made to

account for differences in

commercial units, range
from RMB6,700 to

adjusted market unit rate
used would result in a

commercial units, transactions of similar ~ location and level) RMB50,000 per sqm; significant increase in fair
office units, hotels, properties and adjusted value, and vice versa.
kindergartens, and car to reflect the conditions

parking. of the subject property.

BRIRENE BHEE 1,529,549 E=R EREEE-REEN SRETSELLR (LAR BNBASREXELNT AREARTHEMLNER
nEs BEEL# NEZTHIERLS W RUERKTER) BYAAAREEI00T  EEMEEHATEAR
REfBE HEE RERE URBED Z ANE#50,0007 : B Rz M5
REBEf nEZMR

2. Office units and hotels,
range from RMB6,200 to
RMB27,800 per sqm;

2 WRENRBEENTE
FHRARYG200LE
AR®27,8007

3. Kindergarten, range
from RMB1,600 to
RMB3,400 per sqm;

3 YREAFETHKA
RE1,600LEARY
3,400z

4. Car parking,
RMB200,000 per unit.

4 BFEUEEARE
200,0007z °
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF
19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REWZE ()
At 31 December 2018 (continued) R=F-—NF+=A=+—8(#)
Relationship of
Investment properties Fair value Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
held by the Group Fair value  hierarchy Valuation techniques inputs Range fair value
TUBERAYE
KEEBEZRENE NVE ATEER HERE EXTABRBAUE EE BAYENER
RMB'000
ARBTFT
(restated)
(E=31)

Completed investment 3,163,600 Level 3 Capitalisation income 1. Discount rate 6.1% - 8.4% The higher the discount
properties, including approach** rate, the lower the fair
shopping malls, and value and vice versa.
kindergarten.

BRIRENE BEE 3,163,600 E=l BRCBAE 1. BRE BREgs ATELE
nESRHZE Rz

2. Rental value RMB72 to RMB430 The higher the rental value,
per sqm per month the higher the fair value
and vice versa.
2 HeEE BRARETITE %ﬁ%f"fﬁt” DFES
AR%4307 &ZW‘&
Total 4,693,149
At 4,693,149
I
* The fair values of certain of the investment properties * i ﬂi_ T - N\F+=ZA
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were determined by =t+—B BTHREWMEZLATE
reference to the analysis of recent market sales evidence NESEBUME ZRATIZEE
of similar properties compared with the premises under %E’i?@ﬁ@%% ([E8]) EITHE
valuation (the “Subject”). Each comparable is analysed DM BEEE - SUELRIEED
on the basis of its market unit rate; each attribute of the SENLEERSMAELRZEIA
comparable is then compared with the Subject and where BUHHEEZRFZAETHR  NEL
there is a difference, the unit rate is adjusted in order to ZE BIFABREMELRUSENE
arrive at the appropriate market unit rate for the Subject. BUEE MBI &
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

**  The fair values of certain of the investment properties
at 31 December 2018 were determined by reference to
capitalised income to be derived from the tenancies and
the reversionary income potential of the properties or,
where appropriate, by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties in the relevant
locations and conditions.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
year/period.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged
its investment properties with carrying amount of
RMB5,738,437,000 (2018: RMB4,537,294,000 (restated))
to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The properties under development were located in the
PRC.

On completion, properties under development will be
transferred at the carrying value to property, plant and
equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, properties
under development of RMB305,790,000, and the
relevant leasehold lands of RMB 142,420,000, on
which the properties under development located was
transferred to investment properties upon change in use
as evidenced by inception of relevant rental agreements.

The aggregate difference of the fair value of the
properties under development and leasehold lands
at the date of transfer over their carrying amounts
amounted to RMB714,090,000, were recognised in
other comprehensive income. The fair value at the date
of transfer was determined based on the professional
valuation carried out by Ravia Global.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged
its properties under development amounted of
RMB279,860,000 (2018: RMB351,254,000 (restated)) to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

19.

20.

BREWE &)

W NE+-A=+—8 8
TREMEY AFEDHELERY
BT ERMA R RS Y% > B
ERER A (ER) S22
B REEER BLERS

EREEEE-

RAFERE/AEE - SESALEA
E=f-

WZZE—-hAhFE+-A=+—8 'K
SEEHFEEEFEAARE
5,738,437,000t (ZZE—\F: AR
#4,537,294,0007C (L&) ) 2 &
BEME - LLARASEERTL 2R1TE
ERMHE -

BROYWE ACHERE
SRR YRR -

RETH  ERTPVERGEEEDE -
B Ko s BREfE -

HE - Z—hWF+_A=+—HItF
B EP Y E AR 305,790,0007T
NERPYEMTEBEEL AR
#142,420,0007cE RN EBEH E WS
A AnEErEREREYE-

RERAS BRETYMERBEDE
ZAFEEHEREZAZBARE
714,090,0007T B 1A H fib 2 M W A FE
R NEEH I 2 AT ETBERZIR
BETZEEGHEET -

W_ZET—hAhFEF+_A=+—H"
AEECDEFEERPMEARK
279,860,0007C ( —E— \FE: AR
351,254,0007T (£&£ &%) ) - AARIA
SERNZRITEEREER

HE=EZERARAR
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. A—EBE AT 2ER

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

i N

—E-NF —T-N\F

t=R=t—-R +t=A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

(restated)

ARMFT ARBTFT

(g=5)

Cost of investment in an associate B E R B 2 B KA 257,582 257,582

Share of post-acquisition loss and EhEREEREMEERY

other comprehensive expense (12,275) (632)

Exchange adjustments B 3 58 B 5,343 (544)

Disposal BE (250,650) -

- 256,406

On 9 August 2018, Fujian Sinco Industrial Company R-ZE—NFENANLB BELERE

Limited (”Fujian Sinco”) and Grand International ZHERAR ([BELAER]) KEKE

Development Limited (“Grant International”), both are BRERARAR ([EXEK]) (55

wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into KRRz 2EWB AR AL =E

an agreement (the “Major Transaction Agreement”) EXEBRAA ([RLEEX]) (K&

with Xi‘an Chongfeng Real Estate Company Limited BlrBYE=R)dl Utz ([FER

(“Chongfeng Real Estate”), an independent third Sl NWBALZEREEES

party of the Group, to acquire total of 37% equity RARI([ERE] RHPBEKXIZE

interest of Xi'an Zhichengda Real Estate Company [BAT]) Z237%[HE  BREASARK
Limited (“Zhichengda”), a company established in the 257,582,0007T °

PRC with limited liability, at a total consideration of
RMB257,582,000.

The consideration comprise of: REBIE:
(i) Cash consideration of RMB6,200,000 and (i FHe&REARME,200,0007T %
US$30,000,000 (equivalents to RMB201,000,000); 30,000,000 7T (HHE R AR

201,000,0007T) :

(i) Shareholder’s loan of RMB360,900,000 (iy MEE R ARK360,900,0007T
(“Shareholder’s Loan”); and ([pEEREH]) &

(iii) Provisional consideration (being capital occupation iy BRERE(NESMGATE*)
interest*) of HK$56,817,000 (recognised as other 56,817,000/ T (MR A& E 4
payable) (equivalent to RMB50,382,000). EAFE) (HERARKE

50,382,0007T ) °
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. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

* According to the Major Transaction Agreement, Fujian
Sinco and Grand International agreed to pay Chongfeng
Real Estate a capital occupation interest on 50% of a land
premium (being RMB568,100,000) calculated at interest
rate of 13% per annum for the period from the date
of payment when the loan provided by Chongfeng Real
Estate to Zhichengda for acquisition of the Land to the
release of the Shareholder’s Loan as above (ii).

Major assets of Zhichengda is a piece of land (the
“Land”) situated in Xi‘an City, the PRC. On the date of
acquisition, Zhichengda has not commenced operation
and it is not constitute a business in accordance with
HKFRS “Business Combinations”. Accordingly, the
acquisition has been accounted for acquisition of assets.
The acquisition was completed on 30 September 2018.

On 4 October 2019, Fujian Sinco and Grand International
entered into another sales and purchase agreement with
Chongfeng Real Estate, pursuant to which Fujian Sinco
and Grand International have conditionally agreed to
sell, and Chongfeng Real Estate has conditionally agreed
to purchase the aggregate equity interest of 37% in the
Zhichengda at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB362,328,000 (the “Disposal”). Details of the
transaction was set out in the announcement of the
Company dated on 4 October 2019. The Shareholder’s
Loan has not been provided up to the completion date of
the Disposal and the provisional consideration under the
Major Transaction Agreement of the Disposal was waived.
The transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain
in profit or loss, calculated as follows:

mEMBERRWME

E-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

E«‘ BHE AR 2R (&)
BEFTEXS5WE BREEMEE
ANERREBEMHMEZ50% (AIAR
#568,100,0007T ) MR E B X T
AeGANE BREBEEXEMER
ERREIHREERINBEEE
FEBR AR B R E BRI F F E13%
HE (3 _E(iprit) o

BREZEREER/UNTEALS
Z gt ([£3b]) - RUkEE B &
*“%ijﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ LENMRBEEBYH

BEERA B THEK—EE
f“ At WD IR WBEEAR MK
BER-_Z-\FALA=1TBZEX-

—hWEF+ANB BELR K
rﬁ.%gﬁimﬂﬁi T_LEET%E@%
Bt BRARKERBEBRESGKERE
HE  REEBEERMFREWESR
E2BE37%RE  ReREBERHAR
#362,328,0007T ([ MEEIE]) c:ZR
SZHBEHRARRBHAEZZT—N
FHAMABZRAE - HERSHEKHA
B REERHRTIRBEEREER S
BRETNZHESHEEETRED TH
% RS0 BHRIBRERWES =
Tn ;%v::
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. R—HEBE L T 2R (&)

RMB’000
AEBETTT

Cash consideration (net of withholding tax of E&RKE (HBREHNHRARE

RMB15,546,000) 15,546,0007T ) 346,782
Add: Waiver of provisional consideration payable fil : 24 % & <t & £ X (B (1 3128)

(note 28) 50,382
Less: Carrying amount of investment in BN ESEERBERNERERE Y

Zhichengda at completion date of the Disposal BRHEI{E (250,650)
Exchange adjustments bEE 5, 38 ' 4,866
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate HER —HBE QR 2 ER 151,380
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the R EHRANEEBE AR ZFEN
reporting period is as follow: AR

Proportion of

Place of ownership Proportion of
Name of establishment/ interest voting rights held
entity operation held by the Group by the Group Principal activity
BERLE AL/ rREfE AREfE IEXH
RIRELE BREEER LA SRZLH
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

t=A=t-B fZA=t-8 tzA=t-B Z—A=1-H
“E-nF “E-N\F “E-hE —E-N\%

Zhichengda The PRC - 37% - 37% Property development
BRE i NEERE
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21 A—EBE AT 2ERE (#)
Summarised financial information of material BEABEQATMBERYE
associate
Summarised financial information in respect of EHREREZVBENBERIINT
Zhichengda is set out below. The summarised financial o AT E R E T RIRIRE B8
information below represents amounts shown in the BmEEAGEH 2B E AR BE@mEK
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance S NG
with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in R NRINZEHFEVBREPER
these consolidated financial statements. AN

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

i) N

—E-NE —E-N\EF

+=ZA=+-8B +t=-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T AREFIL

(restated)

(&)

Current assets REEE - 2,268,871

Non-current assets FRBEE - 146,493

Current liabilities MEAE - (1,202,373)

Non-current liabilities EnBEE - (520,000)
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. R—EBERT 2 fEm: (#)
Summarised financial information of material EABEQATNKERBE (&)
associate (continued)

Nine months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\F

+=ZA=+—-HB +tZ-A=+—H

LEFEE ENER

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R AREFT

(restated)

(K=7)

Revenue Iy 25 - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense AHEREEHERRIEL

for the period and up to the date BELEERY 85

of Disposal (31,467) (1,707)

22. DEFERRED TAX 22, EEBIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated RBINGEEPTBRRREY BTIRER
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax HEERBEBEDHRE RV BE2HEH
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is BEMIBAEHR DT T
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

i N

—E-1E ZE-NF

t=RA=t-8B TZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AREFT

(restated)

(&=75)

Deferred tax assets ELEHEEE (62,122) (39,039)
Deferred tax liabilities BREREEE 1,225,965 857,881
1,163,843 818,842
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

22. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 22, EEBIIE (&)
The deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the RE/BARNEERRZELEHEE
Group and movements thereon during the year/period B(EE) REZEHHT:

are as follows:

Change in Temporary Temporary Temporary

fair value of Accumulated ~ differences  differences difference

investment tax  of provision  oncontract  oncontract  Provision of

properties Tax losses  depreciation of LAT costs liabilities  impairment Total
RENE ZifE THBEREE AAREz  ANEEX

ZATERY hEEg e 2ERER ERER ERER RERE Eh

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  AMBO00  AMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBDOO  RMBOOD
ARETL  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZZ-\§NA-A

(FE5)) 770,033 (32,224) 71,755 (9,991) 2751 (290) (2.461) 799,573
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1B B (FFA) BRER
for the period (note 13) (H#13) 15,923 (14,899) 10,049 (538) 8,853 3 (151) 19,269

At 31 December 2018 (restated) R=F—\E+=F
=+-B(&E)]) 785,956 47123) 81,804 (10,529) 11,604 (258) (2,612 818,842

Charge (credit) to profit or loss 1B B (A ) ERER

for the year (note 13) (H#13) 100,451 (10,583) 11,241 (339) 8,934 (45) - 109,159
Charge to other REf2ERENR
comprehensive income 235,842 - - - - - - 235,842
At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE

+-f=1-8 1,122,249 (57,706) 93,045 (11,368) 20,538 (303) 2612 1,163,843
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax RZE—-—NF+=A=+—H F5E
losses of RMB393,638,000 (2018: RMB224,930,000 B AR IAE B AR393 638,000
(restated)) available to offset against future profits. A T (ZF— \F: AR%224,930,000
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of JC (48 E%)) ) A] BIEE AR KR F
RMB230,824,000 (2018: RMB188,492,000 (restated)) MZEMIBEEBHET AKK230,824,000
of such tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been TT(ZZE—\F: AR#188,492,000
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses of TL)ERRELEHIBEE - AR BER
RMB162,814,000 (2018: RMB36,438,000 (restated)) FISREE LARETE - BRI M REEA T 5018
due to the unpredictability of future profits streams. The BB A R#162,814,000T (ZZ— )\
unrecognised tax losses will expire gradually within 5 F: AR36,438,0007T (&K&E5I) )i
years to year 2024 (2018: year 2023). RIELEMIBEE - KX ILHERNIBEE

BRE_Z-_NERAFRELSEM
(ZB—NF:ZFB-=1F)-
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22, FEEBIIE (&)
BEFBRSEMBRE BZTZEN
F—A—HR PBEMNBRARARE
BRE 2 & A T Bk 2 & BB A TE 0
B tr B MR AEPENBE A
AIRBHEAMI Bz EREZEARE
1,179,533,0007T ( ZZ—N\F: AR
937,594,0007C (&%) )ztiR4E, A
WIRER B - REA A S E e 5T
S| ) E R 2 %A R TR A RE A
EERWAEIN R = S E

22. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for the year/period
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,179,533,000
(2018: RMB937,594,000 (restated)) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

23. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES 23. EEFE

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i i
—E-NEF ZT-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
(restated)
(& =%)
Completed properties for sale BEERZIHFEME 478,038 398,349
Properties under development for sale HEEERME 8,371,645 7,279,526
8,849,683 7,677,875
RMB’'000
AR F T
Analysis of leasehold lands: ME AT :
As at 1 January 2019 R=-ZE—-NE—H—H
Carrying amount BREE 3,756,198
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—h&E+=ZA=+—8H
Carrying amount BREE 4,627,201
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-NF+=-A=+—HLFE
Total cash outflow BRERE 735,431
Additions NE 1,339,000
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES (continued)

All the inventories of properties are situated in the PRC.

Included in the amount are properties under development
for sale of RMB2,532,826,000 (2018: RMB4,979,917,000
(restated)) in relation to property development projects
that are expected to be completed in more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
transferred inventories of properties of RMB7,051,000
and RMB856,190,000 to completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction
respectively, upon the inception of lease contracts with
independent third parties as business strategy for relevant
properties has been changed according to the board
resolutions. The difference between the fair value at the
date of transfer and the carrying amounts amounted to
RMB382,058,000 were recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value at the date of transfer was determined based
on the professional valuation carried out by Ravia Global.

At 31 December 2019, the Group's inventories of
properties with carrying value of RMB4,840,692,000
(2018: RMB3,492,904,000 (restated)) were pledged for
certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

As at 1 April 2018, the current loan receivables represents
i) receivables of RMB20,021,000 (restated) which are
secured, interest bearing at fixed rate of 8% per annum
and repayable according to the date specified in the
respective loan agreement. The amount was fully settled
during the nine months ended 31 December 2018; ii)
unlisted bond securities of RMB107,197,000 which are
secured, interest bearing at fixed rate of 20% per annum
and repayable on demand. Further details of the bond
securities are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 24 August 2015, 29 December 2015, 19 February
2016, 14 June 2016 and 13 October 2016. The bond
securities was derecognised during the year ended 31
December 2018 upon the signing of and replacing by the
new loan agreement (the “New Loan Agreement”) as
detailed below.

23.

24,

EERIE (#)
A YEEEHENRE -

CHETRREAEERTIMEARK
2,532,826,0007C ( ZZE— \F: AR
4,979,917,0007C (#£ & %1|) ) - H2 78 Hf
BEREHREA T —@ARRTZ
MEERIBE BB

HE-Z—-—NF+ZHA=1+—81
FE - REBYFE=ZFFIZZEY
it REBECDKESHEAARE
7,051,0007C & A R #856,190,0007T 2
MEGFTEDHEREER TR EYE
RIEgiEmE  REARAEME
BRBERBESSRERELEE
RERHE A FEEERECESE
AR #382,058,0007T 2 1B
R H B 2 A ETRE IR 2RIR
ETCEEMEET-

7
e

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H ~5£H
B HEREE A A R #4,840,692,000
T (ZZF—)\F : AR¥3,492,904,000
TL(EEN) ) 2MEFE - NBRA
SERNZRITEEREER

FE W B =X

R-Z—)\FNA—H EWAIHER
FEi)E W B 2 A R #520,021,0007T (4%
B5) - BHER  ZEEFHNE8%AT
EHEBESHERBZTEIBH 2B
HEZ E@HcEEREZE_S—/)/\F
+ZA=+—HBIENEARBEIER
iNIE_EmMESFEH ARE107,197,000
T BARER  RETFEFE20% B
BREZEEXEBE - FHESFESHF2E
—SHBIERARRBHRA-ZT—H
FNAZF+WH -—E—HF+=-A
“t+hHEH-ZE-RF-A+NHE =
T-XNENATHOBEE-ZT— X F+
A+=B2R & -BE-_ZT—N\F+=
A=+—HIEFE BFEHFRELR
LFHEZBZDR ([FER R )&
EEUHMER - FFEIEEHT -

HE=EZERARAR

20195 #& 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. BEIREF (&)
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In prior year, Jilin First Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd (“Jilin First”), an indirect holding subsidiary of
the Company, signed a cooperation agreement with
Changyi District People’s Government of Jilin City (& #&
mas’ARBA) (“Changyi Government”) and the
Management Committee of Jilin Hadawan Economic
Development Zone (MM EEKERZEREREZS
) (“Hadawan Management Committee”), to advance
an amount RMB30,000,000 to Changyi Government and
Hadawan Management Committee, and interest bearing
at fixed rate of 12% per annum. The term of the loan
receivables is 4 years and will be matured in 2020 and
was then classified as non-current. As at 1 April 2018 and
31 December 2018, the outstanding amount of this loan
receivable is RMB17,790,000 (restated).

As at 31 December 2018, the loan receivables also
included an amount of RMB110,000,000 receivable from
Shannan Tianyuan Investment Centre (ILFXRIRIEE
L (BRERAIK)) (“Shannan Tianyuan”) and Shannan
Shengyuan Investment Center (IUFEERIEEHL (B
FRA{K)) (“Shannan Shengyuan”), collectively referred
to “Joint Borrowers”. The loan receivables are interest
bearing at fixed rate of 20% per annum and with a term
of 18 months since the date of the New Loan Agreement
on 27 November 2018. Accordingly, the amount is
classified as non-current asset as at 31 December 2018.

The New Loan Agreement is secured by the pledged of
(i) 98.12% equity interest of Jiangsu Guosheng Hengtai
Energy Development Co., Ltd. CTEHBE K EFRERERE
BB AF) (“Jiangsu Guosheng”), of which the 86.34%
and 11.78% equity interests were beneficially owned by
Shannan Tianyuan and Shannan Shengyuan respectively;
and (i) 90% equity interests of Gujiao Guosheng Hengtai
Coalbed Methane Exploitation Co., Ltd (& 3Bk
BHEHEBRHAZFAER2AR) (“Gujiao Guosheng”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jiangsu Guosheng.
In addition, Mr. Zhong Changming, the substantial
shareholder and controlling party of Shannan Tianyuan,
agreed to grant an irrevocable joint liability guarantee in
favour of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from the expiry date (i.e. 27 May 2020) of the New Loan
Agreement.

All of the above non-current amounts as at 31 December
2018 were fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Details of impairment assessment on loan receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and nine months
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 39.

MEE  RAF Z MEERA AT EHE
AlIEHEMREERA R ([HMHHEE)
HEEMTEERARBMN([E&8IK
B REMRRESBLCEREREREER
Be ([RKEBBLZES])RITAEWH
FOUREBBI ARG EEELZESR
~F A R #30,000,0007T 3% & i F F
E12%:TE - BRWERAHNE Wi
RZE-ZFHH ERESEAER
R —E-N\FNA—BHE-ZT—N
F+_A=1+—HB ZEWREZZX
BESEEAARYE17,790,0007T (K&
5l)) o

RZZE—-N\F+-—A=+—8 EKE
RMBEERLEXRERERL(F
BRANK) (TWEXR]) &ILmER
BERL(BRAU (TWWmERIR])
(GBABMEERTRBEBARE
110,000,000 ° & U & 584% [ 7E & 7
K20%:TE HRABHER BB
BH(ZE2—)/\F+—A=-++tH)ist
18EA Bt R—ZEE—N\EFE+_A
=t—HB ZEIBEAFRDEE-

HE R EA)LEE X IBE SRR
BERAB(ITHRE] - HBLUE
KR N L F BRR 5 Bl #E 586.34% M
11.78% M #E) 2 98.12% M #E : M (idy
RMEKEREEBRFEFNBEREA
Bl ([HREE | IERE 2 2B B
AN A)) Z90% A% #E VEHE 18 o it o - LU
KEZFTERRRIERATEREL
ERERTHUALEEATEZAZ
AR BESEIRE BRAeAETE
PEHRERER (AT _2F
FAZ+EH)EME-
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B bR —Z—N\F+-A=+—H
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER

25. BWIRM - Htt BRRIBE R &

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS NE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i N
—E-AF —E-N\EF
+=ZA=+-B +t=-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFTT ARBF T
(restated)
(L&)
Trade receivables JE W BR 3K
— goods and services —AmRkR% 15,511 8,766
— rental income (note f) —HEUWA (Ffaf) 14,849 9,725
Other receivables (note e) HAh MR (ffite) 211,745 1,114,177
Prepayment to constructors and TEA AR R it FE 7 BUR
suppliers (note a) (Ktita) 301,518 165,196
Deposits paid for acquisition of land ENBBREERTYR 2 LHE
use rights for Ri#zke (Kab)
property under development for sale
(note b) 99,000 36,933
Security deposit paid to financial REEIN TEREE 2R
institution for Fe (Mice)
borrowing (note ¢) - 122,500
Other refundable deposits HihREin S 93,729 57,731
Other tax prepayments H th 118 T8 5018 303,697 244,028
Less: Allowance for credit loss on other A E AR WRIE S
receivables (note d) SEERE (Mitd) (73) (73)
1,039,976 1,758,983

Notes:

Bt et -

(@ The amount mainly represents prepaid construction (@)
cost of approximately RMB264,675,000 (2018:
RMB154,985,000 (restated)) for the Group’s properties

under development for sale.

(b)  The deposits were made by the Group for the acquisition (b)
of land use rights in the PRC for the Group's properties

under development for sale.

(c)  The security deposit was paid to financial institution for (0)
a borrowing facility of RMB245,000,000 granted to the
Group.

ZHREFTEZERAEEFERR
FPENBENERIREAHOARE
264,675,000 (ZE—N\F: AR
#154,985,0007T (L& &EF) ) »

ZReAAEEXNERNEEZ
FEERTORRETE 2 L1
FtE-

EMBETFTASE 2 EHHEARE
245,000,0007C [ <6 B 1S S [T IEIR

B e

HE=EZERARAR
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(d) There is no changes in the allowance for credit loss on
other receivables during the year ended 31 December
2019, and reversal on credit losses on other receivables of
RMB320,000 (restated) has made during the nine months
ended 31 December 2018.

() The amount mainly represents fund advanced to
constructors and suppliers, whom are independent third
parties, for their own properties under development.
The main reason for decrease of other receivables in
current year is that amount due from the independent
third parties of RMB1,014,439,000 have been settled
by amount due to related parties or amount due to the
independent third parties in according to the netting
agreements, as detailed set out in note 45(a). The balance
are of non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free,
repayable on demand.

(f)  The Group had pledged trade receivables of
RMB14,849,000 (2018: RMB9,725,000 (restated)) as at 31
December 2019 to secure bank and other borrowings of
the Group.

As at 1 April 2018, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMBS8,046,000 (restated).

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to
its trade customers from date of issuance of the invoices.
Trade receivables arise from rental income which is paid
monthly or quarterly in accordance with the terms of the
related rental agreements.

2 3 0 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

25. BUWIRM  Htt BFRIBE R &

FFIE (#)
BisE: (48)

() B=ZZ-—hAhF+-ZA=+—H1t
FE HMmEKFEZ EZEBIER
HEREZE BEREE_T—\F
+—A=Z+—HLENEA E&EE
H fh e U 5k 18 A R #320,0007T (4
BY)Z2EEERB-

() ZPEXEEMRAEMILMHEER
(WAEBIYE=-F)TBZ2EHE
BHROMEMRAESAN 2 ES-
AEZHMERFEBERD HEE
HRERBIE=ZARBEBARE
1,014,439,000 L ERIBFHEE
1 DA FE A B 3 A\ T RIE S FE T B
SNEZHRBEN  FBEEAMWEE
45(a) * L MERBIEE FIEE - K
B REREREE-

fH RZE—hh&F+=ZA=+—8"
AEEDEFERERARE
14,849,0007T (ZZE— NF: AR
9,725,0007T (X &E5) ) - NAARE
B2 RITREMAEERMAEE

R-ZE—\FWUA—H BFAHES
2 FEUW R A A R #8,046,0007T (4%
=) e

AEBEARFEESEPZFHEEN
BRI AR Q30K - EU AR
K B BEREBEBEE R RK
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER 25. BWERA - Htt B FKIBE R TE
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) FFIE (#)

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade T ABRBEYEFEENE W ARER

receivables determined based on the date that the sales AHET s ASEE ZRERIGIAZER

of properties or rental income were recognised: B AT

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

»® n

—E-hE —E-N\F

+=ZA=+—-8B +-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREF T

(restated)

(&5)

0 - 30 days 0%30H 4,174 4,685

31 - 90 days 31%90H 4,999 1,208

Over 90 days 90H A £ 21,187 12,598

30,360 18,491
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25.

26.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB21,937,000 (2018: RMB15,534,000
(restated)) which are past due as at the reporting date.
Out of the past due balances, RMB17,270,000 (2018:
RMB12,382,000 (restated)) has been past due 90 days
or more and is not considered as in default based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience from these
corresponding creditors.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 39.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

25.

26.

FEWRRR - HttEWRIERTA
T FRIE (&)

N-E—hF+-_A=+—H AEEH
2B RWIBELEHTBRIERREHE
HE @ A @ AR (B A R 121,937,000
7T (ZZE—N\F: AR¥15,534,0007C
(L&E7)) ) MR - Nz F s
garh - AR #17,270,0007T (ZZF— N\
£ AR#12,382,0007T (KFEF)) ) B
B0 R A - BIBEAEE %S

BEEAZBEEEBRLRIL KK
BREHK -

B 5 R YRR b B At 8 UK TR R (B BT
R F BN E39 -

BAFEFABRSZZMBEE

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-B +tZ-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFT
(restated)
(eE5)
Financial assets mandatorily measured BHIZ AT EFABRZTE
at FVTPL: ZEHBEE:
Listed securities held for trading: BEBEE FhEE:
- Equities securities listed in —RNEB M ZRAE R
Hong Kong 24,889 60,611
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RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits

Bank balances which, in accordance with the applicable
government regulations prevailing in 2019, are placed in
restricted bank accounts, amounting to RMB62,840,000
(2018: RMB90,344,000 (restated)), which can only be
applied in the designated property development projects.

The amount of RMB10,558,000 (2018: RMB26,200,000
(restated)) was pledged for bank and other borrowing as
at 31 December 2019,as detailed in note 41.

Bank balances and cash

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.30% to 2.52% (2018: 0.13% to 1.95%
(restated)) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

27.

28.

SREBITERBITER

EEE

ZRHEBITER

BIE - NFRITEBERAERE
FEAZREEITEREEZHRITEHAR
#62,840,0007C (ZZE— N\F: AR
90,344,000 (&£ &%) ) {2 "] AR5
TEYEEREIER -

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 AR
#10,558,0007T (ZE— N\F: AR
26,200,0007T (£ &%) )ERLIRIT K
EMEEEER FHEEHNME4 -

RITERKRES
RITHEBEN T EF030%E2.52%
(ZZF—)\F:0.13%%E1.95% (K =E
5)) ) 2 TS MRS o

BANRAUAREMBENRIE
KESTEH

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

iy N

—E-hE —T-N\F

+=ZA=+—-B +=—A=+—8©

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR ARETF T

(restated)

(&E=5)

Trade payables (Note a) FERTBR R (HYita) 864,704 591,958

Other payables and accruals (Note b) H b et B R EET B A (Hatb) 402,591 1,043,096
Provisional consideration payable ENEERE (Ma21)

(note 21) - 50,382
Deposits received from tenants BUERR AR S 25,484 20,144
Other tax payables H fth e B 18 22,717 33,500
Accrued construction costs JEET SRR A 988,184 343,465

2,303,680 2,082,545

HE=EZERARAR
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 28. BEABRMURH BN KRIE
ACCRUALS (continued) REER(#)
Note: fit & -
(@) The following is an aging analysis of trade payables (@) WUTAREREZHHETE ZEMNE
determined based on the invoice date: HERE DT
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+-B +=-A=+—8©
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AREFT
(restated)
(RE5)
0 - 30 days 0Z£30H 85,420 202,871
31 -90 days 31290H 66,572 9,121
91 - 365 days 912365H 319,961 223,990
Over 1 year —FN 392,751 155,976
864,704 591,958
(b)  The main reason for decrease of other payable in current (b) AFEHMEMRBRLHEZZER
year is that amount due to the independent third parties AEMNBIYE=ZARBARE
of RMB351,505,000 have been settled by amount due 351,505,000 0 B R FREE S
from related parties or amount due from the independent LAPE N BEE H RIBS ER B L E =
third parties in according to the netting agreements, as FHIEHEE BN E45@) -
detailed set out in note 45(a). The balance are of non- ERAIFESHME  EEF 28R
trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free, repayable on BEREE-
demand.
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ENEFRFEERMYMEEZREE &
for payments to contractors and suppliers of property BEEMAAREREEERIN K
development projects and purchases of construction B REBHIB - MANEFFHZ Y
materials. The average credit period granted to the Group EEHRERAZ—F -BRERYE
is from 6 months to 1 year. The management closely REMFIEZRIER  LAERFTERE
monitors the payments of the payable to ensure that all NREREERBRAZ N -AEH
payables are paid within the credit timeframe. Details of 2R ERBUR 2 FEBE AN
the financial risk management polices by the Group are 390

set out in note 39.
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29. CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT

29. BHRAREHNERE

LIABILITIES
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
+=ZB=+—-8B +-—R=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
(restated)
(#=E7))
Contract costs: BRI
Incremental cost to obtain contracts BMEAHZIEEMA (Hsta)
(Note a) 111,150 77,429
Contract liabilities: aHaE:
Sales of properties (Note b) MEEE (Kitb) 6,553,298 4,721,726
Note: Bt at -

(a)

(b)

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 relate to the incremental sales commissions paid
to property agents whose selling activities resulted in
customers entering into sale and purchase agreements for
the Group’s properties which are still under construction
at the reporting date. Contract costs are recognised as
part of other expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the period in which revenue from the related property
sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs of
RMB18,349,000 (2018: Nil) have been recognised in profit
or loss during the current year. There was no impairment
in relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or
the costs capitalised during the year/period.

The Group receive payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in property sales
contracts. Payments are usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts from sales of properties.

RZE-NER_ZT—N\FE+_A
=t+—H BAXEEHRAERY
¥REBIFHESEEMSIEE
BRAMERBENHEEZIBEETFH
RiRE B EEPNREEYERT
VEBEWE A N AR ER AR
MEHEES WA BRENEREBRERE
el ERERAEMAIH—
Ho - BAEEAKAZ ©EARE
18,349,000c (ZZE— N\F: &E)E
RARFERIBEHER - E AR A
Z RN EESRSE S BRNE B AKX
A B o

AEBRBMEHESHTHELL
B EE R E P WER KRR
EHEALN NFBEREQK
HR e

2019 3} 23 5

E =R ARA R
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29. CONTRACT COSTS AND CONTRACT 29. EHRAEARENERE (£)
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LIABILITIES (continued)

The contract liabilities of RMB6,553,298,000 (2018:
RMB4,721,726,000 (restated)) as at 31 December
2019 represent the deposits received from pre-sale of
properties.

Included in revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2019, approximately RMB1,776,396,000 was
included in the contract liabilities at 31 December 2018.

Included in revenue recognised for the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, approximately
RMB191,097,000 (restated) was included in the contract
liabilities at 1 April 2018.

In addition, the Group considers the advance payment
schemes contain significant financing component and
accordingly the amount of consideration is adjusted
for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the relevant
group entities. As this accrual increases the amount of
the contract liability during the period of construction, it
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control
of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

R-ZE—HhE+_A=+—H &4
B & A R#6,553,298,0007T (=&
— )\ : AR#¥4,721,726,0007T (4=
5|) VIEETEEMERR RS -

BHE-_Z—NWF+_A=+—HItF
EER WAL ARE1,776,396,000
TR ARZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H
ZaHatE-

BE-F—\F+-A=+—HIN
169 #i2 2 W\ 40 AR #E191,097,000
T UEES)) AR =E—/\Fm A
—RzawafE.

AN AEERS BNREFEBREE
ABERD At ESEREENE
FEEZEELHE XEEREEE
B ZEERIL - XL FSIE N
ERAENAOAESRE SUENE R
TYREHI SR E P R R W
N3

30. SRITRHMEE

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\EF

+=A=+—-B +=-A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT AREFIT

(restated)

(&E5)

Secured bank borrowings BEHEMRITEE 3,729,928 1,402,897
Secured other borrowings BFEREMEE 500,000 2,664,600
4,229,928 4,067,497
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30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continved)  30. SRITREMEE (&)

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are WRAR & S % NPT BE E & 5 E HARE
repayable based on scheduled repayment dates set out in EEN MEENREELT

the loan agreements as follows:

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

i N

—E-NEF —E-NF

+ZBA=+—-8B +-—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBEFITT

(restated)

(&E5)

Within one year —FR 619,493 2,675,715
More than one year, but not exceeding —FLE BETBAMF

two years 813,400 727,837
More than two years, but not MENE - BNEBRF

exceeding five years 1,938,035 473,525

More than five years HE L 859,000 190,420

4,229,928 4,067,497

Less: Amounts due within one year WRBAEETARZ A

shown under current liabilities HEeE (619,493) (2,675,715)
Amounts shown under non-current FRHEBE T REEE

liabilities 3,610,435 1,391,782
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30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continved)  30. SRITREBEMEE (&)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows: AEEZEBEERBAT
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
+=A=+-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Fixed rate borrowings EEFEEE 4,229,928 4,067,497
The range of effective interest rates of the borrowings at REREFRHREEZEEFE
the end of each reporting year/period was as follows: HELT
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
+=A=+-H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FR AREBFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Fixed rate borrowings BEMEEE 4.75%-12.8% 4.35%-15%
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2019, the bank and other borrowings
were guaranteed/secured by the followings:

(@) corporate guarantees provided by the Group
for the bank borrowings with principal amount
of approximately RMB4,229,928,000 (2018:
RMB4,067,497,000 (restated));

(b) Mr. Guo Jiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse of
Mr. Guo lJiadi, have provided guarantees to banks
for the bank borrowings with principal amount
of approximately RMB2,094,000,000 (2018:
RMB3,584,567,000 (restated));

(c) Bank and other borrowings were pledged by
Group’s bank deposits, certain trade receivables
from rental income, inventories of properties,
properties under development, investment
properties, right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid
lease payments), property, plant and equipment
and equity interests in subsidiaries. Details of the
pledged assets are set out in note 41.

30. BRITREMEE (&)
AEET FFEEEYIAARBEE-

RNZZE—-NF+-_A=+—H8 H17k
HEMEEHA TS HER R

@ AEERRITEERHNTSHE
% 5 NR¥4,229,928,0005T (=
= — )\F : AR¥4,067,497,000
TC (&) ) 2 RAER:

(b)  FF 0ot & & 30 0l o A 2 B
BB LT RIRITEER
BITREMNASBEHBARE
2,094,000,0007T ( =& — )\ 4 :
AR #3,584,567,0007T (K&
5) ) 2 AR

@ RITREMERTIAREERT
TR B THSWRARKER
MEFE ZERTVE -RED
X EAREE (ZT-\F: 7
NHEENT) W% - BB M&RE
PAR M 88 1 B AR (E 1R 1 - B 3K
HEEFISHNM TS -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. R
Number of shares Share capital
i &vig:2 §E| [} &N
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
—g2-nE  -F-\F ZB-AFE -—T)\F
+=A +=A +=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H =+—H =+—H
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
FiR FhiE AR¥FT ARKFT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of S EE0.01/8
HK$0.01 each TLZ & AR 200,000,000 200,000,000 1,979,280 1,979,280
Convertible AT R (B AR
preference shares 602,000 602,000 4,902 4,902
Issued and fully EBERTREE
paid
At the beginning  RE¥)EI7)
of the year/
period 4,458,901 4,458,901 37,468 37,468
Acquisition of 1z B L[] 2 il
entities under T (ML)
common control
(note i) 485,437 - 4,158 -
Acquisition of EERuYE Fa
additional U B — R8I B B
interests in a N R)ZEEIN
subsidiary from e (KM atii)
non-controlling
interests (note ii) 135,870 - 1,195 -
Exercise of share 1715 i AR e
options (note iii) ( Bt &%iii ) 7,000 - 60 -
At the end of the  RF HIK
year/period 5,087,208 4,458,901 42,881 37,468
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

As detailed in note 2 on acquisition of All Excel,
on Acquisition Completion Date 1, 485,436,893
consideration shares with an aggregate fair value
of approximately HK$276,699,000 (equivalent to
RMB237,030,000) were allotted and issued. Accordingly,
HK$4,854,000 (equivalent to RMB4,158,000) was credited
to the share capital at par value of HK$0.01 per share
of the Company and the remaining HK$271,845,000
(equivalent to RMB232,872,000) was credited to the share
premium of the Company.

On 28 June 2019, Fuzhou Gaojia, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, signed a sale and
purchase agreement with Nanping Huiteng Trade Co.,
Ltd. (“Nanping Huiteng”), a non-controlling shareholder
of Wuyishan Gaojia Real Estate Development Company
Limited (“Wuyishan Gaojia”), pursuant to which Fuzhou
Gaojia will acquire the remaining 49% non-controlling
interest in Wuyishan Gaojia from Nanping Huiteng at the
consideration of RMB55,000,000, satisfied by issuance of
135,869,565 ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.46
per consideration share. On the date of completion on
25 July 2019, the Company issued 135,869,565 shares
at the market price of HK$0.55 per share. Accordingly,
HK$1,359,000 (equivalent to RMB1,195,000) was credited
to the share capital at par value of HK$0.01 per share
of the Company and the remaining HK$73,370,000
(equivalent to RMB64,548,000) was credited to the share
premium of the Company. Upon completion, Wuyishan
Gaojia became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its financial results will continue to be
consolidated into the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. The acquisitions have been accounted
for as equity transactions and the total difference of
RMB17,470,000 arising between the consideration
paid and the carrying amounts of the attributable non-
controlling interests acquired plus the waiver of amount
due to non-controlling shareholder of RMB38,588,000
had been recognised directly in other reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
issued approximately 7,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each upon exercise of share options. The new
ordinary share rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

31. RA& (&)

it

()

(i)

(iii)

R 28 (M2 a) i
REEEKBSHE— Bk L&
T8N F{EH276,699,000/8 7T
(HHE N4 ARY237,030,000
JL) 2 485,436,893 KB D -
Itk » 4,854,000 7T (B E R4
AR¥4,158,0000) B EKRE
B0.01B Tt ARR AR A H &
271,845,000 7T (MHERHARE
232,872,00070) B FF AR R B D

RZE—NAFANAZ+NB AR
AfE2EWNB AR EMNEERR
e ERHEREERAA (R
EINEE])MIEERIERE T IEE
Z5HRAR ([FEFIERE])ETE
B Bt @S ESaEEE
BEUER R LS EZH T49%IEHE
Iz #E 2= - KB & A R#¥55,000,000
LB BREBRARERKD.467E T
%% 17135,869,5650% 7K A 7] & i IY
HEE-REKBBH(ZE—hLF+
AZ+HAB) AAGBEMESR
f&170.558 708 17135,869,5650% %
9 A It » 1,359,000/ 7T (HEE R
AR #1,195,0007T) B iR B E
B0.01B Tt AR AR A H &
73,370,000 7T (HE RN AR
64,548,0007T) B it ARR AR (D&
B %% REBIUSEFEERAERA
AlzHAE2ENBAR  EEBE
BERRBEENARRR ZRAMEHRE
BRAEAR - ZERBEBE ARSI EE
w5 e E R TS JEE
BESEGEAEZ BEZBARE
17,470,0007T 0 & % & 1 FE 12 AR AR
W FIB A R #38,588,0007T & H #
REM R EER -

HE-_Z-NAF+ZA=+—8Lt
FE -ARARBREEITFEERE
77#97,000,000% A%0.01/8 T 2 & i
o EBIREMBHEERR 2
RERNODZBRFHL -

E =R ARA R
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32. LR AEEZRS
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At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
16 September 2011, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants. The Share
Option Scheme covers any employee (full time and part
time) holding salaries, agents, contractors, consumers,
suppliers and others providing similar services as the
Board in its sole discretion considers eligible.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option will be
determined by the Board at the time of grant.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to
30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

R-CE——FNATRBETZAR
ARRBFERE L AABRERIER
A —IRBEAERT S ([ RERERTEl]) -

BRER B AR R RS REEE
M RBEHERODER 2 BE R
2R e FE R AR - B
AEREEFEEREBBRARAER
ZIEAEBERBEHREE R K
mE o HEE R REMREMAR
R# 2B -

EFeRNRIBRERETSNE
PHEZITEE BB ITEMNATS
KR8 A -

3B IR B AR AT B R M R TT
BREZHE LR HENZSHEE
BTERAR RN EED EITR
0 230% » AR+ =8 A B E AR
EERENRERETISEAERS
EEH AT 2 B IR - AR R RIMER
R EBEITRN Z1%BR - nE—2F
Bz BEEBBILRER  AERRAK
g EEUSIRRILE -

AIARAREFSH T EZRR L EFEM
EATREBRERN AELRE
ARRBIBILIFAITESLAE - I - 1
REA+ ZEAREARAREER
PR BB IE AT E F R S (A B
BATER 2 E RS KA
HHEARR RN ERSEE ETRG Z
0.1%ifm 48 {E (AR RO R H A
Hi 2 (Bi&5tH ) #H15,000,000/8 7T * /8
FRERRKE ERGBRILE
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date specified in the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the
grant of the share options or the expiry date of the share
option scheme, if earlier.

On 22 February 2016, a total of 46,000,000 shares
options (“Batch 1 Options”) were granted to the
directors, employees and others providing similar services
of the Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee
which entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary
shares of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.285
per share. It shall be exercisable during the period from
the date of grant, first, second and third anniversary of
the date of grant respectively in the following manner:

(@) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the date of grant;

(b) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the first anniversary of the date of
grant;

() 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the second anniversary of the date of
grant;

(d) 25% of the option will be exercisable during the
period from the third anniversary of the date of
grant.

32. LRI AEEZRS (&)

il A= TS L AL A
AR - AR ARBRRF AN A
KB ZSBARE - IR LB
ZITEHBARRESEE  YNET
BEHEREFRG MAERBHISE
REBRER B BT T F B g
HEZERA (UREERE) -

RZEBE—ARNF-_A=Z+=H &#
46,000,00017 5 Bt (58 —HE BB IRt
EERTASEZES  EE RIRHEE
RIEMEMAL  BREARABTHR
SREVETL - ABRARERELS
B20.285B L2 ITHEEBRB ALY
B -HA SRR LA RE B
—IBE MBS R =BEEHARANIEIA
THRITE:

(a) MERLBHEHERGAITE
25%BE I AE

(b) R BH—BFREBEARA
171625 % P A HE

(© MR B MBS RIEERE A
1T{F25% BB AR HEE -

d) PEEBB=EFEREAER]
171625 %FE AR i
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3. URBAREREZRF (#)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

On 24 April 2018, a total of 59,700,000 shares options R-ZZE—NFONA-_+INHE A#
(“Batch 2 Options”) were granted to the directors, 59,700,00017 & A% 1 (5 —#HE BB AR 4% )
employees and others providing similar services of the ERTAEEZES BERLEE &
Group at a cash consideration of HK$1 per grantee which BERBANEZMNRESRE VBT AR
entitle the grantees to subscribe for new ordinary shares AR B RTR0.4208 T2 1T1%
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.420 per BERBARAFE B - AR DRI
share. It shall be exercisable during the period from the HEH - I BB — R F KA F R
date of grant, first and second anniversary of the date of IR AT A RITHE

grant respectively in the following manner:

(a) 40% of the option will be exercisable during the (a) ML BEHEABRGITE
period from the date of grant; 40% 8 P 1
(b) 30% of the option will be exercisable during the (b) MIRXEHBH—BFRIAFERER
period from the first anniversary of the date of ITF30% AR 2 :
grant;
() 30% of the option will be exercisable during the (0 MR B MBS AR
period from the second anniversary of the date of 1T{230% AR 2
grant.
Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BIREABERNZFBNT
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise Price
A BEHE TR TfEE
Options granted to an 22 February 2016 Immediately to 3 22 February 2016 to HK$0.285
ex-director, directors, years from the date 21 February 2022
employees and others of grant
providing similar services
BRT—2HESEES. A S ANERHBMSE —T—KRF 0.285/& 7T
EERE®/EAURE 2 —A=-+=H HEES —A=Z+=HE
Hith At 2 BxiE —T-—
—“A=+=H
Options granted to an 24 April 2018 Immediately to 2 24 April 2018 to HK$0.420
ex-director, directors, years from the date 23 April 2024
employees and others of grant
providing similar services
RYT-—2HNEF EF. —T-N\F MIRZEEREBHE —T-N\F 0.420/ 7T
& B IRt BLURYE 2 MAZ+mA 25 MAZ+tHEEZE
Hp A+ 2 Ik RZZT-_HF
mA=+=
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3. URBAREEZRF (#)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The following table discloses movements of the TREBBE_ZE-NLF+A
Company’s share options held by ex-director, directors, =+—HIEFERNIES EF EB
employees and others providing similar services during REFAURB 2 EMALTRBEZARR
the year ended 31 December 2019. AR E  ZEpo
31 December 2019 R-ZB-AF+=ZA=+—H
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding of
of 1 January during the during the during 31 December
Option type 2019 year year the year 2019
—E-NE ZE-NE
-B-H +tZB=1-H
BRERR W RATE FRRL ERfT EREX R AT
Batch 1 Options: B-HERE:
An ex-director —ZHES 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - -
Directors S 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000
Employees and others EERREBURE 2
providing similar services  Efti AL 23,100,000 - (4,500,000 - 18,600,000
Batch 2 Options: BEoHERE:
Directors B 15,200,000 - - - 15,200,000
Employees and others EERRHEENRE 2
providing similar services EAL 44,500,000 - - (3,000,000) 41,500,000

Total @it 90,700,000 - (7,000,000) (3,000,000 80,700,000

Exercisable at theend of ~ ERA1TE
the year 63,690,000

Weighted average exercise 1 F15377 (%18

price HK$0.352 - HK$0.285 HK$0.352 HK$0.369

035287t 0.285% T 035287t 0.3697% T

The following table discloses movements of the TxEEHz_ZET—NF+_-HA

Company’s share options held by ex-director, directors, =t—HIENEARERNGES E

employees and others providing similar services during = EERMBURBZEMALESE
the nine months ended 31 December 2018. ZANFIEREZE-
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 32. RO RBEEZRF (#)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
31 December 2018 R=-ZB-NF+=-A=+—8H
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
of 1 April during the during the during  of 31 December
Option type 2018 period period the period 2018
—E-0\F —E-N\F
MA—H +ZA=1+-H
BREERL HATTRE Hrii BT AP HAITHRE
Batch 1 Options: E-HBRE:
An ex-director —hAES 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
Directors BZ 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000
Employees and others EERRHEURE K
providing similar AT
services 23,100,000 - - - 23,100,000
Batch 2 Options: EoMBRE:
Directors E - 15,200,000 - - 15,200,000
Employees and others EEREEEURB 2 E
providing similar AT
services - 44,500,000 - - 44,500,000
Total @it 31,000,000 59,700,000 - - 90,700,000

Exercisable at theend of ~ HIRA17{F

the period 47,180,000
Weighted average MEFHEE

exercise price HK$0.2858 7 HK$0.420% T - - HK$0.352% T
Options exercised during the year ended 31 December HE_T-AF+_A=+—RHLLF
2019 resulted in 7,000,000 (2018: Nil) ordinary shares J& 2 BT RE IR B3 777,000,000
being issued. The related weighted average closing price B(ZE-—NF:-E)EBR-BEE
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the AR EMET T2 B HARY - AR (D 2 AEREANHE T
options were exercised was HK$0.510 per share. BT ER/FR0.5108 T -
Save as disclosed above, no options was granted under BREXHBEEEIN BE_ZT—NF
Batch 1 Options and Batch 2 Options during the year +ZA=T—HILFE BEREE—
ended 31 December 2019. HERE AR K 55 — BLRE AR A I (T B

P HE
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

These fair values were calculated using Binomial model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

32.

URGABEEZRS (#)

ZEATEER-ERMHYE - TR
SRS B B ABE

24 April 22 February

2018 2016

—E-NF AN

MA=Z+WH Z—A=+=H

Weighted average share price niEFHETHE HK$0.420 HK$0.285
0.420/% 7T 0.285% 7T

Exercise price TEE HK$0.420 HK$0.285
0.420/8 7T 0.285% 7

Expected volatility T8 HA R 18 61.23% 63.39%
Risk-free rate 2 @ b ) & 2.05% 1.17%
Early exercise multiple REPITERBE 220% - 280% 220%
Dividend yield REE 0% 0%
Vesting period Rt 1 to 3 years 1 to 4 years
1234 15244

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous
6 years. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

For the past ten years before the valuation date, no
dividend has been declared and paid to the shareholders
of the Company. Dividend yield is assumed to be zero in
the Binomial model.

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB2,640,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
(Nine months ended 31 December 2018: RMB7,291,000
(restated)),
Company.

in relation to the options granted by the

A RIEERBEAE LR ARES
Bt RIRRETE - RS HT A 2 T
EIRIE IR 2 B fE A BRI H
B TERHI BAT BEERER 2 H
F oA

MEBHITEE T  SES M KN
BB F AN BT o —IE AR B3 SR A%
BHERRT-

REBE-ZT—-NF+-—A=+—HL
FE  AEBBRARRIRE 2 BAERE
RuER s A R#2,640,0007T (B ZE —
E-NF+_A=+—HItNEA:
ANE#7,291,0007T (KEF) ) o

E =R ARA R
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33. BONDS PAYABLE 33. ERES

248 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

On 24 July 2015, the Company issued 7% coupon bonds
of principal amount of HK$11,000,000 (the “Bonds”) to
certain independent third parties. The proceeds received
by the Company were HK$11,000,000, with total issued
cost amounted to approximately HK$1,700,000. The
Bonds are denominated in HK$ and issued at par. Interest
is payable semi-annually and the principal will be repaid
when the Bonds fall due on 23 July 2019. The effective
interest rate of the Bonds is 12.08% (Nine months ended
31 December 2018: 12.08%). During the year ended
31 December 2019, interest expense for the Bonds is
approximately RMB638,000 (Nine months ended 31
December 2018: RMB809,000 (restated)).

The Bonds contain a liability component and an early
redemption option.

Liability component represents the present value of
the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market interest
rate on the initial date applicable to instruments of
comparable credit status and providing substantially
the same cash flows, on the same terms, but without
the embedded derivatives. The interest charged on
the Bonds is calculated by applying effective interest
rates of approximately 12.08% per annum to the
liability component since the Bonds were issued.
Early redemption options are regarded as embedded
derivatives not closely related to the host contract.

The directors consider that the fair value of the above
early redemption options is insignificant on initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.

RZE—RAF+A-+WTBE AR
BEETEBIE=A%1TALEHE
11,000,000 TR B7%&E % ([{&
Fl) o ARQNAE WE B RE
11,000,000/ 7T ' BT A B 4
1,700,000/ 7T ° B H A B L EHE R I%
HEZET-MEAB¥FIN &
BREHFR_ZE—NFEA=-+=H
FIHARFEE - BEHERFIE 512.08%
(B2 Z—N\FE+_A=+—8HI
NEH:12.08%) - EE_ZFT—NF
FTZA=+T—HILFE EFFERX
A ARB638,0007T (HHE - — N\
F+_A=+—HIEAEA: AR
809,0007T (&£ &%) ) °

BEFERBED MEREDEEE-

BEMDREVNENAKRERE
HER1E - FT{E AT R EL A RIHIAR L
AR REABHERR S RE  BETE
BRBRATETANESR TARYIZE
AAMZBERMSHNE - ARNEFD
17 NI E S B B FTUER B 3%
BEBERANEL12.08%:THE - IZFE
CIEFRERSRAITETAMmEE
BRI ETYIRE-

EFRA U LRTEEREEZ AT
R 5 BRI 3 % 1R 65 BRI 3 T
PN
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34. CONVERTIBLE BOND 34. AR ESH

The movement of the debt and derivative components of REAN - AIBRES CEBRITETR

the convertible bond during the year are set out below: BERE D 2 EBEININT
Debt Derivative
component component
fTETR
B AR D #H B BB
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Initial fair value on the date of RETRBZ TR TE

issuance 287,874 272,331
Interest expense (note 11) MER (KFat11) 25,938 -
Interest payable during the year FAENFE (4,041) -
Change in fair value recognised in REZERZAFEES

profit or loss - 9,334
Exchange adjustments FE i FF R 13,201 12,316
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+-_A=+—H 322,972 293,981
On 30 January 2019, the Company issued 1% RZT—NF—A=+H K~Aa%
Convertible Bond (the “Convertible Bond due in 17 78 4 %8 /500,000,000 7T (49 A
2024") in the principal amount of HK$500,000,000 R #428,319,0007T ) 91 % A] #2 iR f&
(equivalent to RMB428,319,000). The Convertible Bond is F(IRZZE_OFRHH 2 UBRKRE
denominated in HK$. The convertible bond due in 2024 7]) A MREFLAB LI E R
entitle the holder to convert them into ordinary shares of TOMFREHZAIRRESE TRE
the Company at any time starting from 30 January 2019 ARZZE-NF—A=THEHAE=ZT
to 30 January 2024 at a conversion price of HK$0.412 THFE—A=+tHIEZEMRRBE
per share. M AARNRILER  ERERATR

04127 7T
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34. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued) 34. AIIRE S (#)

The conversion price is subject to adjustment arising ERER A EERGNEOF - RN IF4H -
from alteration of the nominal amount of the shares % 3 AT #0118 25 R R S R 1 P AR AE
caused by share consolidation, share subdivision, rights Z AR HADIE T G BA ) m{E 2 )
issue or any other reasons as provided in the terms and MES-FE - A 7] A A& E B BT
conditions of the convertible bond. The Company may AMRESFFBEABEMBREER
voluntarily redeem all or any part of the convertible bond SHEREEARNFERBEITAIRR
at any time following the issue of the convertible bond E5e KB B A R RE B REE
and prior to the maturity date by repaying the holder of ZE S AAMRE S - AIRARE
the convertible bond all outstanding principal amount FRHAEANBEERRNAREERBD A
together with unpaid interest accrued thereon up to the BRES -

date of voluntary redemption. Holder of the convertible
bond has no right to require the Company to early
redeem the convertible bond.

The Convertible Bond due in 2024 contain two RZEZNFRH I RRESFEE
components, debt component and derivative component MIEHEK S - EBEXE D RITET
(including conversion option and early redemption HAKHH (BIEERERE KRR
option). Upon initial recognition, the fair value of fEDREARAE) - WP R EBAK
debt component is HK$336,051,000 (equivalent to EB> HY A {E A336,051,0005% 7T (49
RMB287,874,000) and the fair value of derivative AR #287,874,0007t) " miTHE T A
component is HK$317,907,000 (equivalent to 4B AR B A F1E A&317,907,00078 7T
RMB272,331,000). The effective interest rate of the (#9 AR #272,331,0007T ) ~ EH LK
debt component is 9.55% per annum and subsequently oM ERFEBTFI.55% KR
carried at amortised cost. The derivative component is BRI BR o 0T T BARRK EB 9 A4
measured at fair value at initial recognition and at the FHERRIR AT ERE - RRREHR
end of the reporting period with changes in fair value N EEE) AR9,334,0007TF AR
of RMB9,334,000 recognised in profit or loss during the B iR

year.

The fair value of derivative component of Convertible M- NERH 2 AT RRES 20T
Bond due in 2024 was determined based on the S TREEKE S 2 ATFEDIRE
professional valuation carried out by Avista Valuation —NE+ZA=+—HREBEUNEE
Advisory Limited, a professional valuer independent to B B AEMESTEBRABR
the Group, at 31 December 2019. NEETZEEMEET -
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35. PROMISSORY NOTE

On 30 January 2019, the Group issued promissory note
with principal amount of HK$600,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB513,983,000). The principal amount of the promissory
note shall be settled either in full or in part by no later than
30 January 2024. The interest payable under the promissory
note shall accrue at the rate of 3% per annum for the first
and second years, 4.5% per annum for the third and fourth
years and 6% per annum for the fifth year after the date of
issuance on the outstanding principal amount, respectively.
The Company has the discretion to repay all or part of
the principal balance at any time prior to the maturity
date by giving 10 business day’s prior written notice to
holders of the promissory note. The fair value effect of
the early redemption options is insignificant. Holder of the
promissory note has no right to require the Company to
early redeem the promissory note. The promissory note is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate of the promissory note is 9.55% per
annum.

As at 31 December 2019, the amount of promissory note
is RMB446,249,000, and the directors consider that the
carrying amount of the promissory note recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to its fair
value.

35. AHEE

R-Z—NF—A=1+H "REEHET
7 £ [E600,000,0005 T (HERAR
#5513,983,0007T ) 7 H W 25 o A H R
BWASEEN_S_WFE—H=+
HZRIZE kD HEE F X EED
ERFENERE—FRE_FS
FIUMFERFAE EZFRENFT
F45%  ARIEREERNGEEITH
BNERAFEFEY - NARIABIERE
T2 HA B A A (0] F fE R A R IR+
EABETLRIOEEERNELEE
EBA - NEER I BO AN EREE
RAECERENATFEXETTE
Ko B HEEFEABREERARNRR
AT REIEH Z5 - AN BB SIEAT
Bt 2 HBUEBEF AR HK
A2 - AHBEBENERMNERAEESF
9.55% o

MN-E—hF+_A=+—H &HLE
BE4E A ARKA46,249,000L R EE
RAE AT RERITERA AL ZE
MEEFEEEENFERS -
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36. LEASE LIABILITIES

36. HEEE

37.

2 52 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

At
31 December
2019
i
o
t=B=+-8
RMB’000
ARE T
Lease liabilities payable: EREEEE:
Within one year —FR 2,500
Within a period of more than one year but not HE—FENEAMFERABA
more than two years 551
Within a period of more than two years but not BEMEEIE AR EHH
more than five years 56
3,107
Less: Amount due for settlement with ORI BEMTRN2E R B EEE 2 ZE
12 months shown under current liabilities (2,500)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months FRBaBEM AN 2EARRE HEE 2 FE
shown under non-current liabilities 607

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 18 November 2019, Fuzhou Gaojia, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
100% equity interest in Baoji Ruijiacheng Properties
Development Co., Ltd. (B# K =N EHWEREBR
72 A]) (“Baoji Ruijiacheng”) from an independent third
party for a cash consideration of RMB55,000,000. At the
time of acquisition, the directors of the Company are
of the view that the acquisition constitutes businesses
acquisition. The transaction has been accounted for
using the purchase method accordingly. Baoji Ruijiacheng
is engaged in property development business. Baoji
Ruijiacheng was acquired so as to continue the expansion
of the Group’s business.

37. Wi —EKM B A
NR—_FE—NF+—A+N\B KXAQF
ME2ENBAREBNEEE —2%8
VE=HNEEHE =N E AR
ERAG ([E#msEH]) 2100%0%
¥ IR e R E AR ARESS5,000,0007T
RUWER KRB EERAWEBEK
¥ Al KHEFERKEEA
BR-EHMENNEYERRER W
BEAREREEEEREANER
i
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37. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 37. WEE—EMEB AT (&)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of R EREER KB EEREE
acquisition are as follows: AT

RMB’'000

ARKFT

Property, plant and equipment e e 88

Inventories of properties mMEFE 151,475

Trade and other receivables JFE 5 B R R LAt B R IR 206,358

Bank balances and cash RITEHR LR 10,944

Trade and other payables JE 1<% B K B LAt B < 3R IR (81,787)

Contract liabilities GHAE (232,078)

Total identifiable net assets AERFEEMRTE 55,000
Consideration transferred: EEAE:

RMB’'000

AR F T

Cash consideration paid ENBEENKE 55,000

Less: Total identifiable net assets acquired W FTUREE P] B R & E S E AR (55,000)

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalent in respect E@ELWBE s ReMREeEECE

of the above acquisition: B FEE

RMB’'000

ARKFT

Cash consideration paid ENRENRE (55,000)

Less: bank balances and cash acquired B BEWBRTEKRERES 10,944

(44,056)
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37.

38.
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Included in the profit for the year is RMB1,554,000 loss
attributable to the additional business generated by Baoji
Ruijiacheng. No revenue for the year generated from
Baoji Ruijiacheng.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
revenue for the year of the Group would not change,
and profit for the year of the Group would have been
RMB453,631,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank and other borrowings, bonds
payable, convertible bond, promissory note and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries,
related companies and a director, disclosed in notes 30,
33, 34, 35 and 46 respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Group, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
management reviews the planned construction projects
proposed by engineering department and prepares the
annual budget taking into account of the provision
of funding. The management of the Group assess the
annual budget and consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. The
management of Group also balance its overall capital
structure through repayment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

37.

38.

—NF+ZA=1+—HILFE

Wi —EHB AR (&)

EW@HAEMHMOWEE% 5 2
BELE ZBEINETSEIL IR - B
iﬁ%;%ﬂz?iﬁwﬂﬁﬁ;‘ziu&zm

HKBEER —F—NF—HA—A%K "
AEBZ FRREB TSRS MAK
B 7 F P MG A A R #5453,631,000
Lo BEERHEHEG R T —EXRTE
WEER-_T-NF—A—BRxEKZ
ERTZIS'%@;LHEE?%%?&ZH&#&W

EXEBRERE

AEBERLERARRSEE T
BEA I - B BB LER R
?%Ek%mXEk@ﬁ AKEH

Frlﬁ E‘I ?E‘ﬁ%

AEBZERARBRFER (BED
B A M 5E30 33 34 - 3546 FE 2
RITREMEE BNES  JBRKRE
% A BB R ER B A B EERR AR

R BEERBLR—RBREFZHIA) R
ENRSFEFANATESERE AR
Gl RE (BIERAN R ) 4EAK

AEBEEEETMENENRBE R
Bz —#n  EREEMIRAME
ZNEEEEEE  YEERIEER
HHRRELIFERE -AEEEIEERR
AAFEREARERESKANE
BESWARAR ASBEEEEREZ
AHEFEEENAREEESRA RS

BESNEBRR AEEEIEENE
BEERE - FR D E1T M A B LA

R (T E AN R A AT
BREARE:
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. @I A
(a) Categories of financial instruments () EMIAEZEHR

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
S N
—E-NEF —E-NF
t=RA=t+-B TZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®FT ARBFIT
(restated)
(#==7))

Financial assets BHREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEGFAEBSCUBEE 24,889 60,611
Financial assets at amortised cost R AT E 2B EE 1,717,256 3,060,973
1,742,145 3,121,584

Financial liabilities BKaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BB AT ECHEEE 7,008,997 7,906,983
Derivative financial instruments TEemMI A 293,981 -
7,302,978 7,906,983
Lease liabilities HEBE 3,107 -
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30. €@ I B (&)
HMERMEEREREE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

2 56 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
amounts due from related companies, non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due
to related companies, non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries and a director, bank and other
borrowings, bonds payable, convertible bond
and promissory note. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
monetary item will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

The Company and its certain Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Company (for which their
functional currency is RMB) have bank balances,
other receivables, other payables, amounts due to
related companies, promissory note, convertible and
intra-group balances denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$"). The Group manages its exposures
to foreign currency transactions by monitoring the
level of foreign currency receipts and payments.
The Group ensures that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time.

The Group considers its foreign currency exposure
is mainly arising from the exposure of HK$ against
RMB. The Group regularly reviews the balances of
assets and liabilities and the currencies in which the
transactions are denominated so as to minimise the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk.

AEEZTESRTABRE
Wi R R e L A W RO - RS
K EWBELR B ARIE
2R B SRR IR ~ PR I IR 1T 77 5K
FERITREBERE  BAERRK
Hib 3R -HERE BN
NI IEEMNGI B 22 i S
K—REEFIA RITMEME
& ENES ATBRERES Mok
REH -SRI A FBEERHNIE
B - BZESRTAMERZ
[k B a5 E R (5% =k -
=R R EBERERR) 8
R\ NoR B A & kR - AR
BB 5% S L R o IR B 3 e
AEEZEREEERENZE
JEV B - LA TR K& FRE 75 280 £R HR B

Al 4 2
&= 18 it °

SR BT
Sh B R B R R E
BB TED 2 AR -

ARARMEETEEHERR
(AR EB RARE) BR1THE
B B R U GRIR - E R R
B ENBEARNRE ARRE
B AT R R E A A R E AR
AT (1787 ) sHE - AEEER
EROME WK AN FRKF - FEIAE
B HINE R Z )RR - AN 5k B AR
P S B SN R Y5 B N B A 7
RAT SR o

AEERS KNSR EEK
BETEARE 2RER - - NEH
EHRS EEEMBBERNAN
RHZ BB EEN RERD
AEBPE S 2 INERER
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @@ T A (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BMBEEREREBRERBER

polices (continued) (#&)

Foreign currency risk management (continued) SRR ETE ()

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RNEE ASNE SHE I E E NS R
currency denominated monetary assets and e EBKEEREBAGBULR
monetary liabilities and intra-group balances, SEARFIHE®R (EEERR
with exposure to foreign currency risk which are BRE)RWEMRZEEAER
considered as significant by management, at the ik

end of the reporting periods are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
£ a8
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-RE “E-N\F “E-hE “E-N\E&
+ZA=+-B +t-A=+-B +ZA=1t-B t-A=t+-E

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETFIL ARETR ARBFT

(restated) (restated)

(E5) (&575)

HK$ - intra-group balances AT-SENRAIRER 115,466 8,775 53,275 -
HK$ - other balances BT Hth g 343,501 50,444 1,285,726 67,100
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
against HK$. 5% (2018: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period end
for a 5% (2018: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit (2018: decrease in post-tax loss)
where RMB strengthen 5% (2018: 5%) against
HK$. For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of RMB
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit (2018: prost-tax loss)
and other comprehensive income and the amounts

30. €@ I B (&)

BEEREEEEREEK

(&

INERBEEE (&)
BRR B 3T
TRAVAEBNARKE LB
PE R4 1 MR 5% (ZZT— N\
F:5% ) 2 BEE -8 R AEL
FEEIE A BERINE R R -
KAS% (ZZE—N\F:5%) 5
BEELL R -BREREDITERTE
RFBREWAINESTEZ EHETB
B BRmEIRIZEER 25%
(ZE—\F:5%)FFHHETH
BHE - TRZEBBARARE
HAETEFAS% (ZT— )\ F:
5%)RHEBRA2EN(ZE
—N\F HEEERD) AR
HABTTBKS% (ZE— \F:
5%) - Alg¥WHigaf (==
—N\F FEEER) REMEmEmK

below would be negative. mEARANBEEZE T X
WEEEREaH-
Year Nine months
ended 31 ended 31
December December
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H +tZA=+—H
HFE ENER
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB T AREFT
(restated)
(E75)
Increase in post-tax profit for the FRBMERFEM (22— N\F:
year (2018: decrease in post-tax loss HATBEBERYD)
for the period) 33,005 296

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the relevant years.

EEERS BREDTIREK
B A HME R\ - R S F LR R
WA BRI R FE 2 R
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

polices (continued)
Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to loan receivables, bank and other
borrowings, bonds payable, debt component
of convertible bond, promissory note and lease
liabilities as disclosed in notes 24, 30, 33, 34, 35
and 36 respectively. These financial instruments
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
interest rates on restricted bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group is not exposed to significant
cash flow interest-rate risk on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances as the fluctuation
in interest rate are insignificant. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is presented. The Group has not
used any financial instruments to hedge potential
fluctuation in interest rates.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its financial assets measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the management
of the Group manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date. For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with
fair value measurement categorised within Level 1,
the sensitivity rate is increased to 5% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (Nine months ended
31 December 2018: 5%) as a result of the volatile
financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 5% (2018: 5%) higher/lower, the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
increase/decrease by RMB1,244,000 (2018: post-
tax loss for the nine months ended 31 December
2018 would decrease/increase by RMB3,031,000
(restated)) as a result of the changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL.

30. €@ I A (&)

(b)

MEEMEEEEREE
(&)

IR ELE (&)

Tl 3K 7] b

NEB G EWER BITREAM
e EMNESF JBRERESZ
ERARED AL EELAEE
BE (D BIRME24 3034+
35361 55 ) iR A F(EF =
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I EHAREBEAT AN FEF
REAB - ANEBIE SR ERREAR
FEERRZRHIBITFERSIE
THEBZAEFH - KAFES
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HEEAESRENERAR - E
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30. €@ I B (&)
(b) BIEEKREEEERBE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
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polices (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk, the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the
amount of financial guarantees provided by the
Group is disclosed in note 44.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Groups’ exposure to credit risk arising from
default of the customers is limited as the customers
have continuous repayment. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
based on provision matrix.

Other receivables and loan receivables

The Group has applied 12-month ECL to measure
the loss allowance for other receivables and loan
receivables individually unless there is significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Group uses past due information to assess whether
credit risk of other receivables and loan receivables
have increased significantly since initial recognition.

(%

1= B 2 B K B {8 7P 1
RZF-NFR-F-NFt+=
A=1t—B BREEERERER
AN EERBROMBEEESN K
SERASERHENTHERSE
BMEHARERZMHREN
RAEERBRNH 44K E

EF B RELEZ BRI

HREFPAEREEN AEEH
EFEMNMEROEERRB
R-AEBEEHIEHLMEETR
Fr o ARER BREX 1R B 1T E) IR [T 8
HIERS - b O NE B R BB
eEEEREERREALES
REERERETTRUERT &

H i JE W KA K fE R E

AEBDRBI2EARBEES
BEBT &R EUEIE LB
EXEERE RIFR VSR
(S B KIE I 0 - AR B
FIBERIHE RGBT R
FEE A EUGRIA R B E R 2 E
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30. €@ I A (&)
(b) BIEEREEEERBE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

polices (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Amounts due from related companies/non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

The credit risk of amounts due from related
companies and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries are managed through an internal
process. The Group actively monitors the
outstanding amount owed by each related party
and identifies any credit risks in a timely manner
in order to reduce the risk of a credit related loss.
Further, the Group closely monitors the financial
performance of the related companies which
mainly engage in properties development in the
PRC. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on the outstanding
balances individually.

Bank balances/Restricted bank deposits

The credit risks on bank balances and restricted
bank deposits are limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

Financial guarantee contracts

For the financial guarantee contracts provided
by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to finance
their purchase of properties, the Group measured
the loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts
by reference to the loss on default based on the
current property value and the pre-sale deposits
already received. For the financial guarantee
contracts provided by the Group to banks in
connection with the related parties and third
parties’ bank borrowings, the Group measured the
loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts by
reference to the loss on default based on the pledge
properties value, borrowers’ financial position and
historical observed default rates. The directors
considered that the loss allowances on financial
guarantee contracts at 31 December 2019 and
2018 were insignificant to the Group.

(%)
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
polices (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal

credit rating Description

AMEAFR B

30. €@ I B (&)
(b) BIEEKREEEERBE
(&)

1= B 2 B K 6 8 515 (48)

AEBRNBEEFHFLTEE
IR ERR -

Other financial
assets/other items
HttmBEE/
HiEH

Trade receivables

JE Wi B K

Lifetime ECL-not 12-month ECL

credit-impaired

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk
of default and does not have any
past-due amounts

1% = Bz RHGHFHENRRREE
TEEIRBEE

Watch list Debtor frequently due after due

Doubtful There have been significant increases
in credit risk since initial recognition
through information developed
internally or external resources

E3= BRNPEENERIIINEERER
B F ER AR S B Rk AT

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BB ERBETNEECLREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

gz REBBREBARNBEMBREE
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dates but usually settle in full; or the

counterparty operates in industry with

higher risk while the debt is secured
by assets which the value is higher
than carrying amount of

the receivables

BB AREBBEY A PELERHERN
FEFHEEMETERRES  MEHA

RRNERFRREE B EFRR

AL E Y B O RIA A BRI R

2HBRHMERER-
EERRE

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired

EHBRHMERER-
FEERRE

Lifetime ECL-not
credit-impaired

REABEHREE
&8

12-month ECL

REABEHREE
&8

Lifetime ECL- not
credit-impaired

2HBEHEERE- 2HBHEERE-
EERRE EEXRRBE
Lifetime ECL- Lifetime ECL-

credit-impaired credit-impaired
2HEHEERE- 2HBHEERE-
EERE EERE
Amount is Amount is

written off written off
TSRO M TSRO M
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @RI A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BMBEEREREBRERBER
polices (continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R B R BB (&)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRAVAEBYEEEREAM
the Group’s financial assets and other items, which HE (BEXBEEEEENW)
are subject to ECL assessment: FrE A EERRE
External Internal Gross
credit credit  12-month or carrying
At 31 December 2019 Notes rating rating  lifetime ECL amount
NPER  ABEA 1ERR
RZB-AF+ZA=t—-8H i &t AR R 2HEEER EE#AE
RMB'000
AREFT
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBHRAGTE2HBEE
Trade receivable
- sale of goods and services 25 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL - 15,511
—HEBm kR TER (Ket1) 2HBRHBEEESR
Other receivables 25 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 404,401
N (Note 3) o
Hin IR TEM EmER  12EABHEESR
(Kfit3)
Other receivables 25 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 73
N (Note 3) (credit-impaired)
H U TR BE  2HEHEEER
(Kfit3) (EERME)
Amounts due from 46(a) N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 491,784
related companies R (Note 3) \
JEW A& R RIUR NEH ERR  NEARBEEESR
(Hiat3)
Amounts due from 46(a) N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 20,595
non-controlling shareholders (Note 3)
of subsidiaries N \
FEWF B R R IR IR R 5B TEH ERR  NEARBEEESR
(Hiat3)
Restricted bank deposits 27 A2 N/A 12-month ECL 62,840
RREIFTER TER  NEARMEEER
Bank balances and cash 27 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12-month ECL 707,276
RTEBREAS A3EAa3 TER  NEABHEEES
Other items
HitEH
Trade receivables
HiER
- operating leases 25 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 14,849
N (Note 2) o
~REHE NEM KRR 12EABRMEEER
(Kfet2)
Financial guarantee contracts 44 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 4,806,327
N (Note 5) .
MBEREHD TEA EREB  12EABRBEEESR
(f3E5)
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @ T B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEREREBERBK
polices (continued) (#&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R BB (&)
(continued)
External Internal Gross
credit credit  12-month or carrying
At 31 December 2018 Notes rating rating  lifetime ECL amount
SHERE A mREBER 12A%
R-ZZ-NFE+=-A=1+-H Bt 4R 4R 2HEEER BRE
RMB’000
ARETTL
(restated)
(gE7))
Financial assets at amortised
cost
BREBHERATECHBEE
Trade receivable
- sale of goods and services 25 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL \ 8,766
—HEH MRS A (FaF1) 2BEHEEEBA
Other receivables 25 N/A Low risk ~ 12-month ECL 1,331,268
(Note 3)
H i e W58 TER REEB  1R2EABRREEES
(Mizt3)
Other receivables 25 N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 73
(Note 3) (credit-impaired)
# B ER ek BE  2HESEEEA
(KiaE3) (EERE)
Amounts due from related 46(a) N/A Low risk ~ 12-month ECL 1,083,582
companies (Note 3) \
JE U B E A R R MER ERR  12EABRMEEER
(KiaE3)
Loan receivables 24 N/A Low risk ~ 12-month ECL 127,790
\ (Note 4) \
FEdE TER EER  12EABRHEESR
(Kizt4)
Restricted bank deposits 27 A2 N/A 12-month ECL - 90,344
RRHETER TER NEAEHEEER
Bank balances and cash 27 A3 to Aa3 N/A 12-month ECL \ 409,498
RITEBREE® A3ZAa3 TMER  NEREHEEER
Other items
HthEH
Trade receivables
- operating leases 25 N/A Low risk ~ 12-month ECL 9,725
(Note 2) ‘
-KEHE TERA (BiF2) NEAEHEEER
Financial guarantee contracts 44 N/A Low risk  12-month ECL 4,263,443
(Note 5) \
BEREGH TER BER NEAEEEREER

(MaEs)
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @R T A (#)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BMBEEREREBRERBER
polices (continued) (&
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R B R BB (&)
(continued)
P & -

Notes:

1.

For trade receivables from sale of goods and
services, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. The trade receivables from sales of
goods and services are assessed for ECL based on
provision matrix. No provision has been made for
trade receivables from sales of goods and services at
31 December 2019 and 2018 according to provision
matrix based on historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward-looking estimates without
undue cost or effort.

1.

34 55 7 dn S AR 7% 2 FE MR K
ME AEECEREEYE
HEEAEISEANBLITE
T E 2 HEBIEE E R E R
1 o SHE B MR 2 FEU AR
AR BB EEEFERYE
EBEB-R_T-—NER=F
—NF+ZRA=+—BIEE
RERTIE AR ABNBER
EEBERRBERBRETIE
BEHERM MRS 2 EK
R MAREBZRALIE
o

2. The Group assessed 12-month ECL for trade 2. KREBERKEEERUERRGT
receivables from operating leases. No provision has HI2EAEREEEIE RN
been made for trade receivables from operating T-NEFEERZZFE-NF+ZA
leases at 31 December 2019 and 2018 according =+ —ATEENEATE R
to the individual assessments based on historical FAIAEMBTEEERELERIR
credit loss experience adjusted by forward-looking BEATAHERELEHEE
estimates without undue cost or effort. FEWERR - MAFEEKAR RIE

5o
3. For the purposes of credit risk management, the 3. HEKREEmME  AEEFEA

Group uses past due information of the other
debtors, related companies and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. Except for the credit-impaired balance
of RMB73,000, which has been full impaired , the
balances of other debtors are not past due at 31
December 2019 and 2018. The related companies
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are considered by the management to have sound
financial position and do not have any past-due
amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the risk of default by these counterparties
is not significant according to the individual

assessments and the ECL on these balances are
insignificant.

E =R ARA R

HMEBA BERRNNE
N BIPEEERR R B8 B B AT
fmEVSRAEEERRED
BEEN-BREFEEREZE
#r AR BET3,0007T5N - Bt fE
BAZEBR_ZE—NFRZ
Z-N\EF+ZA=+—RHILK
- EEERRMERA R
B /88 2 A 3F 22 A IR R B 75K
MRRBYEBHESE AR
BAEERR REMEAE
HFTENRBRALNEKNEZ
EHBAREEERLTE
7, o
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @R T R (2)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEREREBERBK
polices (continued) (4
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R BB (&)
(continued)

Notes: (continued) Hfax: (&)

4. For loan receivables, the Group uses past due 4. BEWERME AEBEEH
information of the debtors and the value of secured BEEAGHERRBEREE
assets to assess whether credit risk has increased BENMEEERRENLSHER
significantly since initial recognition. The directors of BEGEEL M- RARES
the Company considered that the value of secured RAECBEHEENEBESNIE
assets are higher than carrying amount of the loan WERRRE BENEE
receivables, thus the amount of loss given default is SEE/NERFTIREME -
remote and no provision was made.

5.  For the financial guarantee contracts provided 5. BAREREFPEARRER
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by the Group to banks in connection with the
customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of properties, loan facilities
granted to related companies and third parties, the
Group measured the loss allowance on financial
guarantee contracts by reference to the historical
default rate of the purchasers, the loss on default
based on the current property value and the pre-
sale deposits already received and the forward
looking information. The directors of the Company
considered that the loss allowances on financial
guarantee contracts at 31 December 2019 and 2018
were insignificant to the Group.

DA & B B V) 3w AR T R4t
SRR EY BTEER
AINE=ZAZERBEMS
AEBKDEEHNBEEN
R RENMEEETERNE
LI R B W TE SR % LA KAl
EEER B ETBEERE
HMEBEERE A RRESR
B RZIE-NFEZZT—N
F+- A=+ BHOHEER
BHEEBRBEAEEMEIL
TEKe
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

30. €@ I A (&)
(b) BIEEREEEERBE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

polices (continued) (4=
Liquidity risk management REE LR EE

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’s short, medium
and long term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by:

o continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows;

o maintaining adequate level of liquid assets
mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents
and held for trading equities securities;

o receiving pre-sale deposits for sale of
properties from customers; and

o applying long-term finance including
convertible bond, promissory note, bonds
payable and bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

REBRBDESARK NEE
ERAEQEEANRERR I
HREEERRENSNEEE
BREESREREREND
TENRE LR FEKE-B
BEEREENERBR LE
RETERRIR

AEBBEBUATHRERREE
TRk

. FREERANERRSR
=

==

s REEBHNRBEENKFTE
ZeRASMREFEDMA
RFER S IARES

s  NEEVRUEIRFEER
e

s ERARMRE SREAHRK
B AARE EBNES
KERTTHEE

TRHINAEEVBREZAD
BIEIER - RIBIRIBA KB A
BRRFAMAEEMBAR
ZAREBRBAEREFEH - TRE
ENERAERERE -
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €M T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBEEREREBERBK
polices (continued) (4
Liquidity risk management (continued) MEELEBERE (&)
Liquidity table MEE & F
Weighted on demand 3 months Total
average or less than to 1-2 2-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year years years Syear cash flows amount
RERY, EHEN 3
mEFHHE SR ZfAZ-F 1828 1555 BESE REREEE REE
% RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000

% ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARRTT  ARETR  ARETT  ABETx

M 31 December 2019 HAZF-fE+ZA
=+-A
Non - derivative i, 3-1
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables  ERTEEFR

HitEAFE 1,267,295 - - - - 1,267,295 1,267,295
Amounts due to EREELAARE

related companies 642,927 - - - - 642,927 642,927
Amount due to a diector  fEff— 4 EZFIE 99,626 - - - - 99,626 99,626
Bank and other borrowings 8 17 R £ f & &

- fixed rate ~-EEfH% 794 236,576 708,177 1,043,778 2,290,100 1,092,616 5,371,247 4,229,928
Lease liabilties HERE 5.65 649 1957 564 57 - 3227 3107
Debt component of ThRESEESA

convertible bond 9.55 4,475 - 4,475 460,891 - 469,841 3291
Promissory note AREE 9.55 16,109 - 16,109 617,505 - 649,723 446,249
Financial guarantee BHERED

contracts (note 44) (Witaa) 4,806,327 - - - - 4806307 -

7,073,984 710,134 1,064,926 3,368,553 1,092,616 13310213 7,012,104

Derivative-net settlement 74 TA-FEEE
Derivative component of - i {EH 2 f7ET &
convertible bond g9 293,981 - - - - 293,981 293,981

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA
(restated) =+-H(LE))

Non - derivative ETENBER
financial liabilities

Trade and other payables ERTEH %

At ZE 1,685,436 - - - - 1,685,436 1,685,436

Amounts due to ERBELAATNE
related companies 1,480,448 - - - - 1,480,448 1,480,448
Amount due to a director [Eff—ZEE3E 385,826 - - - - 385,826 385,826

Amounts due tonon- BRI BAFFEER
controling shareholders of ~ %% 77

subsidiaries 278,372 - - - - 278,372 278,372
Bank and other borrowings /7 R £ &

- fived rate ~-EEfH% 8.57 409,506 2,526,510 825,955 551,559 203,768 4,517,298 4,067,497
Bonds payable ERES 12.08 - 10,549 - - - 10,549 9,404
Financial quarantee BHRRAD
contracts (note 44) (Hizt44) 4263443 - - - - 4263443 -

8,503,031 2,537,059 825,955 551,559 203,768 12,621,372 7,906,983
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

polices (continued)
Liquidity risk management (continued)
Liquidity table (continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle in cash or other
financial assets under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities remeasured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular the
valuation technique and inputs used).

30. €@ I A (&)

(b)

(c)

HEREERFERBEE
(%)

REBEERBEEE (&)
MEEE K (&)

A LIS B ERE D 2 &
RHERBFHIREEHESE
R NEEB R REBMBEIERS
BIRBELHAR R EMPBE
EFEBEZRSER - ERNHEN
R bt AERERSRELHE
PRSI R IR ) A] BE T B
PRI - bt FTFT BE R AT EE - B
RRFFA SR REKRE SRR Z
HFHEXEEBRMRERE
A2 AT BEME ©

MBETAQFEFE

*EEIRIATE M E R AT
BHERHBEERMBAR
ZAFE

NEMEHF AEE2 ST
BAERIMHEERATEER
HE - FRARERHARE
BEEZ ATEETS R (5
2RI ET AR ARE) -

HE=EZERARAR
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. @@ T A (%)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (0 MBIAAFEFE(E)
instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and FEERBEEFMEERZRF
financial liabilities that are measured at fair B BZHBEERMBER
value on a recurring basis (continued) ZRFE (&)
Fair value at
ATE
31 December 31 December Fair value  Valuation technique

Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy  and inputs used

ZE-0F ZE)\f AVE  FRGERE
HBEE tZA=t-8 TZA=1-H £  REAHE

RMB000 RMB000
ARRTR  ARETI

(restated)
(mE3))
Financial assets at FVTPL 24,889 60,611 Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets.
EATESABRZHBEAE -8 BUAERERDSPHRE
(REHE)
Derivative component of 293,981 - Level 3 Binomial model-Fair value is
convertible bond estimated based on time-to-
maturity, stock price, conversion
price, risk-free rate, discount
rate, expected volatility
and expected dividend.
TRRES AR F=R EARE-ATERIEA

RE BHE EERHZ 7
kX BERERESRE MG

2 70 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in
the current and prior years.

The reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements
are set out in note 34.

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Group are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised costs is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis, which the
carrying amount is approximate to its fair value;
and

e  the fair value of financial guarantee contracts
at initial recognition is determined to be
insignificant, using option pricing models
where the main assumptions are the probability
of default by the specified counterparty
extrapolated from market — based credit
information and the amount of loss, given the
default.

30. €@ I A (&)

(c)

MBTARNFETE (F)

AEERBEFZMRERZ LT

BifEZHBEEERMBARE
ZRFE ()
RAFEERBEFEF—RHSE
TR AN A o

BE=RATEFTELHRIANW T
34

AEEHHAERIBAELA
FEEATER

o IEBHRAKEZMBEE
KRBz A FETHIRE
BReREDMRBARE
EEAEE AFEmESRR
NHERE R

o  RUIPHRRFBERERSL
ZRHELNEKXR THER
HIEEEAET BT =E
ZRBB/EMHEEERE
B4 E B F 5 RR 2 AT BE
HRERRBERT 2 EEE
B
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—FE—NF+_-_A=+—HIFZF

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 40. MEEZEFMEENEBEYHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAVNAEBERETDHELANE
arising from financing activities, including both cash & AR MIERSEH -REEH
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing EENBEERASEEZEEEHEER
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future EXRTEBERESREFTEAXBARK
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated ReERnEHERARETHRENEZ
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BfE-
activities.
Amounts
Amounts due to
Bank and due to Amount non-controlling
other Lease Interest Bonds related dueto shareholders
borrowings liabilities payable payable  companies adirector  of subsidiaries Total
Eft
Fff HEAF
#7R EHRB %85 FBRER
bR HESE EfFIE EfiE% AAFE HE HE it

RMB000 AMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 AIB000 AB'000 AMB000
ARBTE  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

(Note 30) (Note 33) (Note 46(3)) (Note 46(a))
(FrzE30) (Frzt33) (Biz463) (Hizt6())
At 1 April 2018 (restated) RZE-NFRF-A
(&) 4,838,300 - - 8,280 549,752 286,200 167,690 5,850,222
Financing cash flows REBSR (770,803) - (287,884) (495) 555,371 99,626 110,682 (293,503)
Foreign exchange translation ~ JNERE - - - 810 - - - 810
Finance costs BERK - - 287,884 809 - - - 288,693
Non-cash transactions 2% 5
(Note 46(allv) & note 45(c) (Kt 46a)i)) &
Hrstasio) - - - - 375,325 - - 375,325
At 31 December 2018 (restated) X =F-NFT+f
=t+-B(&E7)) 4,067,497 - - 9,404 1,480,448 385,826 218,312 6,221,547
Adjustment upon application of BB HEHESEE|
HKFRS 16 1635 2:3% - 829 - - - - - 829
At 1 January 2019 (restated)  H=F-hE
—-R-R(&E7) 4,067,497 829 - 9404 1,480,448 385,826 27837 6,222,376
Financing cash flows BERER 162,431 (2,009) (404, 246) (10,077) 443,075 (286,200) (239,784) (336,810)
Foreign exchange translation  ShE#RE - (19 - 3 - - - 16
New leases entered Biluzifg - 4127 - - - - - 4177
Finance costs BERK - 179 404,246 638 - - - 405,063
Non-cash transactions FRERS
(Note 46(a)(i) & note 45(c)  (Hfz46(alii)) &
EZE] - - - - (1,280,59) - (38588) (1,319,184
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=1-H 4229928 3,107 - - 642,927 99,626 - 4,975,588
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain bank
and other facilities granted to the Group at the end of

41. EEEH

R|BEHR TIEEDERAES
AEBERETRITLEMBE Z1E

the reporting period: =
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
S N
—E-hE&E —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +tZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARET T
(restated)
(&=5)

Investment properties WEWMZE (HzF19) (Kiata)

(note 19) (note a) 5,738,437 4,537,294
Inventories of properties (note 23) MEFE (K5523) 4,840,692 3,492,904
Right-of-use assets (note 18) ERAEEE (Mi18) 1,003,349 -
Properties under development BERPWE (H720)

(note 20) 279,860 351,254
Trade and other receivables IR M2 B K % Lt I KT

(note 25) (note a) (Kax25) (Hfita) 14,849 132,225
Pledge bank deposits (note 27) BRIRRITFR (K 7E27) 10,558 26,200
Property, plant and equipment W BB R (MaE17)

(note 17) 866 29,515
Prepaid lease payments (note 18) TENMEENK (HaE18) - 1,177,786

11,888,611 9,747,178

Net asset of subsidiaries (note b) MEBARLFEE (M Eb) 2,233,522 921,171

Notes: Bzt

(a)  Certain rental proceeds on the Group's investment (@ AEBEREMENETHEHRMER
properties were also pledged to secure the bank BIEERUNESER TAER 2R
borrowings granted to the Group. TEE-

(b)  As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the entire ordinary by R-ZE-—NFR_ZF-NF+_H
shares of Xian Sandi Real Estate Development Co. Ltd =+ —H ARAHEEZENBA
("Xi'an Sandi”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary AL EEERZEER QT
of the Company, was pledged to secure the other (A=) 22T EBRE FIK
borrowings. AR EMEE -

As at 31 December 2019, the entire ordinary shares of R_ZE-NF+-_A=+—H &K
Fujian Sinco, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the NAEESENBE R BRELR 2
Company, was pledged to secure the other borrowings. %%B%@%E F R IR A SE B A 4 £E
As at 1 April 2018, the entire ordinary shares of Baoji RZE-NAFOA—RA AR AH
Sandi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Baoji Sandi”) EREMBAREE = aRFMER
and Shanghai Gaojia Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. BERAA([E#E=@E]) R
("Shanghai Gaojia”), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries SEFMEREZEERAA ([ HES
of the Company, were pledged to secure the other F]) z 2 EhEmAR 2 T LUER
borrowings. The relevant other borrowing was fully repaid EEE - REE - N\F+=
and the pledged shares were released during the nine A=+—HIEEA BEHEmE
months ended 31 December 2018. gﬂ?&%ﬂg 2R B BRI EER

HE=EZERARAR
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

42. CAPTIAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 42.

At the end of respective period, the Group has capital
and other commitments as follow:

BEXRHEHMEE
MR - REE 2 EAR R HAMAGEDR
T

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
t=A=+t-B TZA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
(restated)
(&E5)
Capital expenditure contracted for but BT EIE 2 BRI A KRR LR
not provided in consolidated financial EMBmEABECERFAS
statements in respect of:
— Construction commitments for —BHRPYERERE
properties under development 479,462 613,507
— Construction commitments for —REMEREAE
investment properties 405,189 1,237,741
— Decoration commitments in respect of ~— — 2B E R B EE (ff:F)
investment properties (note) - 240,000
Other commitments contracted for but BRNTREZETNEY
not provided in consolidated financial ANGEMBRREE
statements in respect of: H b
-~ Construction commitments for —FEMERERE
properties for sales 3,043,531 2,846,464
- Construction commitments for — Wi BE b PR 2 AR AR
acquisition of land use rights 232,000 -
4,160,182 4,937,712

Note:

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has decoration
commitments in respect of investment properties amounted to
approximately RMB240,000,000, the commitment was released
after the Group entered into a termination agreement with the
counterparty during the current year.
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it

R-E-NE+-_A=+—0 K&£H
EHREMEZRERAENABARE
240,000,0007T - A 88 73 I 70 7R & [ R AR
FEBEBFHIITKRIEGRERERR-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

43. OPERATING LEASES 43. EEHE
The Group as lessee rEBEREARAA
The Group had commitments for future minimum lease REBEENARELEHEHER WA
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which EHEBENFTEEDNBREFRLNT

fall due as follows:

At

31 December

2018

—E-N\E
+-A=+—H
RMB'000
ARBTF T

(restated)
(&E5)

With one year —FR 612
In the second to the fifth year inclusive F_EZERF (BEEEMF) 506

1,118
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

43. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 43. KEHE (#)
The Group as lessor rEBERAEHAA
All of the properties held for rental purposes have FIBRHEHEMERRR—ZE=+F
committed lessees for the next one to twenty years. NI B AR AEHE -
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as HEzHERBWHESRNRET :
follows:
At
31 December
2019
i
—E-NF
+ZR=+—8~
RMB’000
AREFT
With one year —FR 93,254
In the second year E_F 48,286
In the third year E=1F 43,962
In the fourth year FEPE 43,316
In the fifth year FRHEF 40,265
After five years RELE 139,714
408,797
The Group had contracted with lessees for the following REBE BB TR REEBE R K
future minimum lease payments: ELAFR HRT 49
At
31 December
2018
i
—E-N\F
+ZA=+—AH
RMB'000
AREFT
(restated)
(& E5)
With one year —FR 62,432
In the second to the fifth year inclusive EF_EZELF (DEEEMF) 128,127
After five years RFEE 98,908
289,467
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

44. SSARERE
REFEF  AEEBENRREE

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of respective reporting period, the Group had

contingent liabilities as follows: NS
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i JiS
“E-NF —T-N\F
+=-ZA=+—-HB +t=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Guarantees given in favour of banks for:  BIA T & BRRITIEL HER
Mortgage facilities granted to BTREEMEERD
purchases of the Group's properties RERE (ffata)
(note a) 3,566,879 2,516,958
Guarantees given to banks in BETHERARCERME
connection with loan facilities RIIERTET (M :ED)
granted to related companies
(note b) 1,157,000 1,339,300
Guarantees given to banks in RRTE=FZERBE
connection with loan facilities RMEERTIRT (Mt
granted to third parties (note c) 82,448 407,185
4,806,327 4,263,443
Notes: HfaF -
(@)  The Group had provided guarantees in respect of mortgage (a) AEEpETRORLZZBERE

facilities granted by certain banks in connection with the
mortgage loans entered into by purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if a
purchaser defaults on the payment of its mortgage during
the term of guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage
may demand the Group to repay the outstanding amount
of the loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s
sales deposit and sell the property to recover any amounts
paid by the Group to the bank. The guarantee period
commences from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and end after the buyer obtained the
individual property ownership certificate. In the opinion of
the directors, no provision for the guarantee contracts if
recognised as the default risk is low and the fair value of the
financial guarantee contracts is insignificant.

REER ZFREBESRAXR
EEMEERMAILZIRBER
RBERZIGET MZEERNE
REIRIE R IRIB IR BHERIBZ
RITAIZRAEKEEEE R 2 KE
BRBEREEAEFNE HEZE
BRT RAEEATEEREFPHER
TR E W LA E AR £ E AR
1T Z AR 3R - FE R B IR 4R
MRB\BERRL YR YRE
FMBENFEERER-EER
R EREBORBREESMBEER
BRZRNFELTER B EE
RERBHNZBE-
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of the financial guarantees given to banks in connection
with loan facilities granted to the related companies which
is controlled by Mr. Guo Jiadi or Ms. Shum Xi Xia, the sister-
in-law of Mr. Guo Jiadi, was insignificant as the fair value of
assets pledged is higher than the financial guarantees at the
date of inception and at the end of each reporting period.
Also, no provision for the guarantees contracts at the end of
the reporting period is recognised as the default risk is low.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value
of the financial guarantees given to banks in connection with
loan facilities granted to third parties was insignificant as
the fair value of assets pledged is higher than the financial
guarantees at the date of inception and at the end of each
reporting period. Also, no provision for the guarantees
contracts at the end of the reporting period is recognised as
the default risk is low.

45. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

2 78 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
certain subsidiaries of the Company had arranged
several netting arrangements with certain related
companies and independent third parties.
Under the arrangements, the subsidiaries of the
Company, the related companies and independent
third parties agreed to net off the amounts due
from related companies, amounts due to related
companies, amounts due from independent
third parties and amounts due to independent
third parties amounted to RMB617,662,000,
RMB1,280,596,000, RMB1,014,439,000 and
RMB351,505,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Fuzhou
Gaojia, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Nanping Huiteng to acquire
additional non-controlling interests of Wuyishan
Gaojia. Pursuant to the agreement, the amount due
to non-controlling shareholder of RMB38,588,000
was settled by equity transaction, as set out in note
31ii).

44, SSAREE (&)
s ()

(b)

RAREERA RETHEAR
(HBEEER AL EREZ
RERLAE L 1S SR E
AIRTTIREHM BERZ A FEL
TEXN AREBEMEEZATE
=BRFE B RS RERZ M
FR-mRENRREE WX HRE
HRY ERBERAOZBE-

RRAREERR MERTE=TE
REEMARITREZMBERZ
AFEITBEXN AREERE
EZAFESRAMBHRRS®RE
HIRZHBER AREHEBRER
K R RERRSY BEERBERSE
#2 Bt e

45. TEBFBEERSH

(a

REE-_T—-NF+-_A=+—
HIEFE AQRIETHBA
RIEAETHEARARBISE
AR E T FREERE T
BEZELH ARFWEBA
A BEQARRBILE=FR
EREERERWNBEELRINIE
NEBERARIRIE BRBILE
ZHHREREMNBIE=ZFRK
HBHS R AARKE617,662,000
7T AR #1,280,596,0007T A
F#1,014,439,0007T & A R #&
351,505,0007T

REEZE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—
BIEFEE AQaME2EN
BRrrEeMNSEEE FERERT
VEEWSE ARBERELSE
WEEINEIEREZ - BRIEZ D
o EIEERRERIBEARK
38,588,000t J3 40 Fff 5E31(ii)FT %
AR BaEHE -
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

45. MAJOR NON-CASH
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, certain
subsidiaries of the Company entered into several
debt assignment agreements with certain related
companies and independent third parties. Pursuant
to the agreements, the Group conditionally
agreed to assign, and the related companies
and independent third parties conditionally
agreed to accept, transfer of other payables of
RMB375,325,000 to amounts due to related
companies. The debt assignments were completed
on 30 June 2018.

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

45. T EFBERFH (&)

(0

REE—B—\F+ZA=+—
HIEFE AREETHEBAR
HEFHERARIRBIE=HF]
VA TEBEERE BEZE
& AEEERGREEE
NEAERAR MBI E=ZHEIKYE
REEX BEMENFRIBEAR
#375,325,0007T 8 %= fE < B8 &
RAIFIB-EHFEERN T —N
FRNAZ+THREK-

46. BEREANL 2R 5

BALANCES
(a) The Group had the following balances with related @ MREDMEHAR AEBHEEAT
parties at the end of each reporting period: RAIE 7 AR
Maximum amount
during the year/nine months ended
HEREE /8L
ZEXFE
At31 At 31 At1 3 31
December December April December December
2019 2018 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE % E-)\F “B-NE ZE-)0\%
tZR=+-B +ZA=T-H mA-B tZR=t-B TZA=t-H
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBEFR ANEETT ARETT NEETT ARETT
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE75) (BE5) (BE5)
Amounts due from related ElEEN 7
companies (notes (i), (i) and (i) (HEE0) ()R (ii)) 491,784 1,083,582 753,048 1,083,582 1,083,582
Amounts due from non-controlling  FEAHB A Rl R A
shareholders of subsidiaries (Wa0RAE)
(notes (i) and (iv)) 20,595 - - 20,595 -
512,379 1,083,582 753,048 1104177 1,083,582
Amounts due to related companies [EFEERFFE
(notes (i), i) and (i) (B0)- (i) 642927 1,480,448 549,752 N/A NA
Amounts due to non-controlling R BA R HERRERE
shareholders of subsidiaries (HanRM )
(notes (i) and (iv)) - 278,372 167,690 N/A N/A
Amount due to a director (note (i) ER—LEZHE(HH() 99,626 385,826 286,200 N/A NIA
742,553 2,144,646 1,003,642 N/A N/A

HE=EZERARAR
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

280 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

The balances are of non-trade in nature, unsecured,
interest-free, repayable on demand.

Mr. Guo Jiadi is a director and beneficial owner of
these companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
certain PRC subsidiaries had arranged multi-party
netting agreements with related companies which
Mr. Guo Jiadi is beneficially interested in, and
has legally enforceable right to offset balances
among the related parties in an aggregate amount
of RMB1,280,596,000. As at 31 December
2019, amounts due from related companies of
RMB491,784,000 and amounts due to related
companies of RMB642,927,000 were recognised as
current assets and current liabilities respectively as
the result of such arrangement.

During the nine months ended 31 December
2018, certain PRC subsidiaries have entered
into debt assignments with related companies
and independent third parties. Pursuant to the
agreements, the other payables of RMB375,325,000
(restated) was transferred to amounts due to related
companies. As at 31 December 2018, amounts due
to related companies of RMB1,480,448,000 was
recognised as current liabilities as the result of such
arrangement.

Those arrangements are considered as non-cash
transaction for preparation of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

These entities have significant influence over several
non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group.

—NF+ZA=1+—HILFE

46. ERAEATZR S (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EHREIFESHIE ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ‘
RRRARBERER

;B)JD BEERZER
BB A

AZES

HEZZ-NFt+=ZA=1+—
BLEFEE BEFTHENEA
RIEHE AN LTS
EZBERARTHEEZHFE
HEELH WABETE AT
PERN DA S BA S A - 2 8258
4% AR H1,284,196,000
T RZE-—NF=ZA=+—
H R BELH EREE
YN ﬂ;”IE}\EﬁMm 784,000

TRENEERRFIEARE
642,927,0007T % )DJMEM/ in
HEERRDEE-

E_F )\¢+ A= +_
HiEAER EFHBEMER
REHBEERARIRBIE=
FRIVEBREZ-BEZSE
M AMENKRIEARE

375,325,000t (K& E5]) B8
EEEMNEEARRE R
Z-NEFE+-A=+—HB %
ZRMNEERFTREBEARE
1,480,4480 TR Z L HEA TR
Z%/J\LEJJE\TE"

RRBEGAESRER AL
HRESFERER S -
ZEERHAEEETIHEE
MEBARFZEEK.




46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

BALANCES (continued)

(b)

(@

(d)

(e)

The Group entered into the following transactions

(b)

46. EBAEAT ZR G (#)

RER/BAREE ERERET

with its related parties during the year/period: RINATRG:
Nine Months
Year ended ended
Name of 31 December 31 December
related parties Nature of transaction 2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\#§
+=B=+-B +=A=+-8
BELAB REME EEE EREA
(restated)
(geE5)

Fujian Sandi Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. (Note) Rental income received 240 180

REZGBFEHERBERAR (M) BRESKRA

Note: Mr. Guo Jiadi is a director and controlling

et Shne e s R AR 2 ESE

shareholder of the related company. KRR AR ER
Remuneration of directors and other members of O RNEE /M E=hHMTE
key management during the year/period was as EREEKBEZMENT
follows:
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
+=—A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
LEE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR AREFT
(restated)
(&)
Short-term employee benefits HHEIE BB A 5,062 3,956
Post-employment benefits B2 B A 292 172
Share-based payments PARR 1 7 2 2 T 3% 865 2,401
6,219 6,529
Mr. Guo Jiadi and Ms. Shen Bizhen, the spouse of (d)  Fohnzho A4 K BN st BBk
Mr. Guo Jiadi, have provided guarantees to banks Byt RITEERRITR
for the bank borrowings. Details of guarantees are HIER - BRF B30 -
set out in note 30.
As disclosed in note 44, the Group provided (e) IWNMIET44FT#EEE R T—NF
guarantees to the related companies amounted ‘1'*)? =+—BXREEE MH
to RMB1,157,000,000 (2018: RMB1,339,300,000 YNECIE 7S ﬁ*@%/\g R/ARK
(restated)) at 31 December 2019. 1 ,157,000,0007T ( =& — )\ F :
A B #1,339,300,0007T (4 &

51) ) e

HE=EZERARAR
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—_F—hF+_-HA=+—

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY

General information of subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set

HIiLFE

47. KRRFEMB A ZFHE

MELR-—REH
RBEPRRTAREREMERFTAZ
IR BZFFBESIMT -

out below.
Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Paid up issued/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital Proportion ownership interest held by the Company Proportion of voting power held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ER/ 4R&h
HWEAREE ZEny HRER ARAFRERRER LA ERARRRERZILA E:3 34
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
ER B Ef B
At At At At At At At At
31December 31 December ~ 31December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
R R R R R R R R
“B-AE ZZ-\F 0 Z®-AF ZE\F CB-pfE ZEN “2-aF ZFN
tZB=t-B tZA=t-B +ZA=+-8B fTZA=t-B tZB=t-B +ZA=t-8 t+ZA=t+-8B fTZA=1-H
% % % % % % % %
Fujian Sinco* The PRC RMB290,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property investment
ERER i A %290,000,0007C nEhE
Fujian Jingdu Land Co., Ltd* ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
RERBEZERAA e A& 100,000,0007 and property
investment
VESTEVUESE
Xian Sandi* The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
ARz HE AE 100,000,000 NEER
Nanping Sandi Xiangsong The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 60% 60% - - 60% 60%  Property development
Property Development Co.,
Ltd (“Nanping Xiangsong")*
ETSHEBARLE PE ABH50000000 IREE
(% )
Strike Again Group Ltd BYI Us1 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Securities trading
Strike Again Group Ltd RERLES B30 Bl
Grand International Hong Kong HK$100 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited
ERERERERAR B 10047 AR
Guoshi Investment Group The PRC RMB100,000,00 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited*
IRREEEERAT HE 100,000,007 RERR
Fuzhou Gaojia* The PRC RMB1,500,900,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
and property
investment
BiEE il N NERRRNERE
1,500,900,0007C
Shanghai Gaojia* The PRC RMB55,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
LigsE i ARHES5,000,0007T NEER
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OF THE COMPANY (continued)

General information of subsidiaries (continued)

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

mEMBERRWME

E-NF+_A=1+—HIFE

47. A RFEXEMB LRI ZHE

(%)
MELAR—RES (&)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Paid up issued/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital Proportion ownership interest held by the Company Proportion of voting power held by the Company Principal activities
Ri/ER/ ARES
Lif. S By HhEL ARARSERRES LA EREAFERERLILA IEER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
ER B ER B
At At At At At At At At
31December 31 December ~ 31December  31December ~ 31December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
R R R ® R R R ®
ZE-0E ZE-)\& ZE-AE it St ZE-0E ZE-)\E ZE-AE -
tZB=t+-B fZA=t-B TZB=t- Etﬂir B tZB=+-B TZA=t-R tZB=t+-H
% % % % % % %
Shanghai Sandi Real Estate The PRC RMB196,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd* and property
investment
HECURRERSERAR  HE AR 196,000,007 NEERRNERE
Baoji Sandi* The PRC RMB150,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
and property
investment
BEcH HE 150,000,007 NERRRMERE
Sl First* The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Property development
ELEE] HE ARH100,000,0007T ELHS
Yongtai Sandi Real Estate The PRC RMB100,000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd*
KRZBEHEREARLT 48 AR 100,000,007 DESHS
Nanping Sandi Real Estate The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 51% 51% - - 51% 51%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd
("Nanping Sandi")*
ETZERNEREARLAT P8 ARH50,0000007 ELHS
Wuyishan Gaojia Real Estate The PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 100% 51% - - 100% 51%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd*
RRUBEEHEREERAT #E AE 20,000,000 NEER
Yongtai Gaojia Real Estate The PRC RMB82,500,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Property development
Development Co. Ltd*
KRZERUEREARLT 98 R 82,500,0007 NEERE
Baoji Ruiiacheng* The PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 100% - - - 100% - Property development
ERBES HE ARH50,0000007 ELHS
* These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises * ?%“ﬂ?%fﬁ/\qﬂ BIp 2 SN B E
established in the PRC. The English names of these {8 o 2y 75@?%%&}1 ez
companies are for reference only and have not been ik,%%

registered.

Li‘%ﬁ’iﬂ%%md%ix%ﬁézﬁi =%

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected BHEEZARAIMBRAR -EER
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other & REEMMEB AR CFBRERE
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, results TEER IR -

in particulars of excessive length.

P R B B A R] BT EAE RS 78
#o

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

ME=EERARAT  2019F#H
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEERFERERZILZENS
have material non-controlling interests AR ZFHE

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TERFAVNAEEEBEAFERER
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- ZIHEEEWNBARFE:

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting Loss
Name of and principal rights held by non- allocated to non- Accumulated non-
subsidiary place of business controlling interests controlling interests controlling interests
FERER
At e T FeEcRRRER
WEATAR RERTERE RRER LA AMEFERRECFE EREZY
At At At At At At
31December  31December 31 December 31 December  31December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“E-nf ZEF ZERE SRR ZERE CE)R
TZAZt-A TZA=t-B +ZAZt-R tZA=T-B toAZt-R tZASt-H
RMB000 AUAB 000 RMB000 AIAB 000

ARRFR  ARETT  ARRFR ARRTR

(restated) (restated) (restated)

(f8%3)) (8%3)) (8E3))
Nanping Xiangsong The PRC 40% 40% (9,220) (2,510 8,198 17419
AT HE
Nanping Sandi The PRC 49% 49% (3,741) (4,697) 11,960 15,700
BE=@ hE
Jilin First The PRC 49% 49% (2,022) (2,205) 33,811 35,834
ELEE HE
Wuyishan Gaojia The PRC - 49% - (115) - 9,684
RELFE hE

(14,983) (9,527) 53,969 78,637

Summarised financial information in respect of each of REBEBEAFERERZNHER
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling AN EEREZ &I T o T X
interests is set out below. The summarised financial BRI EREERKEINEE-
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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For year ended 31 December 2019

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE—FT—NF+-_H=1T—HIFE

47. A RFEXEMB LRI ZHE

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Nanping Xiangsong (continued) B¥EE
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
i i
—E-hEF —E—)\F
+ZB=+—-8B +-—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
(restated)
(&E5)
Current assets MEEE 1,108,823 616,974
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,718 4,977
Current liabilities mEAE (1,019,058) (578,405)
Non-current liabilities ERDEE (75,987) -
Net assets BEFE 20,496 43,546
Equity attributable to owners AREERAEERER
of the Company 12,298 26,127
Non-controlling interests TR = 8,198 17,419

HE=EZERARAR
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Nanping Xiangsong (continued) EYEE (&)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-NF
+=ZA=+—-8 +-A=+—8H
LEE LIESE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
(restated)
(&&E5)
Income PN 303 35
Expenses X (23,353) (6,310)
Loss for the year/period AFE/HEER (23,050) (6,275)
Loss attributable to owners RKRAREB AELEE
of the Company (13,830) (3,765)
Loss attributable to of the JE 12 iR HE 2 FE (G i T B 1R
non-controlling interests (9,220) (2,510)
Loss for the year/period AEE,/HHEER (23,050) (6,275)
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mEMBERRWME

For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZAA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Nanping Xiangsong (continued) EYEE (&)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
+=A=t-B t-A=t-A
ILEE LIESUE A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARMFT
(restated)
(L&)
Dividends paid to B FEERERZRE
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from KEEH BRI FE
operating activities (312,328) (34,829)
Net cash outflow from REEHZHEE R FH
investing activities (3,202) (4,796)
Net cash inflow from BEERH RERAFHE
financing activities 340,859 50,000
Net cash inflow WERAFRE 25,329 10,375
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REMBRRHE

For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (4&)
Nanping Sandi B¥=E
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—g-nE T \F
+=ZA=+—-HB +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
(restated)
(&=&7))
Current assets mEEE 1,553,767 1,471,402
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,781 5,919
Current liabilities mEAE (1,535,400) (1,266,280)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (1,741) (179,000)
Net assets BEFE 24,407 32,041
Equity attributable to owners ARBIERARGERER
of the Company 12,447 16,341
Non-controlling interests R R 11,960 15,700
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. A AT T EMEB AT 2H1E
OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)

Nanping Sandi (continued) B¥=E(#)

Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\E
+=ZA=+—-H8 +-A=+—8H
EFE IENER
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFIT
(restated)
(&)
Income WA 210 122
Expenses i3 (7,844) (9,708)
Loss for the year/period AFE/HEERE (7,634) (9,586)
Loss attributable to owners RAFHB AREILEE
of the Company (3,893) (4,889)
Loss attributable to of the RSB RTER
non-controlling interests (3,741) (4,697)
Loss for the year/period NEE /SRR (7,634) (9,586)

HE=EZERARAR
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (4&)
Nanping Sandi (continued) B¥=E(#)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=1-A
ILEE LESE A
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
(restated)
(L&)
Dividends paid to B FEERERZRE
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash inflow from KEEH RS RAFH
operating activities 289,917 157,852
Net cash outflow from REEHZHE SR FH
investing activities (85) (188)
Net cash outflow from BEERH AR FHE
financing activities (324,240) (106,966)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be (Rt RAFH (34,408) 50,698
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For year ended 31 December 2019

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE—FT—NF+-_H=1T—HIFE

47. A RFEXEMB LRI ZHE

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Jilin First EMER
At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
RIBE-AE RZZ—N\F
T=A=t+t-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARSFT
(restated)
(&=E7))
Current assets TEEE 478,167 356,893
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,187 18,690
Current liabilities THAE (411,303) (301,720)
Non-current liabilities EREHaE (3,045) (732)
Net assets BEFE 69,006 73,131
Equity attributable to owners ARBIERAREER
of the Company 35,195 37,297
Non-controlling interests JEVR R ME 33,811 35,834

HE=EZERARAR
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Jilin First (continued) EMER (&)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NF ZT-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZRA=+—H
EEE IENE AR
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
(restated)
(L&)
Revenue g 7,333 26,256
Cost of properties sales k=N (3,761) (25,247)
Other income Hip g A 1,221 1,625
Other gains and losses H bWz R EHE (87) (905)
Change in fair value upon transfer RENEGEEEREMERZ
from inventories of properties to NTEEE
investment properties 2,094 -
Expenses i3 (10,925) (6,229)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HEEBR (4,125) (4,500)
Loss attributable to owners RRAFEB AEILEE
of the Company (2,103) (2,295)
Loss attributable to of the FIEREREGRTER
non-controlling interests (2,022) (2,205)
Loss for the year/period AEE/HEEBR (4,125) (4,500)
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. ZAA T X EMB AT 2515

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Jilin First (continued) EMER (&)
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
“E-NF —E-N\F
+=B=+-8 t=A=t+-A
ILEE LESE A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARMFT
(restated)
(L&)
Dividends paid to B FEERERZRE
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash (outflow) inflow from K2EH RS (RE)RAFHE
operating activities (14,895) 2,025
Net cash outflow from REEHZHEE R FH
investing activities (5) (18)
Net cash outflow from BEERH AR FHE
financing activities - -
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be (Rt RAFH (14,900) 2,007
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. AR TR AR EHE R
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At At
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
»® N
—E-hE —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—-HB +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBEF T
(restated)
(&&5)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries MEBARZELTRE 3,183,619 1,645,926
Property, plant and equipment ME BB REE 358 97
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,835 -
3,185,812 1,646,023
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments H b jE W kT8 K FE A FB 1,116 684
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRERE 580 2,761
1,696 3,445
Current liabilities REAE
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,887 -
Other payables and accruals Hofth e~ R IE & AT B A 287,872 8,490
Bonds payable e EH - 9,404
289,759 17,894
Net current liabilities REAEFE (288,063) (14,449)
Total assets less current liabilities BEEHAERRBEE 2,897,749 1,631,574
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital (Note 31) R (ffaE31) 42,881 37,468
Reserves i 1,791,504 1,594,106
Total equity MR 1,834,385 1,631,574
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 162 -
Debt component of convertible bond A#RRESF BB 322,972 -
Derivative component of RRES 2 TET AR
convertible bond 293,981 -
Promissory note AR 446,249 -
1,063,364 -
2,897,749 1,631,574
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #Z—-F—NF+_H=+—HILFZ

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. AR TR A R EE R

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves FREREZEE
Share-based
compensation Other
Share reserve  Translation reserve  Accumulated
premium (note i) reserve (note i) losses Total
DRG A
Rt EBEZHE Etbfkfe
aE R (W) nERE (Heatii) 2 ER @t

RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  ARMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARETL  ARBTT ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 April 2018 (restated) R =F—/\F

mA—RB (EEH) 534,288 3,416 (47,240) 1,224,806 (121,449) 1,593,821
Loss and other AHRBERENZE
comprehensive expense 53
for the period - - - - (18,864) (18,364)
Other comprehensive AEFE 2 E S
income for the period - - 11,858 - - 11,858

Recognition of equity-settled ALK AE%E 2
share based payments 3% - 7,291 - - - 7,291

At 31 December 2018 R-Z-\E+_A

(restated) =t—B(&&5) 534,288 10,707 (35,382) 1,224,806 (140,313) 1,594,106
Loss and other AEEBERENZE

comprehensive expense  Bi%

for the year - - - - (103479 (103,479)

Recognition of equity settled TR LARR (3 BEE 2

share based payments EN - 2,640 - - - 2,640
Exercise of shares options ~ 77{# &t 12 1,647 (830) - - - 817
Acquisition of additional IR ER MER

interests in a —FKB AR B

subsidiary from #a

non-controlling interests 64,548 - - - - 64,548
Acquisition of entities under Wi £RZHEE

common control 232,872 - - - - 232,872
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF

+-B=+-H 833355 12517 (3538) 1224806 (43792 1,791,504

Notes: Bt & -

() Share-based compensation reserve represents the fair () ARt BEEZ MEREREREU
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised J& 1D BELE 7 (RN 2 S ETHUER
share options granted to employees, directors and others FrIgERETARTEES ES R HAM
providing similar services of the Company recognised in RIEBERGHEMA T ZRITEE
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share- fREBERSEEEE 2 AT E.

based payments.
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For year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=+—HILFZE

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48. AR TR AR EHE R

296 China Sandi Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company'’s reserves (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) The other reserve, which is the contributed surplus account of
the Company, represents the difference arising from the share
premium reduction which was being effective and approved by
the Bermuda Registrar of Companies on 11 May 2016. Under
the share premium reduction, entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company as at 29
February 2016 in the sum of approximately RMB3,049,440,000
be reduced, with part of the credit arising therefrom being
applied to offset the accumulated losses of the Company in
the sum of approximately RMB1,824,634,000 in full and the
remaining balance of the credit in the sum of approximately
RMB1,224,806,000 being credited to the other reserve of the
Company.

Details of the share premium reduction are set out in the

Company’s circular dated 15 April 2016.

The share premium reduction was approved at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 10 May 2016.

49. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19")
in PRC and the subsequent quarantine measures imposed
by the PRC government in early 2020 have had a negative
impact on the operations of the Group to a certain extent
since January 2020, as most of the Group’s operations
are located in PRC and the major suppliers, contractors
and customers of the Group are also located in PRC. The
progress of the construction work of the property projects
of the Group and the timing of the pre-sale of properties
may be affected if the quarantine measures in different
regions of PRC persisted in 2020.

As the date these consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, construction works for some of the
Group’s property projects have gradually resumed and the
Group is now speeding up construction progress without
compromising quality. Due to the dynamic nature and
unpredictability of future development and market sentiment
of COVID-19, the directors of the Company consider the
financial effects on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in future cannot be reasonably estimated as at the
date of these financial statements are authorised for issue.

(%)
ERRREZRE (&)
UGS

(i) EMmFEE(BRARZEHEHBE)
ERMHEERVELENEZE K=
E-RNFRAT—HEERERQA
= BR SR =t B A 2o R IR IR AR
DR E BB AR R & E RN
—E-RFZAZt+NBZEEE
8 58 493,049,440,00058 7T » A It
42 ERFIER S ARBEIEHEA
NElZ B5THETE41,824,634,000/%5
JC BT HEBR FUIE 491,224,806,000
EILET AR R R E b fE 8 o

HUR B0 B 2 FF IS N AR A A
BAEAZ-R"FOATHBEZE

HORB D BERARARR ZE—R
FRATBERTHERENAE L
PEREfE -

49. REHREE

HRAEENRKBOEBEREBH
ER - ABRAUEREFHARFER-
PEEE -_E-NFFAUBKRES
(fcoviD-19]) RHEBFR-ZE=F
FURDOEERREEE T _F
F-ARRE—FREE LUAEENK
EEREETE - MPRESHR T
TESERD R A M AN EEYEE
EMREETREEMYEBERRER

s,

4, 52,
BE X 7=

R ELRE SRR ERET B
AEBETYEEANEETEZE X
WIRE AEBBRETHEEEN
AU N ONIR3E TH#EF2 - B ACOVID-19
RRBERETHSRENSE MR TA]
TEH ARRIESRAE RILEHRE6
MR IER BT A B8 LS E G
ERBRENEBEE M EHRERENX
MBI & -
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